
Page 1 of 2 

AGENDA 
San Francisco County Transportation Authority 

Meeting Notice 

Date: Tuesday, April 28, 2020; 10:00 a.m. 

Location: Watch SF Cable Channel 26 

Watch www.sfgovtv.org 

Watch https://bit.ly/3cEJWNV 

PUBLIC COMMENT CALL-IN: 1-888-204-5987; Access Code: 2858465 

Commissioners: Peskin (Chair), Mandelman (Vice Chair), Fewer, Haney, Mar, Preston, 
Ronen, Safai, Stefani, Walton and Yee 

Acting Clerk: Angela Tsao 

Remote Access to Information and Participation: 

In accordance with Governor Gavin Newsom’s statewide order for all residents to “Stay at 
Home” – and the numerous local and state proclamations, orders and supplemental 
directions – aggressive directives have been issued to slow down and reduce the spread of 
the COVID-19 virus.  Pursuant to the lifted restrictions on video conferencing and 
teleconferencing, the Transportation Authority Board and Committee meetings will be 
convened remotely and allow for remote public comment.  Members of the public are 
encouraged to watch SF Cable Channel 26 or visit the SFGovTV website (www.sfgovtv.org) to 
stream the live meetings or watch them on demand.  If you want to ensure your comment on 
any item on the agenda is received by the Board in advance of the meeting, please send an 
email to clerk@sfcta.org by 8 a.m. on Tuesday, April 28, or call (415) 522-4800.  

1. Roll Call

2. Chair’s Report – INFORMATION

3. Executive Director’s Report – INFORMATION

Consent Agenda 

4. Approve the Minutes of the April 14, 2020 Meeting – ACTION*

5. [Final Approval] Authorize the Executive Director to Execute a Memorandum of
Understanding with the Transbay Joint Powers Authority (TJPA), the Metropolitan
Transportation Commission, the Peninsula Corridor Joint Powers Board, the

Page 

5 

1

http://www.sfgovtv.org/
https://bit.ly/3cEJWNV
http://www.sfgovtv.org/


Board Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 3 

California High Speed Rail Authority, and the City and County of San Francisco for the 
Establishment of a New Organizational Structure that Will Support the Efforts of the 
TJPA in the Development of the Downtown Rail Extension to a Ready-for-
Procurement Status – ACTION* 

6. [Final Approval] Allocate $11,906,558, with Conditions, for Downtown Rail Extension
– Phasing and Partial 15% Design and Appropriate $2,636,109 in Prop K Sales Tax
Funds for Rail Program Oversight and Project Development Support – ACTION*

7. [Final Approval] Approve Programming Priorities for Up to $3,794,003 in San
Francisco’s Estimated Fiscal Year 2020/21 State Transit Assistance County Block Grant
Funds – ACTION*

8. [Final Approval] Allocate $580,000 in Prop K Sales Tax Funds and $383,776 in Prop
AA Vehicle Registration Fee Funds, with Conditions, for Three Requests – ACTION*

Projects: Prop K: (SFMTA) Cesar Chavez/Bayshore/Potrero Intersection Improvements (The
Hairball) Phase 2 ($480,000) and Bicycle Safety Education and Outreach ($100,000). Prop AA:
(SFMTA) Third Street Transit and Safety Improvements ($383,776)

End of Consent Agenda 

9. [Final Approval on First Appearance] Reprogram $197,500 in Transportation Fund
for Clean Air funds from the San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency's Fiscal
Year 2016/17 Alternative Fuel Taxicab Incentive Program to San Francisco
Department of the Environment's Fiscal Year 2018/19 Emergency Ride Home
Program – ACTION*

10. Update on the San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency's Transportation
Programs to Assist Seniors and People with Disabilities – INFORMATION*

Several commissioners have asked about the transportation services offered by the
San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA) to support the mobility of
people with disabilities and older adults due to transit service reductions during the
COVID-19 pandemic. In response to these requests, staff from the SFMTA will provide
an update to the Board, including on how the current paratransit program is
operating and on the new Essential Trip Card to help seniors and people with
disabilities take and pay for essential trips in taxis during this crisis.

Other Items 

11. Introduction of New Items – INFORMATION

During this segment of the meeting, Commissioners may make comments on items
not specifically listed above, or introduce or request items for future consideration.

12. Public Comment

13. Adjournment

15 

41 

93 

101 

153 

165 

2



Board Meeting Agenda Page 3 of 3 

 

*Additional Materials 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Items considered for final approval by the Board shall be noticed as such with [Final Approval] preceding the item title. 

The meeting proceedings can be viewed live or on demand after the meeting at www.sfgovtv.org. To know the exact 
cablecast times for weekend viewing, please call SFGovTV at (415) 554-4188 on Friday when the cablecast times have 
been determined. 

The Legislative Chamber (Room 250) and the Committee Room (Room 263) in City Hall are wheelchair accessible. 
Meetings are real-time captioned and are cablecast open-captioned on SFGovTV, the Government Channel 26. 
Assistive listening devices for the Legislative Chamber and the Committee Room are available upon request at the 
Clerk of the Board’s Office, Room 244. To request sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or other 
accommodations, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (415) 522-4800. Requests made at least 48 hours in advance 
of the meeting will help to ensure availability. Attendees at all public meetings are reminded that other attendees may 
be sensitive to various chemical-based products. 

The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center (Market/Grove/Hyde Streets). Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the 
F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Civic Center or Van Ness Stations). MUNI bus lines also serving the area are the 5, 6, 7, 9, 19, 
21, 47, and 49. For more information about MUNI accessible services, call (415) 701-4485. There is accessible parking 
in the vicinity of City Hall at Civic Center Plaza and adjacent to Davies Hall and the War Memorial Complex. Accessible 
curbside parking is available on Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place and Grove Street. 

If any materials related to an item on this agenda have been distributed to the Board after distribution of the meeting 
packet, those materials are available for public inspection at the Transportation Authority at 1455 Market Street, Floor 
22, San Francisco, CA 94103, during normal office hours. 

Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required 
by the San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF Campaign & Governmental Conduct Code Sec. 2.100] to register and 
report lobbying activity. For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics 
Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; (415) 252-3100; www.sfethics.org. 

3



[ this page intentionally left blank ]

4



 
 

  Page 1 of 10 

DRAFT MINUTES 
San Francisco County Transportation Authority 
Tuesday, April 14, 2020 
 

1. Roll Call 

Chair Peskin called the meeting to order at 10:10 a.m. 

Present at Roll Call: Commissioners Fewer, Haney, Preston, Peskin, Ronen, Safai, 
Stefani, and Walton (8) 

Absent at Roll Call: Commissioners Mandelman (entered during Item 5), Mar 
(entered during Item 15), and Yee (entered during Item 15) (3) 

2. Acknowledge and Adopt Meeting Notice and Meeting Conduct Requirements 
Pursuant to the Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20 - ACTION 

Jill Jaffe, counsel for the Transportation Authority, provided context for the proposed 
action. 

There was no public comment. 

Commissioner Safai moved to approve the item, seconded by Commissioner Walton. 

The item was approved without objection by the following vote: 

Ayes: Commissioners Fewer, Haney, Mandelman, Preston, Peskin, Ronen, 
Stefani, Walton and Yee (9) 

Absent: Commissioners Mandelman, Mar, and Yee (3) 

3. Chair’s Report – INFORMATION 

Chair Peskin began by stating that it was good to be able to convene as a board 
again, albeit virtually. He noted that the last meeting of the Transportation Authority 
was on March 10 and then meetings were temporarily suspended due to the shelter-
in-place orders related to the pandemic.   Despite having to temporarily halt 
meetings, Chair Peskin stated the he and staff had continued to tackle the day-to-day 
business of the Transportation Authority, along partner agencies. He also report that 
the agency’s strong financial position ensures that the Transportation Authority can 
continue to meet sponsors’ cashflow needs for a multitude of needs across the city, 
particularly the City’s transit systems and the riders who depend on them. Chair Peskin 
thanked SFMTA Director of Transportation Jeff Tumlin and Transit Director Julie 
Kirschbaum for the rapid response to the challenging conditions of the past month 
and making tough decisions to restructure service to maintain access, while 
protecting operators’ health and safety. He further thanked transit operators, 
maintenance workers, and other front-line staff locally and across the region working 
hard to maintain access for essential workers and others with essential business in the 
City. 

Chair Peskin also thanked United States House Speaker Nancy Pelosi and the federal 

5



Board Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 10 

Bay Area delegation for their advocacy and leadership on behalf of transit providers 
and their riders, referencing the federal Coronavirus Aid Relief and Economic Security 
Act or CARES  Act that provides $1.3 billion to the Bay Area through the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission. Chair Peskin thanked Director Chang and staff for 
working with transit partners and Commissioner Ronen in her role on the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission to help shape the process in a way that prioritizes the 
most transit-dependent riders in the region. He also commented that the agency will 
continue to work with the city and region to provide input on the next step of 
legislative initiatives to help further give relief to local governments and transportation 
agencies, including potential capital stimulus funds at both the federal and state 
levels. 

Chair Peskin closed by acknowledging that the needs in the transportation sector, as 
with other sectors, far exceed the available services and reported that he had asked 
staff to work with Commissioners’ offices and partner agencies to find additional 
resources and creative ways to respond to the most pressing challenges.  He said that 
staff will also be working with sponsoring agencies to ensure that we are prioritizing 
things correctly at this time.  

There was no public comment. 

4. Executive Director’s Report – INFORMATION 

Tilly Chang, Executive Director, presented the item. 

There was no public comment. 

Consent Agenda 

5. Approve the Minutes of the March 10, 2020 Meeting – ACTION* 

6. [Final Approval] Appoint John Larson to the Citizens Advisory Committee – ACTION* 

7. [Final Approval] State and Federal Legislation Update – ACTION* 

Support: Assembly Bill (AB) 2828 (Friedman) 

Conditional Support with Amendments:  AB 2824 (Bonta) 

8. [Final Approval] Adopt a Support Position for the Seamless Transit Principles – 
ACTION* 

9. [Final Approval] Allocate $60,732,027 in Prop K Sales Tax Funds, with Conditions, for 
the Light-Rail Vehicle Procurement – ACTION* 

10. [Final Approval] Allocate $1,819,800 in Prop K Sales Tax Funds, with Conditions, for 
Two Projects – ACTION* 

11. [Final Approval] Amend the Adopted Fiscal Year 2019/20 Budget to Increase 
Revenues by $2.1 Million, Decrease Expenditures by $71.9 Million and Decrease 
Other Financing Sources by $67.0 Million for a Total Net Increase in Fund Balance of 
$7.0 Million – ACTION* 

12. [Final Approval] Approve San Francisco’s Draft Plan Bay Area 2050 Fiscally 
Constrained Project List – ACTION* 

13. [Final Approval] Award a Construction Contract to the Lowest Responsible and 

6



Board Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 10 

Responsive Bidder, Ghilotti Construction Company, Inc., in an Amount not to Exceed 
$29,684,453, Authorize the Executive Director to Execute All Other Related 
Supporting and Supplemental Agreements, and Authorize an Additional 
Construction Allotment of $10,961,417, for a Total Construction Allotment Not to 
Exceed $40,645,870, for the Southgate Road Realignment Improvement Project – 
ACTION* 

14. [Final Approval] Extend the Vision Zero Committee of the Transportation Authority 
Until December 31, 2020 – ACTION* 

Chair Peskin made a motion to excuse Commissioners Mar and Yee from voting on 
the consent agenda, seconded by Commissioner Preston. 

The motion to excuse Commissioners Mar and Yee was approved without objection 
by the following vote: 

Ayes: Commissioners Fewer, Haney, Mandleman, Peskin, Preston, Ronen, 
Safai, Stefani, and Walton (9). 

Absent: Commissioners Mar and Yee (2) 

 

 There was no public comment on Item 5. 

Commissioner Fewer requested to sever Item 9 from the Consent Agenda. 

Commissioner Walton moved to approve the remainder of the Consent Agenda, 
seconded by Commissioner Mandelman. 

Items 5-8 and 10-14 of the Consent Agenda were approved without objection by the 
following vote: 

Ayes: Commissioners Fewer, Haney, Mandelman, Peskin, Preston, Ronen, 
Safai, Stefani, and Walton (9) 

Absent: Commissioners Mar and Yee (2) 

 

Commissioner Mandelman moved to approve Item 9, seconded by Commissioner 
Stefani. 

There was no public comment on Item 9. 

Item 9 was approved by the following vote: 

Ayes: Commissioners Haney, Mandelman, Peskin, Preston, Ronen, Safai, 
Stefani, and Walton (8) 

Nays: Commissioner Fewer (1) 

Absent: Commissioners Mar and Yee (2) 

End of Consent Agenda 

Chair Peskin called Item 15 and Item 16 together. 

Eric Cordoba, Deputy Director for Capital Projects, presented the items. 

7



Board Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 10 

15. [Final Approval on First Appearance] Increase the Amount of Professional Services 
Contract with MNS Engineers, Inc. by $1,600,000, to a Total Amount Not to Exceed 
$4,600,000, and Extend the Contract through December 31, 2022, for Construction 
Management Services for the Yerba Buena Island Southgate Road Realignment 
Improvement Project – ACTION* 

There was no public comment. 

Commissioner Haney moved to approve the item, seconded by Commissioner 
Mandelman. 

The item was approved without objection by the following vote: 

Ayes: Commissioners Fewer, Haney, Mandelman, Mar, Preston, Peskin, Ronen, 
Safai, Stefani, Walton, and Yee (11) 

Absent: none  

16. [Final Approval on First Appearance] Authorize the Executive Director to Execute 
Amendments to the Memorandums of Agreement with Treasure Island Development 
Authority for Both the Right-of-Way Phase and Construction Phase Related to the 
Southgate Road Realignment Improvement Project – ACTION* 

There was no public comment. 

Commissioner Haney moved to approve the item, seconded by Commissioner 
Mandelman. 

The item was approved without objection by the following vote: 

Ayes: Commissioners Fewer, Haney, Mandelman, Mar, Peskin, Preston, Ronen, 
Safai, Stefani, Walton, and Yee (11) 

Absent: none  

 

Chair Peskin called Item 17 and Item 18 together. 

Chair Peskin expressed thanks to Director Chang and staff for working tirelessly to get 
the two items ready for Board approval, despite the long process, and he noted that 
he understood that the Transbay Joint Powers Authority (TJPA) had already acted to 
approve the subject Memorandum of Understanding. 

Eric Cordoba, Deputy Director for Capital Projects, presented the item. 

Commissioner Fewer observed that these items set up the next steps for one of the 
largest public works projects in the region funded largely by San Francisco. As  such, 
she said she wanted to ensure that the contracts ultimately issued by the TJPA  include 
assurances that it would follow San Francisco’s contracting law, requiring participation 
of small and local businesses; promoting local hiring and compliance with Ordinances 
12X and 12X.2.  

Chair Peskin mentioned that he believes Commissioner Walton shares these concerns 
and had worked with Mr. Cordoba and Executive Director Tilly Chang to prepare 
language to address these issues. 

Executive Director Chang said she believe Commissioner Walton intended to make a 

8



Board Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 10 

similar request to ensure that the funds in Item 18 for both the TJPA and the 
Transportation Authority include a special condition requiring consistency with the 
City’s local business and disadvantaged business enterprise policies.  

Commissioner Fewer asked about compliance with Ordinances 12X and 12X.2. 

Director Chang replied that the condition would also include consistency with 
Ordinances 12X and 12X.2.  

Commissioner Walton confirmed Chair Peskin’s statement that he shares the same 
concerns as Commissioner Fewer and said he understood that TJPA typically followed 
the City’s policies on LBEs, MBEs, and WBEs, but requested a special condition be 
added to Item #18 to apply to both requests to require consistentcy with the City’s 
Local and Disadvantaged Business Enterprise policies and local hire policies. 

Director Chang confirmed that language would be added addressing Commissioner 
Fewer’s and Commissioner Walton’s comments.  

Commissioner Haney commented he also raised this concern at the TJPA meeting in 
the previous week and was glad to have amendments to address the issue. He 
thanked Chair Peskin, Director Chang, and Mr. Cordoba for their leadership on 
developing a creative approach to organizing, phasing, and funding a critical regional 
transportation project, and said he looked forward to continuing to support this 
regional partnership both at the Transportation Authority and at the TJPA. 

Director Chang interjected that staff would attach the condition “as applicable,” where 
federal rules precluding local preference did not apply, which was noted by the Chair. 

Commissioner Mar commented that he shared the same questions and concerns 
raised by Commissioners Fewer, Walton, and Haney and said maximum participation 
by San Francisco local and small businesses and the local workforce should be a high 
priority for the agency, especially due to the negative economic impact the current 
pandemic crisis is having on them. 

Commissioner Walton reminded everyone that the project was largely funded by San 
Francisco, which Commissioner Fewer reiterated, and was noted by the Chair. 

During public comment the first speaker identified as a small business owner and 
expressed support for the proposed contract conditions requiring consistency with 
City policies on local business participation. He also said he would like these rules to 
be applied to future projects as well. 

Matthew Ajiake of the San Francisco African American Chamber of Commerce 
thanked Commissioners Fewer and Walton for including the proposed LBE special 
condition and asked that since the project would be primarily funded by the City, to 
not default to federal DBE standards which would leave local, small businesses 
hanging. 

Eloise Patton, a community advocate in the Bayview, expressed appreciation for the 
additional language in the proposed amendment that supports small businesses, 
especially during these uncertain times where it could be a difference of survival for 
the businesses.  She advocated for strict compliance and adherence to the item 
amendment language. 

Roland LeBrun of San Jose asked that a portion of the Memorandum of 

9



Board Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 10 

Understanding (MOU)(clause 7 on page 6 of the MOU) related to consistency with the 
existing NEPA and CEQA approvals for the project be stricken. Mr. Lebrun elaborated 
on his rationale saying that while the current committed funding is $1 billion, he 
believes both DTX and the Pennsylvania alignment can be done for less than $1 
billion. He continued by saying that CEQA reform is on the table and will  be 
accelerated, and that the California High Speed Rail Authority has received NEPA 
clearance from the Federal Railroad Administration.  Mr. Lebrun suggested that the 
savings of $5 billion from the total project cost could be routed to other projects. Mr. 
Lebrun also requested that the Downtown Extension Executive Steering Committee 
meetings be made open to the public and said he hoped the Transportation Authority 
CAC would have a chance to review and comment on the item before coming back to 
the Board for full approval.  Lastly, with respect to the proposed allocations, Mr. 
Lebrun said there are emerging technical issues that he would be writing the Board 
about. 

Bruce Agid, former chair of the TJPA CAC, member of the RAB and High Speed Rail 
Community Working Group, and member of the Friends of DTX, expressed support 
for the MOU, as well as the two funding requests.   Mr. Agid said he recognized that 
the complexity of the project, the number of agencies involved, and the cost of the 
project warrant a thorough and robust governance and oversight model. He said he 
hoped the new approach would rebuild public confidence and the confidence of 
elected leaders. He concluded by urging the Board to approve both items so work 
could restart on the 2-year work program. 

17. Authorize the Executive Director to Execute a Memorandum of Understanding with 
the Transbay Joint Powers Authority (TJPA), the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission, the Peninsula Corridor Joint Powers Board, the California High Speed 
Rail Authority, and the City and County of San Francisco for the Establishment of a 
New Organizational Structure that Will Support the Efforts of the TJPA in the 
Development of the Downtown Rail Extension to a Ready-for-Procurement Status – 
ACTION* 

Commissioner Haney moved to approve the item, seconded by Commissioner 
Walton. 

The item was approved without objection by the following vote: 

Ayes: Commissioners Fewer, Haney, Mandelman, Mar, Peskin, Preston, Ronen, 
Safai, Stefani, Walton, and Yee (11) 

Absent: none  

18. Allocate $11,906,558, with Conditions, for Downtown Rail Extension – Phasing and 
Partial 15% Design and Appropriate $2,636,109 in Prop K Sales Tax Funds for Rail 
Program Oversight and Project Development Support – ACTION* 

Commissioner Walton moved to amend the item to include a special condition for 
both grants requiring that procurements are conducted consistent with the City and 
County of San Francisco’s Local Business Enterprise Program, local hire policies, and 
Ordinances 12.X and 12.X.2, to the extent allowable by the various fund sources that 
are used to fund the approved scope of work, seconded by Commissioner Fewer. 

The item was amended without objection by the following vote: 

10



Board Meeting Minutes Page 7 of 10 

Ayes: Commissioners Fewer, Haney, Mandelman, Mar, Peskin, Preston, Ronen, 
Safai, Stefani, Walton, and Yee (11) 

Absent: none  

Commissioner Walton moved to approve the amended item, seconded by 
Commissioner Fewer. 

The amended item was approved without objection by the following vote: 

Ayes: Commissioners Fewer, Haney, Mandelman, Mar, Preston, Peskin, Ronen, 
Safai, Stefani, Walton, and Yee (11) 

Absent: none  

19. Award a Two-Year Professional Services Contract to WMH Corporation, in an Amount 
Not to Exceed $3,000,000, for Engineering and Environmental Consulting Services 
for the U.S. 101/I-280 Express Lanes and Bus Project – ACTION* 

Eric Cordoba, Deputy Director for Capital Projects, presented the Item. 

Commssioner Safai expressed that this particular item should not proceed under 
these times of economic uncertainty, and given the current amount of traffic.  He said 
the money should be spent on putting people to work in terms of other needed 
capital-related work. He further stated that the project was not a priority in these 
uncertain times and he would not support the item. 

Director Chang responded by saying that in order to the project to be eligible for 
near-term grant opportunities, the project needs to be cleared environmentally so it 
would be competitive for state grant funding, She further noted that the near term 
opportunity is simply in the northbound direction and would be an High Occupancy 
Vehicle Lane using the striped shoulder of the existing I-280 facility, and would not 
involve tolling or take any existing traffic lanes in the northbound direction.  She noted 
the scope of work included the equity considerations and the operational studies that 
the Board previously directed staff to conduct. 

Commissioner Safai responded by saying that he did not think the agency had taken 
enough time in this time of crisis and economic uncertainty to step back and see what 
pools of money were still at its disposal, and that further conversation was needed to 
determine what projects should be prioritized in light of the amount of tax revenue 
loss over the next year and a half. He further stated that in times of budget surplus, it 
makes senses to proceed with some of these studies and professional service 
contracts; but with millions of people out of work and so much economic uncertainty, 
it would be a mistake on the part of the agency to not take a step back and have 
conversation about the economic security of the Transportation Authority overall. 

Chair Peskin responded by saying that the early conversations he had with the 
Director Chang and staff discussed what prioritization lens should be applied on 
capital and operating costs on each and every project, including re-evaluating long-
term commitment projects.  He acknowledged that the financial landscape is quite 
uncertain, and said in talking to the agency’s Chief Financial Officer, there was no 
question that the agency needs to revise its initial budgetary projections and staff 
would bring that to the Board in June.  Chair Peskin continued by saying there also 
was no question that the agency needs to reevaluate priorities and suggested that 
while the agency is still in the process of developing the lens to do that evaluation, the 

11



Board Meeting Minutes Page 8 of 10 

subject item be continued to at least the next Board meeting. 

Commissioner Walton asked what would be the ramification of continuing the item 
until we get more information on our economic picture.   

Chair Peskin answered that the delay would be minimal, seeing that environmental 
clearance is still a ways away; and he thought a few weeks to allow time to look 
through a policy consistent priority lens would not make a difference. He also asked 
Director Chang to weigh in on the matter. 

Director Chang agreed that the agency can take the next couple of weeks to look 
more closely at  the budget, noting that the regional Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission (MTC) was preparing its recommendations for the state’s $30 million 
grant application for the state’s Solutions For Congested Corridors (SCC) program, 
which is funded with State gas tax. She said the agency was hoping to apply for funds 
for the northbound High Occupancy Vehicle lanes.  She said MTC was preparing its 
staff recommendation for the SCC program for May Commission action. 

Commissioner Fewer echoed Chair Peskin’s suggestion to continue the item. 

There was no public comment. 

Commissioner Safai moved to continue the item, seconded by Commissioner Fewer. 

The item was continued without objection by the following vote: 

Ayes: Commissioners Fewer, Haney, Mandelman, Mar, Peskin, Preston, Safai, 
Stefani, Walton, and Yee (10) 

Absent: Ronen (1) 

20. Approve Programming Priorities for Up to $3,794,003 in San Francisco’s Estimated 
Fiscal Year 2020/21 State Transit Assistance County Block Grant Funds  – ACTION* 

Anna LaForte, Deputy Director for Policy & Programming, presented the Item. 

There was no public comment. 

Commissioner Mandelman moved to approve the item, seconded by Commissioner 
Yee. 

The item was approved without objection by the following vote: 

Ayes: Commissioners Fewer, Haney, Mandelman, Mar, Peskin, Preston, Ronen, 
Safai, Stefani, Walton, and Yee (11) 

Absent: none  

21. Allocate $580,000 in Prop K Sales Tax Funds and $383,776 in Prop AA 
Vehicle Registration Fee Funds, with Conditions, for Three Requests – 
ACTION* 

Anna LaForte, Deputy Director for Policy & Programming, presented the Item. 

Chair Peskin asked if the delays in starting projects due to the COVID-19 epidemic 
would result in cost savings for Fiscal Year 2020/21. 

Ms. LaForte confirmed that was the case. 

12



Board Meeting Minutes Page 9 of 10 

Chair Peskin commented that business could not be conducted as usual, that the 
Board would be faced with difficult decisions, and those decisions should be made 
sooner rather than later. 

Ms. LaForte reported that sponsor agencies are requesting funds earlier than usual in 
order to be able to set up the implementation structure for fund distribution in the 
new budget cycle. 

Commissioner Yee asked about the number of people who benefitted from the 
Bicycle Safety Education Classes program. 

Ms. LaForte answered that there was an average of 440 adult attendees, with 27 
classes in 2019 and 26 classes in 2018; for the novice classes, there were nine classes 
and 703 attendees in 2019 and nine classes and 780 attendees in 2018. Ms. LaForte 
added that SFMTA would follow the City Controller’s policy regarding payment to 
non-profit contractors, such as San Francisco Bicycle Coalition being paid at a 
reduced fixed rate for cancelled classes due to shelter-in-place orders. 

Commissioner Yee commented that those were pretty good numbers but wondered if 
improvements to those numbers could be made. He further commented that he 
would still support the item. 

There was no public comment. 

Commissioner Mandelman moved to approve the item, seconded by Commissioner 
Walton. 

The item was approved without objection by the following vote: 

Ayes: Commissioners Fewer, Haney, Mandelman, Mar, Peskin, Preston, Ronen, 
Safai, Stefani, Walton, and Yee (11) 

Absent: none  

Other Items 

22. Introduction of New Items – INFORMATION 

Commissioner Haney said he had been working with SFMTA and SFCTA staff but 
wanted to make a formal request. He cited the necessary, but painful cuts to Muni 
service, especially late night Muni service, and late night BART service, which has had 
a big impact on essential workers, in particular.  He recounted hearing from homeless 
service providers that many of their employees rely on BART to get to work, with some 
reporting that up to 30% of their employees residing in the East Bay and depending 
on BART. Commissioner Haney observed that we are relying on these workers more 
than ever and asking them to do more.  He acknowledged that Uber and Lyft and 
some companies like them are offering credit, but said he felt it was important to offer 
a public program to support the essential workers, especially those who are providing 
services like at hotels were homeless people will be staying, other homeless 
providers, hospital workers, etc.  He requested help from staff to create a taxi voucher 
program to help essential workers who are impacted by the recent cuts.  

Commissioner Safai said that due to the massive reduction in SFMTA service citywide, 
there are certain areas of the city, such Lakeview and OMI in his district that are totally 
cut off leaving are a lot of seniors, and low-income  families and individuals without 

13



Board Meeting Minutes Page 10 of 10 

public transit options to get around.  He said he also has been in conversation with 
SFMTA about taxi vouchers given that parts of his district are completely cut off from 
any form of public transportation He asked during this time of reduced service, for 
Transportation Authority staff to work with SFMTA staff to provide services like taxi 
vouchers for these affected communities not just in his district, but citywide, citing this 
as an essential service for seniors and disabled persons, in particular. 

Chair Peskin assured that Director Chang and staff would follow up on the two 
Commissioners’ requests. 

23. Public Comment 

During public comment, Francisco DaCosta spoke about the pandemic and the areas 
of the city where there are no services; and where there are services, some of the lines 
are jam-packed, which is not consistent with health guidance.    

Roland Lebrun mentioned that none of the meeting’s presentations were posted on 
the website and asked they be posted as soon as possible.    

24. Adjournment 

The meeting was adjourned at 11:58 a.m. 

14



BD041420 RESOLUTION NO. 20-48 
 

Page 1 of 5 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE A 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH THE TRANSBAY JOINT POWERS 

AUTHORITY (TJPA), THE METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION, THE 

PENINSULA CORRIDOR JOINT POWERS BOARD, THE CALIFORNIA HIGH SPEED 

RAIL AUTHORITY AND THE CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO FOR THE 

ESTABLISHMENT OF A NEW ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE THAT WILL SUPPORT 

THE EFFORTS OF THE TJPA IN THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE DOWNTOWN RAIL 

EXTENSION TO A READY-FOR-PROCUREMENT STATUS 

WHEREAS, On October 23, 2018, the Transportation Authority Board 

unanimously voted to suspend a Prop K funding agreement with the TJPA for the 

Downtown Rail Extension (DTX), and recognizing the local and regional significance 

of the project, the technical and institutional complexity, the high investment cost, 

and limited funding identified to date, the Transportation Authority Board 

commissioned a review of current and best practices for governance, oversight, 

management, funding and project delivery of the DTX; and 

WHEREAS, Transportation Authority staff subsequently convened a 

multidisciplinary Peer Review Panel (Panel) of experts with local, national, and 

international experience; and 

WHEREAS, The Panel conducted research, expert interviews, and a series of 

workshops, with participation by key stakeholders including: Peninsula Corridor Joint 

Powers Board (PCJPB), California High-Speed Rail Authority (CHSRA), TJPA, 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), AC Transit District, the SF Mayor’s 

Office, SF Planning, San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency, and the 

Transportation Authority; and  

WHEREAS, Transportation Authority staff also sought input from TJPA’s 

Citizens Advisory Committee, Friends of DTX, SPUR, the California State 

Transportation Agency and BART/Capitol Corridor staff; and 

15



BD041420 RESOLUTION NO. 20-48 
 

Page 2 of 5 

WHEREAS, The Panel presented its final recommendations to the Board on 

October 22, 2019; and  

WHEREAS, The Panel’s recommendations proposed actions in the areas of rail 

program re-positioning, funding, project delivery, and governance and oversight; 

and  

WHEREAS, The Panel proposed that certain activities need to take place over 

the next two years to better position the project for success, regardless of the 

governance and oversight structures chosen; and  

WHEREAS, To that effect the Panel developed a work program that 

summarizes the activities necessary for the implementation of the recommendations; 

specifically, this effort will re-envision and re-position the DTX program as a project 

of regional, state and national significance; confirm the project’s phasing and funding 

plan; identify the governing entity and organization with a clear mandate and 

capability to implement it; and select a project delivery method; and  

WHEREAS, Over the last several months, Transportation Authority staff has 

taken the lead in the development of a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with 

the TJPA, the MTC, the PCJPB, the CHSRA, the City and County of San Francisco, and 

the Transportation Authority (collectively, the ‘Partners’) for the implementation of 

most of the Panel’s recommendations; and 

WHEREAS The resulting MOU (attached) describes a new organizational 

structure that will support the efforts of the TJPA in the development of the DTX 

project to a ready-for-procurement status and make direct recommendations to the 

TJPA Board, based on a set of activities outlined therein; and  

WHEREAS, Those activities will be undertaken by an integrated multi-agency 

project team, comprised of senior staff of the signatory agencies to the agreement, 

over a period of up to 3 years, following approval of the MOU by all Partners; and 

WHEREAS, An Executive Steering Committee (ESC) will be instituted to 

support the TJPA in project development efforts for the DTX in accordance with the 

16



BD041420 RESOLUTION NO. 20-48 
 

Page 3 of 5 

MOU and will make recommendations to the TJPA Board regarding the scope of 

efforts and key decisions outlined in the MOU; and  

WHEREAS, The ESC will consist of the executives (or their designee) of the 

signatory partnering agencies; and 

WHEREAS, The ESC will be supported by an Integrated Project Management 

Team (IPMT) consisting of representatives with relevant experience in large complex 

projects from each of the partners, as designated by their corresponding executive; 

and 

WHEREAS, The IPMT will be led by a new Project Director, who may be a TJPA 

employee or consultant, or a consultant seconded by any of the partners, and who 

will report to the ESC for purposes of coordinating the work of the IPMT; and 

WHEREAS, The Project Director should have proven leadership, 

organizational acumen and relevant experience in delivering all aspects of mega rail 

projects and tunneling and will be responsible for the day-to-day management of 

those portions of the DTX work program identified for TJPA to lead, reporting on 

those matters to the TJPA’s Executive Director; and  

WHEREAS, Attachment 1 to the MOU names the initial members of the ESC 

and IPMT; and  

WHEREAS, Attachment 2 to the MOU is the Summary Work Program, which 

describes the tasks and subtasks to be performed under the MOU and assigns 

responsibilities for their execution, which will be the basis for a detailed work plan to 

be developed by the IPMT as the first order of business upon the execution of the 

MOU; and 

WHEREAS, As defined in the Summary Work Program, the ESC will work to 

develop an initial operating phase that provides the necessary capacity to operate a 

reliable blended system to the Salesforce Transit Center at the earliest practicable 

date and with consideration of reasonably available funding; and 

17



BD041420 RESOLUTION NO. 20-48 
 

Page 4 of 5 

WHEREAS, Attachment 3 to the MOU contains conceptual Organization 

Charts depicting the participation of partner and stakeholder agencies in the rail 

program (3a) and the TJPA organization for the project (3b); and  

WHEREAS, The MOU commits the Partners to consider providing funding or 

resources, but does not commit any partner to provide any resources other than 

those the agency has already funded and programmed to support DTX; and 

WHEREAS, The term of this MOU shall be 36 months following finalization of 

approvals or when the DTX reaches ready-for-procurement status, whichever is 

earlier; and 

WHEREAS, The Partners may amend, conclude or extend this MOU by mutual 

agreement; now therefore, be it 

RESOLVED, That the Transportation Authority hereby authorizes the Executive 

Director to Execute the attached MOU with the TJPA,  the MTC, the PCJPB, the 

CHSRA and the City and County of San Francisco for the establishment of a new 

organizational structure that will support the efforts of the TJPA in the development 

of the DTX to a ready-for-procurement status. 

 

 

Attachments: San Francisco Peninsula Rail Program MOU 

1. List of initial members of the ESC and IPMT 
2. Summary Work Program 
3. Organizational Charts 

18



FINAL – 3 Apr 20 

1 

San	Francisco	Peninsula	Rail	Program	MOU	

This	San	Francisco	Peninsula	Rail	Program	Memorandum	of	Understanding	(MOU),	
effective	______________,	2020	is	between	the	Transbay	Joint	Powers	Authority	(TJPA);	the	
Metropolitan	Transportation	Commission	(MTC);	the	San	Francisco	County	Transportation	
Authority	(SFCTA);	the	Peninsula	Corridor	Joint	Powers	Board	(Caltrain);	the	California	
High	Speed	Rail	Authority	(CHSRA);	and	the	City	and	County	of	San	Francisco	(CCSF)	(each	
a	“Partner”	and	collectively	the	“Partners).	

1. Definitions:

DTX	Rail	Program:	Activities	directed	toward	the	advancement	of	the	environmentally	
cleared	Downtown	Rail	Extension	Project	(DTX)	

SF	Peninsula	Rail	Program:	A	program	of	projects	comprised	of	the	DTX	and	Related	
Projects	

Related	Projects:		Pennsylvania	Avenue	Extension	(PAX),	Railyards	Development,	and	22nd	
St	Station	Study	

Regional	and	State	Rail	Efforts:	Related	regional	and	state	rail	efforts	including	the	ongoing	
development	of	Caltrain	and	CHSRA	programs,	the	State	Rail	Plan,	New	Transbay	Rail	
Crossing,	and	others,	including	any	future	regional	rail	planning	or	funding	programs	

Ready-for-Procurement:	All	work	in	planning	and	engineering	is	advanced	to	a	level	
consistent	with	the	contract(s)	delivery	method(s),	has	completed	all	required	planning	
and	National	Environmental	Policy	Act/California	Environmental	Quality	Act,	and	
applicable	other	permit/approval	requirements,	has	secured	necessary	funding,	has	
obtained	or	identified	Right-of-Way	and/or	easements	and	permits,	and	is	ready	to	proceed	
to	bid.	

2. Purpose:

The	Partners	recognize	that	the	DTX	is	a	critical	rail	link	in	the	Bay	Area,	mega-region,	and	
state	transportation	system	and	that	it	will	be	more	efficiently	and	effectively	developed	
through	a	multi-agency	partnership	among	local,	regional,	and	state	stakeholder	agencies	
with	expertise	in	developing,	funding,	and	implementing	major	infrastructure	projects.		

The	Partners	also	recognize	that	–	and	nothing	in	this	MOU	is	intended	to	imply	otherwise	
– state	law	and	the	TJPA’s	2001	Joint	Powers	Agreement	(as	amended)	currently	provide
that	the	TJPA	has	primary	jurisdiction	over	and	will	implement	all	aspects	of	the	DTX	that
will	connect	the	new	Salesforce	Transit	Center	(STC)	to	the	regional	rail	system.

19



FINAL – 3 Apr 20 

2 

This	MOU	describes	a	new	organizational	structure	that	will	support	the	efforts	of	the	TJPA	
in	the	development	of	the	DTX	to	a	Ready-for-Procurement	status	and	would	make	direct	
recommendations	to	the	TJPA	Board	based	on	a	set	of	activities	outlined	below.		These	
activities	will	be	undertaken	by	an	integrated	multi-agency	project	team,	comprised	of	
senior	staff	of	the	signatory	agencies	to	this	agreement,	as	shown	in	Attachment	1,	who	will	
oversee	the	Work	Program	shown	in	Attachment	2.		

3. Structure

The	new	organizational	structure	described	by	this	MOU	is	summarized	below	and	
depicted	in	the	Organization	Charts	in	Attachment	3.	

	Executive	Steering	Committee	(ESC):	

By	virtue	of	this	MOU,	an	Executive	Steering	Committee	(ESC)	will	be	instituted	to	support	
the	TJPA	in	project	development	efforts	for	the	DTX	as	described	in	Attachment	2,	and	
empowered	to	implement	this	MOU.	The	ESC	is	responsible	for	making	recommendations	
to	the	TJPA	Board	regarding	the	scope	of	efforts	under	this	MOU.	The	TJPA	Board	will	
maintain	its	ultimate	authority	over	the	DTX.	Accordingly,	it	may	accept	or	reject	
recommendations	of	the	ESC,	and	it	may	act	in	the	absence	of	a	recommendation	from	the	
ESC.		

The	ESC	will	consist	of	the	executives	(or	their	designee)	of	the	TJPA,	MTC,	SFCTA,	Caltrain,	
CHSRA,	and	the	CCSF	(for	CCSF	the	executive	will	be	the	Mayor	or	her	designee).	The	initial	
and	alternate	members	of	the	ESC	are	named	on	Attachment	1.	Each	Partner	may	change	
its	appointment	to	the	ESC	by	providing	written	notice	to	the	ESC.	The	ESC	will	meet	at	
least	monthly,	sufficiently	in	advance	of	the	TJPA	Board’s	regularly	scheduled	meetings	that	
the	ESC	will	have	an	opportunity	to	provide	a	progress	update	or	to	present	items	to	the	
TJPA	Board;	a	majority	of	authorized	representatives	shall	constitute	quorum.	The	ESC	will	
elect	a	Chair	and	Vice-Chair	as	a	first	order	of	business.	At	the	request	of	the	TJPA	Board	
Chair,	the	ESC	Chair	or	Vice-Chair	will	report	to	the	TJPA	Board	on	a	monthly	basis	on	the	
status	of	the	program.	The	ESC	will	be	responsible	for	the	DTX	work	program	as	
summarized	in	Attachment	2,	which	specifies	which	elements	of	the	DTX	work	program	
must	be	brought	to	the	TJPA	Board	for	information	and/or	approval.	The	ESC	will	also	help	
resolve	conflicting	areas	of	work	among	the	Partners.	While	the	ESC	will	attempt	to	reach	
consensus,	it	will	make	recommendations	to	the	TJPA	Board	by	a	majority	vote	of	the	
representatives	present.	The	ESC	may	also	serve	as	a	coordinating	forum	for	the	SF	
Peninsula	Rail	Program	and	other	relevant	regional	or	statewide	rail	system	planning	and	
development	efforts.		

Integrated	Program	Management	Team	(IPMT):	

For	the	DTX	Rail	Program,	the	ESC	will	be	supported	by	an	IPMT	consisting	of	
representatives	with	relevant	experience	in	large	complex	projects	from	each	of	the	
Partners,	as	designated	by	their	corresponding	executive.	In	addition,	the	IPMT	may	also	be	
supplemented	with	relevant	qualified	personnel	from	within	their	own	agencies	or	their	
supporting	consultancy	organizations.		

20



FINAL – 3 Apr 20 

3 

	Project	Director	(PD):	

The	PD	should	have	proven	leadership,	organizational	acumen	and	relevant	experience	in	
delivering	all	aspects	of	mega	rail	projects	and	tunneling.		The	ESC,	or	a	sub-committee	
thereof,	will	recruit	and	recommend	a	short	list	of	the	PD	candidates	to	the	TJPA	Board	for	
final	selection.	The	TJPA	prefers	that	the	PD	be	a	TJPA	employee	or	direct	consultant.	
However,	the	TJPA	may	also	consider	PD	candidates	as	a	consultant	seconded	to	the	TJPA	
through	one	of	the	Partners;	in	such	case,	a	separate	agreement	between	the	TJPA	and	the	
Partner	would	be	required.	The	PD	will	lead	the	IPMT.		

The	PD	will	report	to	his/her	hiring	entity	for	purposes	of	administrative	matters	and	
report	to	the	ESC	for	purposes	of	coordination	of	the	IPMT.	The	PD	will	coordinate	the	
IPMT	in	its	development	of	recommendations	to	present	to	the	TJPA	Board	as	to	the	
delivery	of	the	Work	Program	(Attachment	2).	The	PD	will	be	responsible	for	the	day-to-
day	management	of	those	portions	of	the	DTX	work	program	identified	for	TJPA	to	lead,	
reporting	on	those	matters	to	the	TJPA’s	Executive	Director.	The	PD	shall	also	be	
responsible	for	directing	TJPA	DTX	staff	and	consultants	as	needed.	To	the	extent	another	
Partner	is	identified	as	assuming	a	lead	role	for	portions	of	the	DTX	work	program,	that	
Partner	will	be	responsible	for	day-to-day	management	of	its	tasks.	

The	PD	will	coordinate	with	other	IPMT	members	leading	other	tasks,	as	well	as	with	the	
SF	Peninsula	Rail	program	of	projects.	The	PD	may	also	coordinate	with	other	relevant	
Regional	and	State	Rail	Projects	as	needed.		

4. Scope/Responsibilities

SF	Peninsula	Rail	Program	Group	of	Projects:	

The	DTX	is	part	of	a	set	of	regional	rail	projects	within	San	Francisco	that	will	provide	
valuable	connectivity	for	the	Bay	Area	and	mega-region	rail	network.1		A	subset	of	these,	
called	“Related	Projects”	for	the	purpose	of	this	MOU,	is	covered	under	a	separately	
executed	San	Francisco	4th/King	Railyard	MOU	(Railyards	MOU)2,	which	describes	
cooperative	planning	and	project	development	activities	for	the	Related	Projects.	

Whereas	the	DTX	Rail	Program	will	be	managed	as	described	in	this	MOU,	the	Related	
Projects	are	coordinated	in	accordance	with	the	Railyards	MOU	and	managed	according	to	
their	own	responsible	agency’s	individual	governance.	For	the	Related	Projects,	the	ESC	
will	serve	in	an	advisory	and	supporting	role.		

While	the	Partners	recognize	that	coordinating	activities	can	improve	their	planning	and	
delivery	in	order	to	maximize	public	benefit	for	the	region	as	a	whole,	the	Partners	confirm	

1 Additional regional rail system planning, and coordination is being undertaken for potential BART 
and standard gauge Transbay rail crossings with BART, Capitol Corridor, Caltrain and the California 
State Transportation Agency (CalSTA). 
2San Francisco 4th/King Railyard MOU dated June 3, 2019 between Caltrain, Prologis, 
CCSF/SFCTA, and TJPA 

21



FINAL – 3 Apr 20 

4 

that	each	project	within	the	SF	Peninsula	Rail	Program	has	independent	utility	from	every	
other	project.				

Summary	of	Work	Elements	Under	this	MOU:	

DTX	Rail	Program:	

The	following	are	the	main	activities	that	comprise	the	DTX	work	program.	

DTX	Project	Development	--	anticipated	activities	include,	but	are	not	limited	to,	
developing	a	phasing	strategy	that	addresses	both	Caltrain	and	CHSRA	needs,	
conducting	industry	reviews,	performing	design	of	the	phased	project	to	a	level	that	
will	allow	for	a	reliable	bottom-up	cost	estimate,	updating	the	right-of-way	plan,	
conducting	robust	risk	assessment,	implementation	planning,	and	developing	the	
project	delivery	strategy	to	advance	the	DTX	to	a	Ready-for-Procurement	status.		

Coordination	for	Regional	Planning	and	Funding—	this	effort	will	focus	on	
articulating	the	regional	context	for	the	DTX	and	integrating	the	planning	and	funding	
of	the	DTX	with	broader	regional,	mega-regional,	statewide	plans,	and	funding	
programs.	This	includes	helping	to	design	and	advance	DTX	funding	strategies	and	
analyzing	implementation	options	in	coordination	with	other	regional	and	statewide	
entities	and	efforts.		

A	Summary	Work	Program	is	attached	(Attachment	2)	that	includes	detailed	
description	of	the	roles	and	responsibilities	for	each	participating	agency.	The	
Summary	Work	Program	consists	of	the	following	main	tasks,	for	which	the	ESC	will	
develop	recommendations	to	the	TJPA	Board	for	decision:	

• Establish	and	Initiate	New	Management	Structure

• Define	a	Fundable	and	Deliverable	Initial	Phase	of	the	DTX	Project

• Select	the	Project	Delivery	Strategy

• Undertake	a	Governance	and	Oversight	Review

• Prepare	for	Procurement

Select	work	elements	under	the	Railyards	MOU:	

Pennsylvania	Avenue	Extension	(PAX)–	Led	by	the	SFCTA,	this	project	will	perform	
scoping	and	pre-environmental	engineering	to	affect	an	underground	rail	grade	
separation	at	16th	Street	and	Mission	Bay	Drive	by	means	of	a	tunnel	following	the	
general	alignment	of	Pennsylvania	Avenue,	with	a	special	focus	on	the	interface	with	
the	DTX	at	4th/Townsend	rail	station	and	the	transition	to	the	mainline	at	its	southern	
end.	

4th	and	King	Railyard	Studies	–	Led	by	Caltrain,	in	coordination	with	Prologis,	Inc.	(the	
property	owner),	this	project	will	perform	studies	to	determine	Caltrain’s	needs	
within	San	Francisco,	develop	railyard	alternatives,	determine	storage,	service,	

22



FINAL – 3 Apr 20 

5 

station,	and	maintenance	requirements,	among	others,	in	accordance	with	the	
agreement	set	forth	in	the	Railyards	MOU	for	the	possible	development	of	the	
railyard.	

22nd	Street	Station	Study	–	Led	by	SF	Planning,	in	close	coordination	with	Caltrain,	this	
project	will	study	the	options	for	improving	or	relocating	the	current	22nd	Street	
Station.	

Railyard	Site	Land	Use	and	Development	Study	–	Led	by	Prologis,	Inc.,	this	work	will	
examine	the	feasibility	of	various	development	options	at	the	4th	and	King	railyards;	
options	will	consider	DTX,	PAX,	and/or	the	undergrounding	of	some	or	all	of	the	
current	railyard.	

5. External	Resources	and	Engagement:

The	Partners	will	work	together	to	identify	the	necessary	resources	to	support	their	
respective	activities	to	carry	out	the	DTX	work	program.	Some	agencies’	budgets	have	
identified	sources,	while	others	are	to	be	confirmed.	Within	two	months	after	signing	the	
MOU,	the	Partners	will	develop	a	more	detailed	work	plan,	identify	a	budget	for	the	total	
resource	requirement	(staffing	and	contractor)	for	each	agency	and	in	total,	and	confirm	
funding	sources.	Notwithstanding	the	above,	this	MOU	commits	the	Partners	to	consider	
providing	funding	or	resources,	but	does	not	commit	any	Partner	to	provide	any	resources	
other	than	those	the	agency	already	has	funded	and	programmed	to	support	DTX	or	to	
provide	any	funding.	

These	resources	may	include,	among	others,	on-call	consultants	and	legal	counsel.	Actual	
staffing	and	support	from	each	agency	will	be	based	on	their	designated	roles	and	
responsibilities.	This	MOU	commits	the	Partners	to	participation	in	the	ESC/IMPT	process	
but	does	not	constitute	a	commitment	of	financial	resources.	

The	Partners	recognize	that	other	state,	regional	and	local	government	agencies,	such	as	
BART,	Capitol	Corridor,	California	State	Transportation	Agency,	and	Caltrans,	have	an	
interest	in	and/or	expertise	regarding	the	matters	contemplated	in	the	Summary	Work	
Program.	Accordingly,	the	Partners	agree	to	work	collaboratively	to	engage	those	agencies	
as	appropriate	during	implementation	of	the	Summary	Work	Program.	

6. Work	Plan:

A	Summary	Work	Program,	delineating	the	scope	of	efforts	to	be	executed	under	this	MOU,	
is	attached	(Attachment	2).	Once	the	MOU	is	executed	and	the	ESC	and	IPMT	instituted,	the	
first	order	of	business	will	be	the	development	of	a	comprehensive	Work	Plan,	for	
presentation	and	approval	by	the	TJPA	Board,	building	upon	the	activities	of	the	Summary	
Work	Program.		The	Detailed	Work	Plan	will	detail	all	the	necessary	tasks,	their	
relationships,	schedule,	and	responsible	Partner	to	take	the	project	to	start	of	construction.	
The	Detailed	Work	Plan	should	be	completed	within	2	months.	

23



FINAL – 3 Apr 20 

6 

As	defined	in	the	Summary	Work	Program,	the	ESC	will	work	to	develop	an	initial	
operating	phase	that	provides	the	necessary	capacity	to	operate	a	reliable	blended	system	
to	the	Salesforce	Transit	Center	at	the	earliest	practicable	date	and	with	consideration	of	
reasonably	available	funding.	Any	proposed	initial	operating	phase	recommended	by	the	
ESC	must	have	prior	concurrence	of	Caltrain	and	CHSRA	members	of	the	ESC.	

7. NEPA/CEQA:

Any	recommendations	regarding	modifications	to	the	DTX	resulting	from	the	work	under	
the	MOU	is	intended	to	be	consistent	with	and	not	require	any	material	modification	of	the	
existing	DTX	NEPA/CEQA	documentation.	

8. Funding:

The	Partners	recognize	that	Federal	funding	programs	require	demonstration	of	strong	
local	financial	capacity	and	commitment	and	intend	to	collaborate	on	strengthening	project	
funding	plans.		

9. Principles	for	Collaboration:

• Follow	the	decision-making	processes	and	communication	models	established	by
the	ESC	and	IPMT

• Share	information	and	resources	to	assist	with	the	successful	and	timely	completion
of	tasks	and	follow-on	studies

• Respond	and	provide	input	within	agreed-upon	response	times

• Design	meetings	as	small	working	sessions	and	provide	appropriate	staff	to	focus	on
the	outcomes	required,	in	accordance	with	the	roles	and	responsibilities	established
in	the	attached	Summary	Work	Program

• Seek	to	make	decisions	by	consensus	when	possible,	by	majority	vote	otherwise

10. Policy	Recommendations:

Policy	recommendations	of	the	ESC	to	the	TJPA	Board	for	the	DTX	will	require	majority	
support	of	the	ESC.	Policy	recommendations	are	expected	to	include,	but	are	not	limited	to:	

• Phasing	Plan	for	the	Initial	Operating	Segment

• Adoption	of	a	new	Funding	Plan

• Project	Delivery	Plan,	including	ROW	acquisition	plan,	project	delivery	method(s),
contracting	strategy

• Final	institutional	arrangement	for	project	delivery	through	initial	operating
segment	as	proposed	in	the	Summary	Work	Program

• Significant	design	decisions

24



FINAL – 3 Apr 20 

7 

11. No	Adjudication	of	Rights:

The	MOU	does	not	adjudicate	legal	rights	with	respect	to	the	development	of	the	DTX	or	
provide	the	Partners	with	any	rights	with	respect	to	the	revenues	derived	therefrom.		

12. Other	MOUs:

The	Partners	acknowledge	that	there	are	other	agreements	already	entered	into	by	the	
Partners	or	which	may	be	entered	in	the	future	related	to		the	SF	Peninsula	Rail	Program,	
including	but	not	limited	to	operating	and	maintenance	agreements	between	the	TJPA	(or	
another	entity	designated	to	carry	out	the	DTX)	and	Caltrain	and	the	California	High-Speed	
Rail	Authority;	MOU	between	the	TJPA	the	Federal	Railroad	Administration	related	to	the	
allocation	of	$400	million	for	the	construction	of	the	train	box	at	the	STC;	and	the	Railyards	
MOU.	This	MOU	is	separate	from	and	does	not	modify	or	replace	any	other	MOU	or	other	
agreement	between	the	Partners	regarding	the	DTX.	

13. Term

13.1	The	term	of	this	MOU	shall	be	36	months	or	when	the	DTX	reaches	Ready-for-
Procurement	status,	whichever	is	earlier.		

13.2	The	Partners	may	amend,	conclude	or	extend	this	MOU	by	mutual	agreement;	such	
agreement	shall	be	evidenced	in	writing.	Notwithstanding	the	foregoing,	the	TJPA	may	
terminate	this	MOU	in	its	discretion	by	action	of	the	TJPA	Board;	prior	to	any	such	
proposed	termination,	the	TJPA	shall	meet	and	confer	with	the	other	Partners	in	a	good	
faith	effort	to	resolve	any	concerns	and	avoid	the	need	for	termination.	Any	other	Partner	
may	withdraw	from	this	MOU	in	its	discretion,	following	a	meet	and	confer	with	the	other	
Partners	in	a	good	faith	effort	to	resolve	any	concerns	and	avoid	the	need	for	withdrawal.

14	General	Conditions	

14.1	 Each	Partner	will	conduct	its	activities	under	this	MOU	in	accordance	with	
applicable	federal,	state,	and	local	laws,	regulations,	and	standards.	

14.2	 Each	Partner	will	ensure	that	personnel	assigned	by	it	to	conduct	activities	under	
this	MOU	are	appropriately	qualified	or	licensed	to	the	perform	the	tasks	assigned	to	them.	

14.3	 Each	Partner	will	hold	all	administrative	drafts	and	administrative	final	reports,	
studies,	materials,	and	documentation	relied	upon,	produced,	created,	or	utilized	for	the	
activities	under	this	MOU	in	confidence	to	the	extent	permitted	by	law.	Where	applicable,	
the	provisions	of	California	Government	Code	section	6254.5(e)	shall	protect	the	
confidentiality	of	such	documents	in	the	event	that	said	documents	are	shared	between	the	
Partners.	The	Partners	will	not	distribute,	release,	or	share	said	documents	with	anyone	
other	than	employees,	agents,	and	consultants	who	require	access	to	complete	the	
activities	under	this	MOU	without	the	written	consent	of	the	Partner	authorized	to	release	

25



FINAL – 3 Apr 20 

8 

them,	unless	required	and	authorized	to	do	so	by	law.	If	a	Partner	receives	a	public	records	
request	pertaining	to	activities	under	this	MOU,	that	Partner	will	notify	the	other	Partners	
within	five	(5)	working	days	of	receipt	and	make	the	other	Partners	aware	of	any	intent	to	
disclose	public	documents.	The	Partners	will	consult	with	each	other	prior	to	the	release	of	
any	public	documents	or	statements	related	to	the	activities	under	this	MOU.	Nothing	
herein	shall	require	any	Partner	to	waive	any	attorney-client	privileges	or	other	
protections	it	otherwise	has	a	right	to	assert.	

14.4	 The	Partners	do	not	intend	this	MOU	to	create	a	third- party beneficiary	or	define	
duties,	obligations,	or	rights	in	parties	not	signatory	to	this	MOU.	

14.5	 The	Partners	will	not	assign	or	attempt	to	assign	their	rights	or	obligations	under	
this	MOU	to	parties	not	signatory	to	this	MOU	without	an	amendment	to	this	MOU.	 	

14.6	 The	following	documents	are	Attachments	hereto:	

Attachment	1:	Initial	members	of	the	ESC		
Attachment	2:	Summary	DTX	Rail	Program	-	Work	Program	
Attachment	3:	Organization	Chart	

IN	WITNESS	WHEREOF,	the	Partners	have	executed	this	MOU	as	of	the	date	first	written	
above.	

Transbay	Joint	Powers	Authority	

By:	______________________________________	
TJPA	Board	Chair	

Address:	

Metropolitan	Transportation	Commission	

By:	______________________________________	

Address:	

San	Francisco	County	Transportation	
Authority	

By:	______________________________________	

Address:	

Peninsula	Corridor	Joint	Powers	Board	

By:	______________________________________	

Address:	

26



  FINAL – 3 Apr 20 

9 
 

	
California	High	Speed	Rail	Authority		
	
	
	
By:	______________________________________	
	
Address:	
	

	
City	and	County	of	San	Francisco	
	
	
	
	By:	______________________________________	
	
Address:	

	

 

27



DTX	MOU	Attachment	1		
Initial	ESC	and	IPMT	Membership	

		 	 	

Executive	Steering	Committee	 Member	 Alternate	

Caltrain	 Jim	Harnett	 Michelle	Bouchard	

CCSF	 Paul	Supawanich	 TBD	

CHSRA	 Boris	Lipkin	 Simon	Whitehorn	

MTC/BATA	 Andrew	Fremier	 Lisa	Klein	

TJPA	 Mark	Zabaneh	 Erin	Roseman	

SFCTA	 Tilly	Chang	 Eric	Cordoba	
	 	 	

	 	 	
Integrated	Program	Management	Team	 	 	

Caltrain	 Sebastian	Petty	 Anthony	Simmons	

CCSF	 Doug	Johnson	 Anna	Harvey	

CHSRA	 Simon	Whitehorn	 Paul	Hebditch	

MTC/BATA	 Stephen	Wolf	 Trish	Stoops	

TJPA	 TBD	 TBD	

SFCTA	 Eric	Cordoba	 Luis	Zurinaga	
	 	 	

	

28



A
tt

a
c
h

m
e
n

t 
2
: 

D
T

X
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

 W
o

rk
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 F
IN

A
L

 V
7
  

3
-3

1-
2
0
 

1
 

 

 
R

o
le

s 
an

d
 R

es
p

o
n

si
b
ili

ti
es

 
 

L
ea

d
: 
A

ge
n

cy
 r

es
p

o
n

si
b

le
 f

o
r 

ex
ec

u
ti

n
g 

th
e 

ta
sk

 
 C

o
-L

ea
d

: 
A

ge
n

ci
es

 j
o
in

tl
y 

re
sp

o
n

si
b
le

 f
o
r 

ex
ec

u
ti

n
g 

  
  
  
  

th
e 

ta
sk

 
 C

o
n
cu

r:
 A

ge
n

cy
 t

h
at

 m
u
st

 s
ig

n
 o

ff
 o

n
 d

el
iv

er
ab

le
s 

  
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

: 
A

ge
n

cy
 t

h
at

 w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e 
in

p
u
t 

an
d
 

as
si

st
an

ce
 t

o
 L

ea
d

 
 C

o
n
su

lt
ed

: 
A

ge
n

cy
 t

h
at

 m
u
st

 b
e 

in
fo

rm
ed

 a
n
d
 

co
n

su
lt

ed
 b

y 
L

ea
d

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
a
sk

 
N

o
 

T
a
sk

 
S
u

b
-t

a
sk

 D
e
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

C
a
lt

ra
in

 
C

C
S
F

 
C

H
S
R

A
 

M
T

C
/

B
A

T
A

 
S
F

C
T

A
 

T
JP

A
 

T
o

 T
JP

A
 

B
o

a
rd

 
F

o
r 

A
. 

E
st

a
b

li
sh

 a
n

d
 I

n
it

ia
te

 N
ew

 M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
u

c
tu

re
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
E

st
ab

li
sh

 E
xe

cu
ti

v
e 

S
te

er
in

g 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

(E
S
C

) 
an

d
 I

n
te

gr
at

ed
 P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
T

ea
m

 (
IP

M
T

),
 

id
en

ti
fy

 r
es

o
u
rc

es
 a

n
d

 d
ev

el
o

p
 a

 s
ta

ff
in

g 
p
la

n
. 

(a
)D

ev
el

o
p
 M

O
U

 
(b

)D
ev

el
o
p
 S

u
m

m
ar

y 
W

o
rk

 P
ro

gr
am

 
(c

) 
D

ef
in

e 
ro

le
s 

an
d
 r

es
p
o
n
si

b
ili

ti
es

 
  

(d
) 

D
et

er
m

in
e 

st
af

fi
n
g 

le
v
el

s 
fo

r 
IP

M
T

 f
ro

m
 

p
ar

ti
ci

p
at

in
g 

ag
en

ci
es

 

C
o
n
cu

r 
C

o
n
cu

r 
C

o
n
cu

r 
C

o
n
cu

r 
L

ea
d

 
C

o
n
cu

r 
R

ep
o

rt
in

g
 

2 
E

S
C

 a
n

d
 I

P
M

T
 P

ro
gr

am
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
 

(a
) 

E
xe

cu
te

 a
n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
en

t 
tr

an
si

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e 

n
ew

 
st

ru
ct

u
re

 a
n
d
 a

gr
ee

m
en

ts
 

(b
) 

O
n

go
in

g 
o
v
er

si
gh

t 
an

d
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
o
f 

th
e 

p
ro

gr
am

  
(c

) 
M

an
ag

e 
k
ey

 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
es

 t
o
 a

d
d
re

ss
 i
ss

u
es

 
(d

) 
C

o
o
rd

in
at

e 
w

it
h
 o

th
er

 r
eg

io
n
al

 a
n
d
 s

ta
te

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
(e

.g
. 

B
A

R
T

/
C

ap
it

o
l 
C

o
rr

id
o
r 

o
n
 t

h
e 

d
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t 

o
f 

th
e 

N
ew

 
T

ra
n
sb

ay
 R

ai
l 
C

ro
ss

in
g 

an
d
 S

ta
te

 R
ai

l 
P

la
n
) 

 

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
R

ep
o

rt
in

g
 

3 
R

ec
ru

it
 P

ro
gr

am
 D

ir
ec

to
r 

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
L

ea
d

 
A

p
p

ro
v
al

 

4 
C

o
o

rd
in

at
e 

w
it

h
 P

ro
je

ct
 I

n
it

ia
ti

o
n
 p

h
as

e 
o
f 

th
e 

P
en

n
sy

lv
an

ia
 A

v
en

u
e 

E
xt

en
si

o
n

 (
P

A
X

) 
(a

) 
In

te
rf

ac
e 

w
it

h
 P

A
X

 p
re

-e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

en
ta

l 
en

gi
n
ee

ri
n
g 

an
d
 f

u
n
d
in

g 
p
er

m
it

ti
n
g,

 e
n
vi

ro
n
m

en
ta

l 
st

u
d
ie

s.
 

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
L

ea
d

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
R

ep
o

rt
in

g
 

5 
C

o
o

rd
in

at
e 

w
it

h
 o

th
er

 S
F

 P
en

in
su

la
 R

ai
l 
P

ro
gr

am
 

co
m

p
o

n
en

ts
  

(a
) C

o
o
rd

in
at

e 
w

it
h
 R

ai
ly

ar
d
s 

D
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t 

p
la

n
n
in

g 
(p

er
 

R
ai

ly
ar

d
s 

M
O

U
) 

an
d
 2

2
n
d
 S

tr
ee

t 
S
ta

ti
o
n
 s

tu
d

y 
le

d
 b

y 
S
F

 P
la

n
n
in

g
 

(b
) 

C
o
o
rd

in
at

e 
w

it
h
 B

A
R

T
/
C

C
JP

A
 o

n
 p

o
te

n
ti

al
 t

h
ro

u
gh

 
ru

n
n
in

g 
o
f 

co
n
v
en

ti
o
n
al

 r
ai

l 
se

rv
ic

es
 

 

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
L

ea
d

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
R

ep
o

rt
in

g
 

6 
D

ev
el

o
p

 a
 c

o
m

p
re

h
en

si
v
e 

W
o

rk
 P

la
n
, 
b
u
ild

in
g 

u
p

o
n

 t
h

e 
ac

ti
v
it

ie
s 

o
f 

th
is

 S
u
m

m
ar

y 
W

o
rk

 
P

ro
gr

am
. 
T

h
e 

D
et

ai
le

d
 W

o
rk

 P
la

n
 w

ill
 d

es
cr

ib
e 

al
l 

th
e 

n
ec

es
sa

ry
 t

as
k
s,

 t
h

ei
r 

re
la

ti
o

n
sh

ip
s,

 s
ch

ed
u
le

, 
an

d
 r

es
p

o
n

si
b

le
 p

ar
ty

 t
o

 t
ak

e 
th

e 
p
ro

je
ct

 t
o
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
. 
(t

ar
ge

t 
co

m
p

le
ti

o
n

: 
w

it
h
in

 2
 m

o
n
th

s)
  

(a
) 

Id
en

ti
fy

 a
ll 

ta
sk

s,
 i
n
cl

u
d
in

g 
p
ro

gr
am

m
at

ic
 

d
o
cu

m
en

ta
ti

o
n
 (

P
M

P
 a

n
d
 a

ss
o
ci

at
ed

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

p
la

n
s 

an
d
 c

ri
te

ri
a)

, 
a 

p
ro

je
ct

 p
h
as

in
g 

st
u
d
y 

an
d

 b
u
si

n
es

s 
ca

se
 

an
al

ys
is

; 
b
ra

n
d
in

g,
 p

la
n
n
in

g 
an

d
 f

u
n
d
in

g 
p
la

n
s;

 o
u
tr

ea
ch

 
an

d
 s

ta
k
eh

o
ld

er
 e

n
ga

ge
m

en
t;

 q
u
al

it
at

iv
e 

an
d

 q
u
an

ti
ta

ti
v
e 

ri
sk

 a
n
al

ys
es

, 
co

n
st

ru
ct

ab
ili

ty
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

n
d

 i
n
d

u
st

ry
 r

ev
ie

w
; 

C
o
n
cu

r 
   

C
o
n
cu

r 
C

o
n
cu

r 
C

o
n
cu

r 
C

o
n
cu

r 
L

ea
d

 
A

p
p

ro
v
al

 

29



A
tt

a
c
h

m
e
n

t 
2
: 

D
T

X
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

 W
o

rk
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 F
IN

A
L

 V
7
  

3
-3

1-
2
0
 

2
 

 

p
ro

je
ct

 d
el

iv
er

y 
p
la

n
; 
an

d
 o

th
er

 t
as

ks
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 t
o
 b

ri
n
g 

th
e 

D
T

X
 R

ai
l 
P

ro
gr

am
 t

o
 b

id
,  

an
d
 a

ss
ig

n
 r

es
p
o
n
si

b
ili

ti
es

 
 (

b
) 

D
et

er
m

in
e 

st
af

fi
n
g 

le
v
el

s,
 b

u
d
ge

ts
 a

n
d

 f
u
n
d

in
g 

fo
r 

d
el

iv
er

in
g 

th
e 

ta
sk

s 
(c

) 
D

ev
el

o
p
 a

 M
as

te
r 

S
ch

ed
u
le

 

T
a
sk

 
N

o
 

T
a
sk

 
S
u

b
-t

a
sk

 D
e
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

C
a
lt

ra
in

 
C

C
S
F

 
C

H
S
R

A
 

M
T

C
/

B
A

T
A

 
S
F

C
T

A
 

T
JP

A
 

T
o

 T
JP

A
 

B
o

a
rd

 
F

o
r 

7 
D

ev
el

o
p

 a
 r

e-
b

ra
n

d
in

g 
st

ra
te

gy
 t

o
 r

ep
o
si

ti
o
n
 t

h
e 

D
T

X
 R

ai
l 
P

ro
gr

am
 

D
ev

el
o
p
 a

 p
la

n
 f

o
r 

re
-b

ra
n
d
in

g 
o
f 

th
e 

P
ro

gr
am

 w
it

h
 

u
p
d
at

ed
 g

ra
p
h
ic

s 
an

d
 m

es
sa

gi
n
g 

b
as

ed
 o

n
 e

co
n
o
m

ic
 

b
en

ef
it

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
re

gi
o
n
, 
st

at
e,

 a
n
d
 n

at
io

n
  

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
cu

r 
L

ea
d

 
A

p
p

ro
v
al

 

8 
P

er
fo

rm
 p

u
b

li
c 

o
u
tr

ea
ch

 b
y 

en
ga

gi
n
g 

ex
te

rn
al

 
st

ak
eh

o
ld

er
s,

 a
d
v
o

ca
cy

 g
ro

u
p

s,
 a

n
d
 t

h
e 

p
u
b
li
c 

at
 

la
rg

e,
 a

n
d

 p
er

fo
rm

 p
u
b

li
c 

o
u
tr

ea
ch

 

(a
) 

D
ev

el
o
p
 e

xt
er

n
al

 o
u
tr

ea
ch

 p
la

n
 

(b
) 

C
o
n
d
u
ct

 p
u
b
li
c 

o
u
tr

ea
ch

 
(c

) 
C

o
n
d
u
ct

 a
d
v
o
ca

cy
 g

ro
u
p
 o

u
tr

ea
ch

  
(d

) 
M

ai
n
ta

in
 c

le
ar

 r
ec

o
rd

s 
o
f 

st
ak

eh
o
ld

er
 e

n
ga

ge
m

en
t 

(e
) 

C
o
o
rd

in
at

e 
w

it
h
 a

d
ja

ce
n
t 

d
ev

el
o
p
m

en
ts

, r
el

at
ed

 a
n
d

 
in

te
rc

o
n

n
ec

te
d
 p

la
n
s 

an
d
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

b
y 

o
th

er
 a

ge
n
ci

es
, 
su

ch
 

as
 T

ra
n
sb

ay
 r

ai
l 
p
la

n
n
in

g
, 
an

d
 s

ta
k
eh

o
ld

er
 b

u
si

n
es

s 
p
la

n
s 

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
L

ea
d

 
R

ep
o

rt
in

g
 

B
. 
 

D
e
fi

n
e
 a

 F
u

n
d

a
b

le
 a

n
d

 D
e
li

ve
ra

b
le

 I
n

it
ia

l 
P

h
a
se

 o
f 

th
e 

D
T

X
 P

ro
je

c
t 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

9 
D

ev
el

o
p

 o
p

er
at

io
n

al
 p

la
n

s 
fo

r 
n

ea
r-

te
rm

 a
n
d
 l
o
n
g
-

te
rm

 r
ai

l 
o

p
er

at
io

n
s 

at
 t

h
e 

S
T

C
 

(a
) 

D
ev

el
o
p
 a

 c
o
n
so

lid
at

ed
 s

et
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e 
as

su
m

p
ti

o
n
s 

(b
) 

D
ev

el
o
p
 o

p
er

at
io

n
al

 o
b
je

ct
iv

es
, t

im
et

ab
le

s,
 t

ra
ck

 
u
sa

ge
, a

n
d
 p

la
tf

o
rm

 d
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n
. 

(c
) 

P
er

fo
rm

 a
ll
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 m
o
d
el

in
g,

 i
n
cl

u
d

in
g 

p
er

tu
rb

at
io

n
 a

n
al

ys
is

, 
to

 a
ss

u
re

 r
el

ia
b
le

, s
m

o
o
th

 
o
p
er

at
io

n
s 

at
 t

h
e 

S
T

C
 a

n
d
 t

h
e 

P
en

in
su

la
 

C
o
-L

ea
d

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
-L

ea
d

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
R

ep
o

rt
in

g
 

1
0 

C
o

n
d

u
ct

 p
la

n
n

in
g 

fo
r 

D
T

X
  

  

(a
) 

Id
en

ti
fy

 t
h
e 

fu
ll 

ex
te

n
t 

o
f 

th
e 

S
al

es
fo

rc
e 

T
ra

n
si

t 
C

en
te

r 
u
se

rs
, 
cu

rr
en

tl
y 

p
la

n
n
ed

 a
n
d
 f

u
tu

re
, 
d

ir
ec

t 
an

d
 

in
d
ir

ec
t,

 a
n
d
 e

xi
st

in
g 

re
le

v
an

t 
p
la

n
s 

an
d

 s
tu

d
ie

s 
(b

) 
p
er

fo
rm

 r
id

er
sh

ip
 f

o
re

ca
st

s,
 a

n
d
 c

o
o
rd

in
at

e 
w

it
h
 

C
al

tr
ai

n
 a

n
d
 C

H
S
R

 b
as

ed
 o

n
 t

h
ei

r 
cu

rr
en

t/
u
p
d

at
ed

 
B

u
si

n
es

s 
P

la
n
s;

 t
ra

n
si

t 
u
se

rs
; 
an

d
, N

ew
 T

ra
n
sb

ay
 

C
ro

ss
in

g 
b
as

ed
 o

n
 2

0
18

 S
ta

te
 R

ai
l 
P

la
n
, 
re

gi
o
n
al

 r
ai

l 
p
la

n
, 

an
d
 c

u
rr

en
t 

B
A

R
T

/
C

C
JP

A
 p

la
n
n
in

g 
st

u
d

y 

C
o
n
cu

r 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
cu

r 
C

o
n
cu

r 
L

ea
d

 
C

o
n
cu

r 
R

ep
o

rt
in

g
 

 
 

30



A
tt

a
c
h

m
e
n

t 
2
: 

D
T

X
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

 W
o

rk
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 F
IN

A
L

 V
7
  

3
-3

1-
2
0
 

3
 

 

T
a
sk

 
N

o
 

T
a
sk

 
S
u

b
-t

a
sk

 D
e
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

C
a
lt

ra
in

 
C

C
S
F

 
C

H
S
R

A
 

M
T

C
/

B
A

T
A

 
S
F

C
T

A
 

T
JP

A
 

T
o

 T
JP

A
 

B
o

a
rd

 
F

o
r 

1
1 

P
er

fo
rm

 t
ec

h
n

ic
al

 s
tu

d
ie

s 
an

d
 d

es
ig

n
 t

o
 r

e-
d
ef

in
e 

an
d

 d
el

iv
er

 a
 D

T
X

 i
n

it
ia

l 
o

p
er

at
in

g 
p
h
as

e 
as

 s
o
o
n
 

as
 p

o
ss

ib
le

  

(a
) 

E
n
gi

n
ee

ri
n
g 

st
u
d
ie

s 
to

 a
ch

ie
v
e 

p
ro

je
ct

 r
e-

d
ef

in
it

io
n
 a

n
d

 
in

it
ia

l 
o
p
er

at
in

g 
p
h
as

e 
 (

b
) 

U
ti

liz
in

g 
in

p
u
t 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e 

o
p
er

at
io

n
al

 p
la

n
s 

d
ev

el
o
p
ed

 
u
n
d
er

 t
as

k 
9
, p

er
fo

rm
 d

em
an

d
 v

s 
ca

p
ac

it
y 

sc
en

ar
io

 a
n
al

ys
is

 
o
v
er

 t
im

e 
an

d
 s

id
e-

b
y-

si
d
e 

co
m

p
ar

is
o
n
 o

f 
o
p
ti

o
n
s 

in
 t

er
m

s 
o
f 

b
en

ef
it

s 
(e

co
n
o
m

ic
, 
ri

d
er

s,
 h

o
u
si

n
g,

 e
tc

.)
, 
co

st
s,

 
sc

h
ed

u
le

s,
 o

p
er

at
io

n
s,

 e
tc

. 
(c

) 
P

er
fo

rm
 d

es
ig

n
 o

f 
th

e 
p
h
as

ed
 p

ro
je

ct
 t

o
 a

 l
ev

el
 t

h
at

 w
ill

 
al

lo
w

 f
o
r 

th
e 

re
lia

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e 
ta

sk
s 

b
el

o
w

 
(d

) 
D

ev
el

o
p
 d

et
ai

le
d
 c

o
st

 e
st

im
at

es
, s

ch
ed

u
le

s,
 a

n
d

 
ex

te
n
si

v
e 

ri
sk

 r
eg

is
te

r 
an

d
 a

n
al

ys
is

 b
as

ed
 o

n
 s

tr
u
ct

u
re

d
 

w
o
rk

sh
o
p
s,

 i
n
cl

u
d
in

g 
ri

sk
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
p
ro

gr
am

 a
n
d

 
in

d
ep

en
d
en

t 
re

v
ie

w
s 

(e
) 

D
ev

el
o
p
 p

la
n
s 

fo
r 

u
ti

lit
y 

re
lo

ca
ti

o
n
s 

an
d

 R
O

W
 

ac
q
u
is

it
io

n
 r

eq
u
ir

em
en

ts
, 
in

cl
u
d
in

g 
ri

sk
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d
 

in
su

ra
n
ce

 p
la

n
s,

 e
ar

ly
 w

o
rk

s 
p
ac

k
ag

es
, 
an

d
 t

h
ir

d
-p

ar
ty

 
ag

re
em

en
ts

 a
s 

n
ee

d
ed

 
(f

) 
R

es
o
lv

e 
cr

it
ic

al
 o

p
er

at
io

n
al

 i
ss

u
es

 f
o
r 

al
l 
u
se

rs
 o

f 
th

e 
in

it
ia

l 
o
p
er

at
in

g 
p
h
as

e,
 c

o
n
d
u
ct

 o
p
er

at
io

n
al

 a
n
al

ys
is

, a
n
d
 

co
o
rd

in
at

e 
o
p
er

at
o
rs

' p
la

n
s 

an
d
 r

eq
u
ir

em
en

ts
 

C
o
n
cu

r 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
cu

r 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
cu

r 
L

ea
d

 
A

p
p

ro
v
al

 

1
2 

P
re

p
ar

e 
a 

p
re

fe
rr

ed
 P

h
as

in
g 

P
la

n
 c

o
n
fo

rm
in

g 
w

it
h

 t
ec

h
n

ic
al

 s
tu

d
ie

s 
an

d
 p

o
li
cy

 d
ir

ec
ti

o
n
 o

n
 

re
al

is
ti

c 
am

o
u
n

ts
/

ti
m

in
g 

o
f 

fu
n

d
in

g 
an

d
 

st
ak

eh
o

ld
er

 d
el

iv
er

y 
d
at

e 
ex

p
ec

ta
ti

o
n
s 

-w
it

h
 a

n
 

ex
p
li
ci

t 
go

al
 t

o
 d

el
iv

er
 r

ai
l 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 t
h
e 

S
T

C
 a

s 
so

o
n

 a
s 

p
o

ss
ib

le
 

(a
) 

U
ti

liz
in

g 
in

p
u
t 

fr
o
m

 t
as

k
s 

9
, 1

0
, 
11

 a
n
d

 1
3
, p

re
p
ar

e 
R

ai
l 

P
ro

gr
am

 p
h
as

in
g 

o
p
ti

o
n
s 

in
 r

es
p
o
n
se

 t
o
 r

ai
l 
se

rv
ic

e 
sc

en
ar

io
s,

 f
u
n
d
in

g 
so

u
rc

es
 a

n
d
 a

v
ai

la
b
ili

ty
, 
an

d
 s

ta
k
eh

o
ld

er
 

re
q
u
ir

em
en

ts
 

(b
) 

D
ev

el
o
p
 d

et
ai

le
d
 r

is
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d

 a
ss

u
ra

n
ce

 p
la

n
s 

in
cl

u
d
in

g 
o
w

n
er

sh
ip

, 
st

af
fi

n
g,

 i
n
d
ep

en
d
en

t 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

ad
vi

so
r 

/
 i
n
d
ep

en
d
en

t 
en

gi
n
ee

r,
 a

n
d
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
p
ro

ce
ss

es
 

(c
) 

D
ev

el
o
p
 B

u
si

n
es

s 
C

as
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

p
h
as

ed
 p

ro
je

ct
  

(d
) 

R
ev

is
it

 D
et

ai
le

d
 W

o
rk

 P
la

n
 t

o
 a

ss
u
re

 c
o
m

p
at

ib
il
it

y 
w

it
h
 

p
re

fe
rr

ed
 p

h
as

in
g 

p
la

n
 

C
o
n
cu

r 
C

o
n
cu

r 
C

o
n
cu

r 
C

o
n
cu

r 
C

o
n
cu

r 
L

ea
d

 
A

p
p

ro
v
al

 

 
1
3 

D
ev

el
o

p
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
fi

rm
 F

u
n

d
in

g 
P

la
n
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

fo
r 

th
e 

D
T

X
 R

ai
l 
P

ro
gr

am
 b

as
ed

 o
n
 a

ch
ie

v
ab

le
 

fu
n

d
in

g 
as

su
m

p
ti

o
n

s 
an

d
 s

ec
u
ri

n
g 

ad
eq

u
at

e 
ca

p
it

al
 f

u
n

d
in

g 
an

d
 O

&
M

 r
ev

en
u
es

 e
n
o
u
gh

 f
o
r 

th
e 

in
it

ia
l 
p

h
as

e 

(a
) 

D
ev

el
o
p
 f

u
n
d
in

g 
p
la

n
 f

o
r 

co
n
st

ru
ct

io
n
 a

n
d

 o
p
er

at
io

n
s,

 
in

te
r-

ag
en

cy
 r

es
p
o
n
si

b
il
it

ie
s,

 s
ec

u
ri

n
g 

co
m

m
it

m
en

ts
, 

sc
h
ed

u
le

 o
f 

av
ai

la
b
ili

ty
, 
an

d
 t

as
k
s 

to
 e

n
te

r 
F

T
A

 f
u
n
d
in

g 
p
ro

ce
ss

 
(b

) 
C

o
n
d
u
ct

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

o
f 

h
ig

h
/
 l
o
w

 c
o
n
fi

d
en

ce
 s

o
u
rc

es
 

o
f 

fu
n
d
in

g 
w

it
h
 f

o
cu

s 
o
n
 f

u
n
d
in

g 
in

it
ia

l 
o
p
er

at
in

g 
p
h
as

e 
an

d
 f

u
n
d
in

g 
st

ra
te

gy
 o

f 
su

b
se

q
u
en

t 
p
h
as

es
 

(c
) 

D
ev

el
o
p
 n

ew
/
in

n
o
v
at

iv
e 

fu
n
d
in

g 
an

d
 f

in
an

ci
n
g 

so
u
rc

es
 

in
cl

u
d
in

g 
jo

in
t 

d
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t 

(e
.g

., 
R

ai
ly

ar
d

s)
 e

n
ab

le
d
 b

y 
p

ro
je

ct
 r

e-
d
ef

in
it

io
n
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

(d
) 

D
ev

el
o
p
 f

u
n
d
in

g 
p
la

n
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

fo
r 

o
p
er

at
io

n
s 

p
h
as

e,
 

in
cl

u
d
in

g
 f

u
n
d
in

g 
ag

re
em

en
ts

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
it

m
en

ts
 t

o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 
in

it
ia

l 
o
p
er

at
in

g 
p
h
as

e 
o
p
er

at
in

g 
co

st
s 

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n

cu
r 

L
ea

d
 

C
o
n
cu

r 
A

p
p

ro
v
al

 

 
 

31



A
tt

a
c
h

m
e
n

t 
2
: 

D
T

X
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

 W
o

rk
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 F
IN

A
L

 V
7
  

3
-3

1-
2
0
 

4
 

 

T
a
sk

 
N

o
 

T
a
sk

 
S
u

b
-t

a
sk

 D
e
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

C
a
lt

ra
in

 
C

C
S
F

 
C

H
S
R

A
 

M
T

C
/

B
A

T
A

 
S
F

C
T

A
 

T
JP

A
 

T
o

 T
JP

A
 

B
o

a
rd

  
F

o
r 

1
4 

P
re

p
ar

e 
th

e 
p

ro
je

ct
 t

o
 e

n
te

r 
th

e 
fe

d
er

al
 N

ew
 

S
ta

rt
s 

P
ro

gr
am

  
(a

)D
ev

el
o
p
 a

ll 
th

e 
d
o
cu

m
en

ta
ti

o
n
 r

eq
u
ir

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
F

T
A

 t
o
 

en
te

r 
th

e 
N

ew
 S

ta
rt

s 
P

ro
gr

am
 

(b
) 

E
n
ga

ge
 w

it
h
 t

h
e 

F
T

A
 t

o
 d

ev
el

o
p
 a

 r
o
ad

 m
ap

 t
o
 t

h
e 

F
u
ll 

F
u

n
d
in

g 
G

ra
n
t 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

C
o
n
cu

r 
C

o
n
cu

r 
C

o
n
cu

r 
C

o
n
cu

r 
C

o
n
cu

r 
L

ea
d

 
R

ep
o

rt
 o

n
 

p
ro

gr
es

s 
an

d
 

ap
p

ro
v
al

 o
f 

fi
n

al
 

d
o

cu
m

en
ts

 

C
. 

  
S

e
le

c
t 

th
e 

P
ro

je
c
t 

D
e
li

ve
ry

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1
5 

C
o

n
d

u
ct

 i
n

d
u
st

ry
 o

u
tr

ea
ch

 t
o

 v
al

id
at

e 
co

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 m
et

h
o

d
o

lo
gy

 a
n

d
 c

o
n
tr

ac
ti

n
g 

st
ra

te
gy

 

C
o
n
d
u
ct

 m
ar

k
et

 s
o
u
n
d
in

g 
th

ro
u
gh

 e
n
ga

ge
m

en
t 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

in
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 i
n
d
u
st

ry
 a

n
d
 u

p
d
at

e 
th

e 
q
u
al

it
at

iv
e 

d
el

iv
er

y 
o
p
ti

o
n
s 

an
al

ys
is

 p
re

v
io

u
sl

y 
co

m
p
le

te
d
. 

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
L

ea
d

 
R

ep
o

rt
 

1
6 

D
ev

el
o

p
 a

 p
ro

je
ct

 d
el

iv
er

y 
an

d
 c

o
n
tr

ac
ti

n
g 

st
ra

te
gy

 
(a

) 
 A

n
al

yz
e 

p
ro

je
ct

 d
el

iv
er

y 
o
p
ti

o
n
s 

an
al

ys
is

 b
as

ed
 o

n
 a

 
b
u
si

n
es

s 
ca

se
 a

n
d
 r

is
k
-a

d
ju

st
ed

 f
in

an
ci

al
 a

n
al

ys
is

, i
n
cl

u
d

in
g 

in
p
u
t 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e 

m
ar

k
et

 s
o
u
n
d
in

g 
 

(b
) 

A
n
al

yz
e 

le
ga

l 
fr

am
ew

o
rk

 a
n
d
 i
ss

u
es

 f
o
r 

d
el

iv
er

y 
o
p
ti

o
n
s,

 
p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t,
 a

n
d
 d

ev
el

o
p
m

en
t 

o
f 

co
n
tr

ac
ts

 
(c

) 
D

ev
el

o
p
 a

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 i
m

p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n
 r

o
ad

m
ap

 i
n
cl

u
d

in
g 

a 
p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t 
an

d
 c

o
n
tr

ac
ti

n
g 

p
la

n
, 
ri

sk
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
p
la

n
, 

an
d
 o

rg
an

iz
at

io
n
al

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts
 

(d
) 

C
o
n
d
u
ct

 w
o
rk

sh
o
p
s 

to
 a

ll
o
ca

te
 r

is
k 

b
as

ed
 o

n
 r

is
k 

an
al

ys
is

 
p
er

fo
rm

ed
 u

n
d
er

 t
as

ks
 a

b
o
v
e,

 a
n
d
 d

ev
el

o
p
 a

n
al

ys
is

 a
n
d

 p
la

n
s 

fo
r 

in
su

ra
n
ce

 
 (

e)
  

S
co

p
e 

p
re

-p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t 
en

gi
n
ee

ri
n
g 

an
d

 e
ar

ly
 w

o
rk

s 
co

n
tr

ac
ts

 t
ai

lo
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e 

d
el

iv
er

y 
o
p
ti

o
n
s 

 

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
cu

r 
C

o
-L

ea
d

 
C

o
-L

ea
d

 
A

p
p

ro
v
al

 

1
7 

D
ev

el
o

p
 a

n
 O

&
M

 p
la

n
 w

it
h

 r
o

le
s 

an
d
 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

ie
s 

(a
) P

re
p
ar

e 
a 

20
-y

ea
r 

fi
n
an

ci
al

 p
la

n
 f

o
r 

O
p

er
at

io
n
s 

an
d
 

M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
  

(b
) 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
n
d
 i
d
en

ti
fy

 t
h
e 

o
w

n
er

sh
ip

 a
n
d

 g
o
v
er

n
an

ce
 o

f 
p
ro

je
ct

 e
le

m
en

ts
 f

o
r 

co
n
st

ru
ct

io
n
, 
o
p
er

at
io

n
s,

 a
n
d

 
m

ai
n
te

n
an

ce
 

(c
) 

D
ev

el
o
p
 a

n
d
 e

xe
cu

te
 a

gr
ee

m
en

ts
 f

o
r 

O
p

er
at

io
n
s 

an
d

 
M

ai
n
te

n
an

ce
 

C
o
n
cu

r 
C

o
n
su

lt
ed

 
C

o
n
cu

r 
 

C
o
n
cu

r 
C

o
n
cu

r 
L

ea
d

 
A

p
p

ro
v
al

 

D
. 

U
n

d
e
rt

a
k

e
 a

 G
o

ve
rn

a
n

c
e 

a
n

d
 O

ve
rs

ig
h

t 
R

e
vi

ew
 a

n
d

 T
ra

n
si

ti
o

n
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1
8 

E
xp

lo
re

 t
h

e 
b

es
t 

in
st

it
u
ti

o
n

al
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
t 

an
d
 

go
v
er

n
an

ce
 f

o
r 

th
e 

d
el

iv
er

y 
o

f 
th

e 
D

T
X

 R
ai

l 
P

ro
gr

am
 t

h
ru

 c
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 a
n

d
 m

ak
e 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

to
 T

JP
A

 B
o

ar
d

 

(a
) 

D
et

ai
le

d
 s

tu
d
y 

to
 i
d
en

ti
fy

 t
h
e 

go
v
er

n
an

ce
 s

tr
u
ct

u
re

 t
o
 

en
ab

le
 s

ta
k
eh

o
ld

er
 a

lig
n
m

en
t,

 e
ff

ec
ti

v
e 

m
eg

a-
p
ro

je
ct

 d
el

iv
er

y,
 

o
v
er

si
gh

t,
 i
n
d
ep

en
d
en

t 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

ad
v
ic

e,
 a

n
d

 a
ss

u
ra

n
ce

  
(b

)S
tr

es
s-

te
st

 o
p

ti
o
n
s 

to
 m

ax
im

iz
e 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

F
ed

er
al

, 
S
ta

te
, 
an

d
 R

eg
io

n
al

 f
u
n
d
in

g 
as

 a
 P

ro
je

ct
 o

f 
R

eg
io

n
al

 a
n
d

 
N

at
io

n
al

 S
ig

n
if

ic
an

ce
. 
R

ec
o
m

m
en

d
 g

o
v
er

n
an

ce
/

p
ro

je
ct

 
d
el

iv
er

y 
st

ru
ct

u
re

 f
o
r 

d
el

iv
er

y 
(c

) 
D

ev
el

o
p
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
st

ru
ct

u
re

, 
b
ri

ef
s 

w
it

h
 r

o
le

s 
an

d
 

re
sp

o
n
si

b
il
it

ie
s,

 s
ta

ff
in

g 
q
u
al

if
ic

at
io

n
s,

 r
ep

o
rt

in
g 

an
d

 
co

m
m

u
n
ic

at
io

n
 p

ro
to

co
ls

, 
co

n
tr

ac
ti

n
g,

 a
n
d

 s
ta

ff
in

g 
p
la

n
 

(d
) 

C
o
n
d
u
ct

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

w
it

h
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

, 
ec

o
n
o
m

ic
, 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

, 
fi

n
an

ci
al

, 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ca

se
s 

an
d

 c
o
n
si

d
er

 

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 
C

o
-L

ea
d

 
C

o
-L

ea
d

 
C

o
n
cu

r 
A

p
p

ro
v
al

 

32



A
tt

a
c
h

m
e
n

t 
2
: 

D
T

X
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

 W
o

rk
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 F
IN

A
L

 V
7
  

3
-3

1-
2
0
 

5
 

 

re
sp

o
n
si

b
il
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

O
&

M
 o

f 
n
ew

 t
ra

ck
ag

e 
an

d
 t

h
e 

ra
il 

p
o
rt

io
n
 

o
f 

S
T

C
 

(e
) 

D
ev

el
o
p
 o

u
tc

o
m

e-
b
as

ed
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

n
d

 s
o
u
rc

in
g 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

sy
st

em
, 
re

gi
m

e 
o
f 

K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 I
n
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
(K

P
Is

),
 a

n
d
 s

ta
ge

-g
at

ed
 d

ec
is

io
n

-m
ak

in
g 

p
ro

to
co

ls
 

T
a
sk

 
N

o
 

T
a
sk

 
S
u

b
-t

a
sk

 D
e
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

C
a
lt

ra
in

 
C

C
S
F

 
C

H
S
R

A
 

M
T

C
/

B
A

T
A

 
S
F

C
T

A
 

T
JP

A
 

T
o

 T
JP

A
 

B
o

a
rd

 
F

o
r 

1
9
.  

S
el

ec
t 

le
ad

 a
ge

n
cy

 f
o

r 
C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
. 
S
h
o
u
ld

 a
n
 

al
te

rn
at

e 
st

ru
ct

u
re

 b
e 

ad
o

p
te

d
 b

y 
th

e 
T

JP
A

 B
o
ar

d
 

as
 a

 r
es

u
lt

 o
f 

th
e 

ab
o

v
e 

ta
sk

, 
ef

fe
ct

 t
ra

n
si

ti
o
n
 t

o
 

fi
n

al
 i
n

st
it
u
ti

o
n

al
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
t 

an
d
 o

rg
an

iz
at

io
n

 

E
xe

cu
ti

o
n
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n
 o

f 
T

as
k
 1

8 
o
u
tc

o
m

es
 i
n
 

co
o
rd

in
at

io
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e 

se
le

ct
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

 d
el

iv
er

y 
m

et
h
o
d

. 
C

o
n
cu

r 
C

o
n
cu

r 
C

o
n
cu

r 
C

o
n
cu

r 
C

o
n
cu

r 
L

ea
d

 
A

p
p

ro
v
al

 

E
. 

 
P

re
p

a
re

 f
o

r 
P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

2
0 

S
ta

rt
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t 

ta
sk

s 
as

 a
p

p
li
ca

b
le

 b
as

ed
 o

n
 

fi
n

al
 i
n

st
it
u
ti

o
n

al
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t,
 s

el
ec

te
d
 p

ro
je

ct
 

d
el

iv
er

y 
m

et
h

o
d

, 
an

d
 s

co
p

in
g
 

(a
) 

F
in

al
iz

e 
P

la
n
s,

 S
p
ec

if
ic

at
io

n
s,

 a
n
d
 E

st
im

at
es

 (
P

S
&

E
) 

to
 

th
e 

le
v
el

 r
eq

u
ir

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
co

n
tr

ac
ti

n
g 

st
ra

te
gy

 a
n
d
 d

el
iv

er
y 

m
et

h
o
d
(s

) 
 

(b
) 

D
ev

el
o
p
 d

ra
ft

 C
o
m

m
er

ci
al

 T
er

m
s 

an
d

 C
o
n
d

it
io

n
s 

as
 

ap
p
ro

p
ri

at
e 

fo
r 

ea
ch

 c
o
n
tr

ac
t 

(c
) 

C
o
n
d
u
ct

 a
d
d
it

io
n
al

 i
n
d
u
st

ry
 o

u
tr

ea
ch

 t
o
 c

re
at

e 
in

te
re

st
 

an
d
 c

re
at

e 
a 

co
m

p
et

it
iv

e 
en

v
ir

o
n
m

en
t 

(d
) 

D
ev

el
o
p
 d

ra
ft

 b
id

 d
o
cu

m
en

ts
 f

o
r 

ea
ch

 c
o
n
tr

ac
t 

 

C
o
n
cu

r 
C

o
n
cu

r 
C

o
n
cu

r 
C

o
n
cu

r 
C

o
n
cu

r 
 L

ea
d
 

R
ep

o
rt

 o
n

 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

A
p

p
ro

v
al

 t
o

 
b

eg
in

 
p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t 

   

33



AT
TA

CH
M

EN
T 

3A

SF
 P

en
in

su
la

 
Ra

il 
Pr

og
ra

m
In

te
gr

at
ed

 T
ea

m

TJ
PA

 B
O

A
R

D
TJ

PA
 B

O
A

R
D

TJ
PA

 B
O

A
R

D
R

EG
IO

N
A

L 
PL

A
N

N
IN

G
 &

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

 C
O

O
R

D
IN

A
TI

O
N

 
— 

M
TC

 / 
BA

TA

TJ
PA

M
TC

 / 
BA

TA
SF

C
TA

Ca
ltr

ai
n

C
H

SR
A

C
C

SF

E
X

EC
U

TI
V

E 
ST

EE
R

IN
G

 C
O

M
M

IT
TE

E*

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
D

ire
ct

or
s o

r D
es

ig
ne

es
of

 th
e 

M
O

U
 P

ar
tn

er
s

co
or

di
na

tio
n,

 a
dv

ic
e,

 a
nd

 su
pp

or
t o

nl
y

go
ve

rn
ed

 b
y 

Ra
ily

ar
d 

M
O

U

4T
H

 &
 K

IN
G

R
A

IL
YA

R
D

 S
TU

D
IE

S

C
al

tra
in

22
N

D
 S

TR
E

E
T

ST
A

TI
O

N
 S

TU
D

Y

SF
 P

la
nn

in
g

PE
N

N
SY

LV
A

N
IA

 A
V

E
.

E
X

TE
N

SI
O

N

SF
C

TA

D
TX

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

D
E

V
E

LO
PM

E
N

T

TJ
PA

SF
C

TA

PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 / 
FU

N
D

IN
G

C
O

O
R

D
IN

A
TI

O
N

BA
RT

Ca
pi

to
l C

or
rid

or

Ca
lS

TA

Ca
ltr

an
s

E
X

 O
FF

IC
IO

ST
A

TE
 A

N
D

LO
C

A
L 

PA
R

TN
ER

S

O
ne

 R
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e

Fr
om

 E
ac

h 
Pa

rt
ne

r

Le
d 

by
 th

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t D
ire

ct
or

IN
TE

G
R

A
TE

D
PR

O
G

R
A

M
 M

A
N

A
G

EM
EN

T 
TE

A
M

*

(P
ro

je
ct

 D
ire

ct
or

 re
po

rt
s t

o 
TJ

PA
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 fo
r T

JP
A

-le
d 

ta
sk

s)

* 
C

on
sis

te
nt

 w
ith

 a
nd

 li
m

ite
d 

to
 th

e 
Su

m
m

ar
y 

W
or

k 
Pr

og
ra

m
 (A

tta
ch

m
en

t 2
) d

efi
ne

d 
by

 th
e 

Sa
n 

Fr
an

ci
sc

o 
Pe

ni
ns

ul
a 

Ra
il 

Pr
og

ra
m

 M
O

U
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 T

JP
A 

Bo
ar

d 
on

 A
pr

il 
9,

 2
02

0

34



O
ut

sid
e 

Le
ga

l C
ou

ns
el

C
on

su
lta

nt
s

Bo
ar

d 
Se

cr
et

ar
y

Se
ni

or
 P

ro
gr

am
M

an
ag

er
Se

ni
or

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
M

an
ag

er

Se
ni

or
 D

es
ig

n
& 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g

M
an

ag
er

C
hi

ef
 

of
 S

ta
ff

C
hi

ef
 F

in
an

ci
al

O
ffi

ce
r

Fa
ci

lit
y

D
ire

ct
or

C
hi

ef
 S

ec
ur

ity
O

ffi
ce

r

TJ
PA

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 is

 a
 m

em
be

r
C

ha
ir 

an
d 

Vi
ce

 C
ha

ir 
re

po
rt

 re
gu

la
rly

 to
 T

JP
A 

Bo
ar

d 

E
X

EC
U

TI
V

E 
ST

E
E

R
IN

G
 C

O
M

M
IT

TE
E*

C
ha

ire
d 

by
 D

TX
 P

ro
je

ct
 D

ire
ct

or
(P

ro
je

ct
 D

ire
ct

or
 re

po
rt

s t
o 

TJ
PA

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 fo

r T
JP

A
-le

d 
ta

sk
s)

IN
TE

G
R

A
TE

D
PR

O
G

R
A

M
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T 
TE

A
M

*

TJ
PA

 B
O

A
R

D
TJ

PA
 B

O
A

R
D

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
D

ire
ct

or
Pu

bl
ic

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

O
ffi

ce
r /

 C
om

m
un

ity
O

ut
re

ac
h

AT
TA

CH
M

EN
T 

3B

TJ
PA

 
D

TX
 M

O
U

 
St

ru
ct

ur
e 

(Il
lu

st
ra

tiv
e 

pu
rp

os
es

 o
nl

y)

* 
C

on
sis

te
nt

 w
ith

 a
nd

 li
m

ite
d 

to
 th

e 
Su

m
m

ar
y 

W
or

k 
Pr

og
ra

m
 (A

tta
ch

m
en

t 2
) d

efi
ne

d 
by

 th
e 

Sa
n 

Fr
an

ci
sc

o 
Pe

ni
ns

ul
a 

Ra
il 

Pr
og

ra
m

 M
O

U
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 T

JP
A 

Bo
ar

d 
on

 A
pr

il 
9,

 2
02

0

35



Page 1 of 4 

Memorandum 

AGENDA ITEM 5

DATE:  April 3, 2020 

TO:  Transportation Authority Board 

FROM:  Eric Cordoba – Deputy Director for Capital Projects 

SUBJECT:  04/14/20 Board Meeting: Authorize the Executive Director to Execute a 
Memorandum of Understanding with the Transbay Joint Powers Authority (TJPA) 
the Metropolitan Transportation Commission, the Peninsula Corridor Joint 
Powers Board, the California High Speed Rail Authority and the City and County 
of San Francisco for the Establishment of a New Organizational Structure that Will 
Support the Efforts of the TJPA in the Development of the Downtown Rail 
Extension to a Ready-for-Procurement Status 

RECOMMENDATION ☐ Information ☒ Action

• Authorize the Executive Director to execute a
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the TJPA, the
Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), the
Peninsula Corridor Joint Powers Board (PCJPB), the
California High Speed Rail Authority (CHSRA), and the City
and County of San Francisco (CCSF) for the establishment
of a new organizational structure that will support the
efforts of the  TJPA in the development of the Downtown
Rail Extension (DTX) to a ready-for-procurement status

SUMMARY 

At the request of the Board, we convened an expert panel 
(Panel) to review current and best practices for governance, 
oversight, management, funding, and project delivery for the 
DTX. The Panel presented its final recommendations to the 
Board on October 22, 2019. Over the last several months, we 
have taken the lead in the development of the subject MOU 
with the major partner agencies for the implementation of 
most of the Panel’s recommendations. The TJPA is scheduled 
to consider approval of the MOU at a special meeting on April 
9. Consistent with guidance from Chair Peskin, consideration
of the Prop K allocation to the TJPA to continue DTX design
activities, a separate item at the April 14 Transportation
Authority Board meeting, is contingent upon TJPA approval of
the subject MOU.

☐ Fund Allocation

☐ Fund Programming

☐ Policy/Legislation

☐ Plan/Study

☒ Capital Project
Oversight/Delivery

☐ Budget/Finance

☒ Contract/Agreement

☐ Other:
___________________

36



Agenda Item 5 Page 2 of 4 

BACKGROUND 

On October 23, 2018, the Transportation Authority Board unanimously voted to suspend the 
Prop K funding agreement with the TJPA for the DTX project. Recognizing the local and 
regional significance of the project, the technical and institutional complexity, the high price 
tag, and limited funding identified to date, the Board commissioned a review of current and 
best practices for governance, oversight, management, funding, and project delivery of the 
DTX project. To that effect, staff convened a multidisciplinary panel composed of industry 
experts. The effort consisted of research of best practices and lessons learned from other 
megaprojects, expert and stakeholder interviews, and a series of workshops, with 
participation by key stakeholders: PCJPB or Caltrain, CHSRA, TJPA, MTC, A/C Transit, the SF 
Mayor’s Office, SF Planning, the San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency, and 
Transportation Authority staff. We also sought input from TJPA’s Citizens Advisory 
Committee, Friends of DTX, SPUR, the California State Transportation Agency and 
BART/Capitol Corridor staff on the work ahead.  

The Panel presented its final recommendations to the Board on October 22, 2019. The 
recommendations proposed actions in the areas of rail program re-positioning, funding, 
project delivery, and governance and oversight. The Panel proposed that certain activities 
need to take place over the next two years to better position the project for success, 
regardless of the governance and oversight structures chosen. To that effect they developed 
a work program that summarizes the activities necessary for the implementation of the 
recommendations. This effort will re-envision the DTX program; identify the governing entity 
and organization with a clear mandate and capability to implement it; and select a project 
delivery method.  

Transportation Authority staff have presented updates on the MOU to the TJPA’s Citizens 
Advisory Committee and TJPA Executive Director Zabaneh provided a briefing on the MOU 
to the TJPA Board on March 12.  The TJPA Board will consider approving the MOU at a 
special meeting on April 9, which is why we are bringing this item forward now. 

DISCUSSION 

The attached MOU describes a new organizational structure that will support the efforts of the 
TJPA in the development of the DTX project to a ready-for-procurement status and make 
direct recommendations to the TJPA Board, based on a set of activities outlined therein. 
These activities will be undertaken by an integrated multi-agency project team, comprised of 
senior staff of the signatory agencies to the agreement, over a period of up to 3 years, 
following approval of the MOU by all partners.  

An Executive Steering Committee (ESC) will be instituted to support the TJPA in project 
development efforts for the DTX in accordance with the MOU, the ESC will make  
recommendations to the TJPA Board regarding the scope of efforts and key decisions 
outlined in the MOU. The TJPA Board will maintain its ultimate authority over the DTX and, 

37



Agenda Item 5 Page 3 of 4 

accordingly, it may accept or reject recommendations of the ESC, and it may act in the 
absence of a recommendation from the ESC.  

The ESC will consist of the executives (or their designee) of the signatory partnering agencies. 
The ESC will meet at least monthly, sufficiently in advance of the TJPA Board’s regularly 
scheduled meetings that the ESC will have an opportunity to provide a progress update or to 
present items to the TJPA Board. The ESC will be responsible for the DTX work program as 
summarized in Attachment 2 of the MOU, which specifies which elements of the DTX work 
program must be brought to the TJPA Board for information and/or approval. The ESC will 
guide the work of the Integrated Project Management Team (IPMT)(see below) and also help 
resolve conflicting areas of work among the partners. The ESC may also serve as a 
coordinating forum for the San Francisco Peninsula Rail Program and other relevant regional 
or statewide rail system planning and development efforts.  

The ESC will be supported by an IPMT consisting of representatives with relevant experience 
in large complex projects from each of the partners, as designated by their corresponding 
executive. In addition, the IPMT may also be supplemented with relevant qualified personnel 
from within their own agencies or their supporting consultancy organizations. The IPMT will 
be led by a new Project Director, who may be a TJPA employee or consultant, or a consultant 
seconded by any of the partners. The Project Director should have proven leadership, 
organizational acumen and relevant experience in delivering all aspects of mega rail projects 
and tunneling.  

The Project Director will be responsible for the day-to-day management of those portions of 
the DTX work program identified for TJPA to lead, reporting on those matters to the TJPA’s 
Executive Director. The Project Director shall also be responsible for directing TJPA DTX staff 
and consultants as needed. To the extent another partner is identified as assuming a lead role 
for portions of the DTX work program, that partner will be responsible for day-to-day 
management of its tasks. 

The Project Director will coordinate with other IPMT members leading other tasks, as well as 
with the San Francisco Peninsula Rail program of projects and other relevant regional and 
state rail projects as needed. The Project Director will report to the ESC for purposes of 
coordinating the work of the IPMT.  

Attachment 1 to the MOU names the Initial members of the ESC and IPMT. Attachment 2 to 
the MOU is the Summary Work Program, which describes the tasks and subtasks to be 
performed under the MOU and assigns responsibilities for their execution. It will be the basis 
for a detailed work plan to be developed by the IPMT as the first order of business upon the 
execution of the MOU. Finally, Attachment 3 to the MOU contains conceptual Organization 
Charts depicting the relationships in for the rail program (3a) and the TJPA organization for 
the project (3b). 

38



Agenda Item 5 Page 4 of 4 

Next Steps.  Based on recent meetings with partner agencies, we anticipate that following 
TJPA and Transportation Authority approval of the subject  MOU, the other partner agencies 
will execute the MOU over the next few months.  Pending the Transportation Authority Board 
approval of the two related funding requests on this April 14 Board agenda, we will continue 
to refine the DTX work program with TJPA and the other partner agencies. We may bring a 
subsequent set of funding requests to the Board to fund the work of partner agencies which 
would be reimbursable, once the Regional Measure 3 bridge toll program funds are 
available.  

FINANCIAL IMPACT  

The MOU commits the partners to consider providing funding or resources, but does not 
commit any partner to provide any resources other than those the agency already has funded 
and programmed to support DTX or to provide any funding. Therefore, approving the MOU 
does not create a financial impact. However, a Prop K allocation request to fund the first 18 
months of the TJPA portion of the program, together with an appropriation request to fund 
the Transportation Authority’s participation and oversight, will be presented to the Board as a 
separate item on the April 14 agenda. 

CAC POSITION 

None. The March 25 CAC meeting was cancelled in light of the local health emergency 
related to the COVID-19 pandemic.  

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIALS 

• Attachments: San Francisco Peninsula Rail Program MOU
1. List of initial members of the ESC and IPMT
2. Summary Work Program
3. Organizational Charts

39



[ this page intentionally left blank ]

40



BD041420 RESOLUTION NO. 20-49 

Page 1 of 5 

RESOLUTION ALLOCATING $11,906,558, WITH CONDITIONS, FOR DOWNTOWN 

RAIL EXTENSION – PHASING AND PARTIAL 15% DESIGN AND APPROPRIATE 

$2,636,109 IN PROP K SALES TAX FUNDS FOR RAIL PROGRAM OVERSIGHT AND 

PROJECT DEVELOPMENT SUPPORT 

WHEREAS, In late 2019, The Transportation Authority convened an expert 

panel review of the governance, oversight, management, funding, and project 

delivery of the Downtown Rail Extension (DTX), which resulted in a series of 

recommendations presented to the Transportation Authority Board on October 22, 

2019; and  

WHEREAS, To implement those recommendations, Transportation Authority 

staff, together with other major stakeholders, developed the San Francisco Peninsula 

Rail Program Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) which proposes a new 

management structure and defines a work program for the development of the 

project to ready-for-procurement status; and 

WHEREAS, The Transportation Authority has received the two requests for a 

total of $14,542,667 in Prop K local transportation sales tax funds, as summarized in 

Attachments 1 and 2 and detailed in the attached allocation request forms; and 

WHEREAS, The requests seek funds from the DTX to a Rebuilt Transbay 

Terminal category of the Prop K Expenditure Plan and will provide funding to cover 

the Transbay Joint Powers Authority and Transportation Authority’s respective 

involvement for the first eighteen months of the implementation of the work program 

defined in the aforementioned MOU; and 

WHEREAS, The adopted Prop K Strategic plan has funds programmed to the 

named projects such as DTX to a Rebuilt Transbay Terminal, which have no 

requirement for adoption of a 5-Year Prioritization Program (5YPP); and 

WHEREAS, The Prop K Strategic Plan establishes that all remaining funds for 

41



BD041420 RESOLUTION NO. 20-49 

Page 2 of 5 

the DTX to a Rebuilt Transbay Terminal, beyond those already programmed for 

Phase 1, shall be for construction of Phase 2 (DTX); and 

WHEREAS, Funding the two requests requires a concurrent Prop K Strategic 

Plan amendment to reprogram $8.7 million in de-obligated funds and advance $5.8 

million in out year Prop K funds to Fiscal Year 2019/20 to the subject requests in the 

DTX to a Rebuilt Transbay Terminal category; and 

WHEREAS, The requested Strategic Plan amendment would result in a 

decrease (-0.9%) to the assumed level of financing costs due to the de-obligated 

funds being reprogrammed at a less aggressive cash flow schedule than originally 

programmed; and 

WHEREAS, After reviewing the requests, Transportation Authority staff 

recommended allocating $11,906,558, with conditions, and appropriating 

$2,636,109 in Prop K Sales Tax funds for the two requests, as described in 

Attachment 3 and detailed in the attached allocation request forms, which include 

staff recommendations for Prop K allocation and appropriation amounts, required 

deliverables, timely use of funds requirements, special conditions, and Fiscal Year 

Cash Flow Distribution Schedules; and 

WHEREAS, There are sufficient funds in the Capital Expenditures line item of 

the Transportation Authority’s approved Fiscal Year 2019/20 budget to cover the 

proposed actions; and 

WHEREAS, Following discussion of the subject requests at the April 14, 2020 

Transportation Authority Board meeting, recognizing that the DTX is one of the 

largest regional transportation projects in the Bay Area, that it is predominantly 

funded at this stage by San Francisco, and in light of the importance of supporting 

San Francisco employment and workers during the COVID-19 pandemic, the Board 

amended the staff recommendation to add the following special condition to both of 

the subject requests: “Any procurements funded wholly or partially by this Prop K 

42



BD041420 RESOLUTION NO. 20-49 

Page 3 of 5 

grant shall be consistent with the City and County of San Francisco's Local Business 

Enterprise Program, local hire policies, and Ordinances 12.X and 12.X.2 to the extent 

allowable by the various revenue sources that are used to fund the approved scope 

of work”; now therefore, be it 

RESOLVED, That the Transportation Authority hereby waives the Prop K 

Strategic Plan policy requiring that all remaining unprogrammed funds in the DTX to 

a Rebuilt Transbay Terminal category be programmed for construction of the DTX 

and amends the Prop K Strategic Plan to reprogram $8.7 million in de-obligated 

funds and advance $5.8 million in out year Prop K funds programmed to the DTX 

design phase in Fiscal Year 2019/20, as summarized in Attachment 3 and detailed in 

the attached allocation request forms; and be it further  

RESOLVED, That the Transportation Authority hereby allocates $11,906,558, 

with conditions, and appropriates $2,636,109 in Prop K Sales Tax funds for the two 

subject requests, as summarized in Attachment 3 and detailed in the attached 

allocation request forms; and be it further 

RESOLVED, That the Transportation Authority finds the allocation and 

appropriation of these funds to be in conformance with the priorities, policies, 

funding levels, and prioritization methodologies established in the Prop K 

Expenditure Plan and Strategic Plan; and be it further 

RESOLVED, That the Transportation Authority hereby authorizes the actual 

expenditure (cash reimbursement) of funds for these activities to take place subject 

to the Fiscal Year Cash Flow Distribution Schedules detailed in the attached 

allocation request forms; and be it further  

RESOLVED, That the Capital Expenditures line item for subsequent fiscal year 

annual budgets shall reflect the maximum reimbursement schedule amounts 

adopted and the Transportation Authority does not guarantee reimbursement levels 

higher than those adopted; and be it further  

43



BD041420 RESOLUTION NO. 20-49 

Page 4 of 5 

RESOLVED, That as a condition of this authorization for expenditure, the 

Executive Director shall impose such terms and conditions as are necessary for the 

project sponsor to comply with applicable law and adopted Transportation Authority 

policies and execute Standard Grant Agreements to that effect; and be it further 

RESOLVED, That as a condition of this authorization for expenditure, both the 

Transbay Joint Powers Authority and Transportation Authority's requests to require 

that procurements funded by these grants are consistent with the City's Local 

Business Enterprise Ordinance to the extent allowable by the various revenue 

sources that are used to fund the approved scope of work; and be it further 

RESOLVED, That as a condition of this authorization for expenditure, the 

project sponsor shall provide the Transportation Authority with any other information 

it may request regarding the use of the funds hereby authorized; and be it further 

RESOLVED, That the Capital Improvement Program of the Congestion 

Management Program is hereby amended, as appropriate. 

Attachments: 
1. Summary of Requests Received
2. Project Descriptions
3. Staff Recommendations
4. Prop K Allocation Summary – FY 2019/20
5. Allocation Request Forms (2)

44



A
tta

ch
m

en
t 1

: S
um

m
ar

y 
of

 R
eq

ue
st

s 
R

ec
ei

ve
d

 S
ou

rc
e

E
P 

L
in

e 
N

o.
/ 

C
at

eg
or

y 
1

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Sp
on

so
r 2

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e

C
ur

re
nt

 
Pr

op
 K

 
R

eq
ue

st

T
ot

al
 C

os
t f

or
 

R
eq

ue
st

ed
 

Ph
as

e(
s)

E
xp

ec
te

d 
L

ev
er

ag
in

g 
by

 
E

P 
L

in
e 

3

A
ct

ua
l L

ev
er

ag
in

g 
by

 P
ro

je
ct

 P
ha

se
(s

)4
Ph

as
e(

s)
 

R
eq

ue
st

ed
D

is
tr

ic
t(

s)

Pr
op

 K
5

TJ
PA

D
ow

nt
ow

n 
E

xt
en

sio
n 

- P
ha

sin
g 

an
d 

Pa
rti

al 
15

%
 

D
es

ig
n

 $
   

  1
1,

90
6,

55
8 

 $
   

   
13

2,
26

7,
64

6 
86

%
91

%
D

es
ig

n
6,

 1
0

Pr
op

 K
5

SF
C

TA
Ra

il 
Pr

og
ra

m
 O

ve
rs

ig
ht

 a
nd

 P
ro

je
ct

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

up
po

rt
 $

   
   

 2
,6

36
,1

09
 

 $
   

   
   

 2
,6

36
,1

09
 

86
%

0%
Pl

an
ni

ng
6,

 1
0

 $
   

  1
4,

54
2,

66
7 

 $
   

   
13

4,
90

3,
75

5 
86

%
89

%

Fo
ot

no
te

s
1 2 3 4

"A
ct

ua
l L

ev
er

ag
in

g 
by

 P
ro

je
ct

 P
ha

se
" 

is 
ca

lc
ul

at
ed

 b
y 

di
vi

di
ng

 th
e 

to
ta

l n
on

-P
ro

p 
K

 o
r n

on
-P

ro
p 

A
A

 fu
nd

s i
n 

th
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

pl
an

 b
y 

th
e 

to
ta

l c
os

t f
or

 th
e 

re
qu

es
te

d 
ph

as
e 

or
 p

ha
se

s. 
If

 th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 in

 th
e 

"A
ct

ua
l L

ev
er

ag
in

g"
 c

ol
um

n 
is 

lo
w

er
 th

an
 in

 th
e 

"E
xp

ec
te

d 
Le

ve
ra

gi
ng

" 
co

lu
m

n,
 th

e 
re

qu
es

t (
in

di
ca

te
d 

by
 y

el
lo

w
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

in
g)

 is
 le

ve
ra

gi
ng

 fe
w

er
 n

on
-P

ro
p 

K
 d

ol
lar

s t
ha

n 
as

su
m

ed
 in

 th
e 

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 P
lan

. A
 p

ro
je

ct
 th

at
 is

 w
el

l l
ev

er
ag

ed
 o

ve
ra

ll 
m

ay
 h

av
e 

lo
w

er
-th

an
-e

xp
ec

te
d 

le
ve

ra
gi

ng
 fo

r a
n 

in
di

vi
du

al 
or

 p
ar

tia
l p

ha
se

.

L
ev

er
ag

in
g

T
O

T
A

L

"E
P 

Li
ne

 N
o.

/C
at

eg
or

y"
 is

 e
ith

er
 th

e 
Pr

op
 K

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 P
lan

 li
ne

 n
um

be
r r

ef
er

en
ce

d 
in

 th
e 

20
19

 P
ro

p 
K

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
 o

r t
he

 P
ro

p 
A

A
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 P

lan
 c

at
eg

or
y 

re
fe

re
nc

ed
 in

 th
e 

20
17

 
Pr

op
 A

A
 S

tra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
: S

tre
et

 R
ep

air
 a

nd
 R

ec
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
(S

tre
et

), 
Pe

de
st

ria
n 

Sa
fe

ty
 (P

ed
), 

an
d 

Tr
an

sit
 R

el
iab

ili
ty

 a
nd

 M
ob

ili
ty

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 (T
ra

ns
it)

.

A
cr

on
ym

s: 
SF

C
TA

 (S
an

 F
ra

nc
isc

o 
C

ou
nt

y 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

A
ut

ho
rit

y)
TJ

PA
 (T

ra
ns

ba
y 

Jo
in

t P
ow

er
s A

ut
ho

rit
y)

"E
xp

ec
te

d 
Le

ve
ra

gi
ng

 B
y 

E
P 

Li
ne

" 
is 

ca
lc

ul
at

ed
 b

y 
di

vi
di

ng
 th

e 
to

ta
l n

on
-P

ro
p 

K
 fu

nd
s e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 b

e 
av

ail
ab

le
 fo

r a
 g

iv
en

 P
ro

p 
K

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 P
lan

 li
ne

 it
em

 (e
.g

. P
ed

es
tri

an
 C

irc
ul

at
io

n 
an

d 
Sa

fe
ty

) b
y 

th
e 

to
ta

l e
xp

ec
te

d 
fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r t
ha

t P
ro

p 
K

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 P
lan

 li
ne

 it
em

 o
ve

r t
he

 3
0-

ye
ar

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 P
lan

 p
er

io
d.

 F
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e,
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

le
ve

ra
gi

ng
 o

f 9
0%

 in
di

ca
te

s t
ha

t o
n 

av
er

ag
e 

no
n-

Pr
op

 K
 fu

nd
s s

ho
ul

d 
co

ve
r 9

0%
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l c
os

ts
 fo

r a
ll 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 in
 th

at
 c

at
eg

or
y,

 a
nd

 P
ro

p 
K

 sh
ou

ld
 c

ov
er

 o
nl

y 
10

%
. 

M
:\

B
oa

rd
\B

oa
rd

 M
ee

ti
ng

s\
20

20
\M

em
os

\0
4 

A
pr

 1
4\

It
em

 1
7 

- D
TX

 A
llo

c 
A

pp
ro

p\
D

TX
 A

llo
c_

A
pp

ro
p 

A
TT

 1
-4

 B
oa

rd
 0

4.
14

.2
0;

 1
-S

um
m

ar
y

Pa
ge

 1
 o

f 4

45



A
tta

ch
m

en
t 2

: B
rie

f P
ro

je
ct

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
ns

 1

E
P 

Li
ne

 N
o.

/
C

at
eg

or
y

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Sp
on

so
r

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e

Pr
op

 K
 F

un
ds

 
R

eq
ue

st
ed

Pr
oj

ec
t D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

5
TJ

PA
D

ow
nt

ow
n 

E
xt

en
sio

n 
- P

ha
sin

g 
an

d 
Pa

rt
ia

l 1
5%

 D
es

ig
n

$1
1,

90
6,

55
8

Th
e 

D
ow

nt
ow

n 
R

ai
l E

xt
en

sio
n 

(D
TX

) w
ill

 e
xt

en
d 

C
al

tr
ai

n 
1.

3 
m

ile
s f

ro
m

 F
ou

rt
h 

an
d 

K
in

g 
St

re
et

s t
o 

th
e 

ne
w

 T
ra

ns
ba

y 
Tr

an
sit

 C
en

te
r a

t F
irs

t a
nd

 M
iss

io
n 

St
re

et
s, 

w
ith

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
ns

 fo
r f

ut
ur

e 
hi

gh
-s

pe
ed

 ra
il.

 T
he

 re
qu

es
te

d 
fu

nd
s w

ill
 su

pp
or

t 
pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
en

gi
ne

er
in

g 
w

or
k 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
a 

ph
as

in
g 

st
ud

y,
 in

du
st

ry
 re

vi
ew

, p
ro

je
ct

 
de

liv
er

y 
an

d 
ot

he
r m

an
ag

em
en

t p
la

ns
, a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f 1
5%

 d
es

ig
n 

su
bm

itt
al

s f
or

 
ke

y 
el

em
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 D
TX

 p
ro

je
ct

 c
on

sis
te

nt
 w

ith
 th

e 
w

or
k 

pr
og

ra
m

 d
es

cr
ib

ed
 in

 th
e 

6 
pa

rt
y 

M
em

or
an

du
m

 o
f U

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 (M
O

U
) t

ha
t i

s t
he

 su
bj

ec
t o

f a
 se

pa
ra

te
 

ag
en

da
 it

em
 a

t t
he

 A
pr

il 
14

 B
oa

rd
 m

ee
tin

g.
 T

he
 w

or
k 

fu
nd

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
su

bj
ec

t r
eq

ue
st

 is
 

sc
he

du
le

d 
fo

r c
om

pl
et

io
n 

in
 Ju

ne
 2

02
1.

5
SF

C
TA

R
ai

l P
ro

gr
am

 O
ve

rs
ig

ht
 a

nd
 P

ro
je

ct
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t S
up

po
rt

$2
,6

36
,1

09

re
sp

on
se

 to
 th

e 
Bo

ar
d’

s i
nt

er
es

t i
n 

en
ha

nc
ed

 o
ve

rs
ig

ht
 fo

r t
he

 D
TX

, t
he

 w
or

k 
to

 b
e 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 u

nd
er

 th
is 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
n 

is 
in

te
nd

ed
 to

 c
om

pl
em

en
t a

nd
 e

nh
an

ce
 th

e 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

A
ut

ho
rit

y’
s o

ng
oi

ng
 o

ve
rs

ig
ht

 fu
nc

tio
ns

 fo
r t

he
 D

TX
 a

nd
 th

e 
Pe

ni
ns

ul
a 

R
ai

l P
ro

gr
am

. I
t a

lso
 p

ar
tia

lly
 fu

nd
s t

he
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
A

ut
ho

rit
y’

s r
ol

es
 to

 
le

ad
 P

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

Fu
nd

in
g 

St
ra

te
gy

 u
pd

at
es

, a
nd

 to
 c

o-
le

ad
 P

ro
je

ct
 D

el
iv

er
y 

an
d 

In
st

itu
tio

na
l O

pt
io

ns
 a

na
ly

se
s t

o 
he

lp
 p

re
pa

re
 th

e 
D

TX
 p

ro
je

ct
 fo

r p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t. 
Th

es
e 

ke
y 

ta
sk

s a
re

 c
on

sis
te

nt
 w

ith
 th

e 
E

xp
er

t P
ee

r R
ev

ie
w

 F
in

al
 R

ep
or

t 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
.  

Th
is 

re
qu

es
t c

ov
er

s t
he

 fi
rs

t 1
8 

m
on

th
s o

f t
he

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

A
ut

ho
rit

y's
 e

ff
or

ts
 o

n 
th

e 
w

or
k 

pr
og

ra
m

 d
es

cr
ib

ed
 in

 th
e 

6-
pa

rt
y 

M
O

U
.

$1
4,

54
2,

66
7

1  S
ee

 A
tta

ch
m

en
t 1

 fo
r f

oo
tn

ot
es

.
T

O
T

A
L

M
:\

B
oa

rd
\B

oa
rd

 M
ee

ti
ng

s\
2

0
2

0
\M

em
os

\0
4

 A
p

r 1
4

\I
te

m
 1

7
 - 

D
TX

 A
llo

c 
A

p
p

ro
p

\D
TX

 A
llo

c_
A

p
p

ro
p

 A
TT

 1
-4

 B
oa

rd
 0

4
.1

4
.2

0
; 2

-D
es

cr
ip

ti
on

Pa
ge

 2
 o

f 4

46



A
tta

ch
m

en
t 3

: S
ta

ff 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 1

E
P 

L
in

e 
N

o.
/

C
at

eg
or

y

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Sp
on

so
r

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e

Pr
op

 K
 F

un
ds

 
R

ec
om

m
en

de
d

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 

5
TJ

PA
D

ow
nt

ow
n 

E
xt

en
sio

n 
- P

ha
sin

g 
an

d 
Pa

rt
ial

 1
5%

 D
es

ig
n

 $
   

   
  1

1,
90

6,
55

8 

Pr
op

 K
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n 
A

m
en

dm
en

t: 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

n 
is 

co
nt

in
ge

nt
 u

po
n 

an
 

am
en

dm
en

t t
o 

th
e 

Pr
op

 K
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n 
to

 a
dv

an
ce

 o
ut

ye
ar

 fu
nd

s i
n 

th
e 

D
ow

nt
ow

n 
E

xt
en

sio
n 

(D
TX

) t
o 

a 
R

eb
ui

lt 
Tr

an
sb

ay
 T

er
m

in
al

 c
at

eg
or

y 
to

 F
isc

al
 

Y
ea

r 2
01

9/
20

. S
ee

 a
tta

ch
ed

 a
llo

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
es

t f
or

m
s f

or
 d

et
ai

ls.

E
xc

ep
tio

n 
to

 P
ro

p 
K

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n 

Po
lic

y:
 R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

n 
is 

co
nt

in
ge

nt
 

up
on

 a
n 

ex
ce

pt
io

n 
to

 th
e 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
 p

ol
ic

y 
th

at
 se

ts
 a

sid
e 

al
l r

em
ai

ni
ng

 fu
nd

s 
no

t a
lre

ad
y 

pr
og

ra
m

m
ed

 to
 P

ha
se

 1
 fo

r P
ha

se
 2

 (D
TX

) c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n.
 

N
T

P 
#

2 
Fu

nd
s 

on
 R

es
er

ve
: F

un
ds

 fo
r t

he
 se

co
nd

 N
ot

ic
e 

to
 P

ro
ce

ed
 o

r N
TP

 
#

2 
($

8,
17

7,
92

7)
 w

ill
 b

e 
on

 re
se

rv
e 

un
til

 re
le

as
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
fo

llo
w

in
g:

 (1
) B

oa
rd

 
ac

ce
pt

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 P

ro
je

ct
 P

ha
sin

g 
St

ra
te

gy
 a

nd
 In

te
rim

 B
ud

ge
t a

nd
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

fo
r 

Ph
as

e 
2,

 a
nd

 (2
) t

he
 id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 a

 n
ew

 P
ro

gr
am

 D
ire

ct
or

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 

th
e 

6-
pa

rt
y 

M
em

or
an

du
m

 o
f U

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 (s
ee

 m
em

o 
fo

r a
dd

iti
on

al
 d

et
ai

ls)
.

5
SF

C
TA

Ra
il 

Pr
og

ra
m

 O
ve

rs
ig

ht
 a

nd
 

Pr
oj

ec
t D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

up
po

rt
 $

   
   

   
 2

,6
36

,1
09

 
Pr

op
 K

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n 

A
m

en
dm

en
t: 

Se
e 

ab
ov

e 
pr

oj
ec

t.

E
xc

ep
tio

n 
to

 P
ro

p 
K

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n 

po
lic

y:
 S

ee
 a

bo
ve

 p
ro

je
t. 

$1
4,

54
2,

66
7

1  S
ee

 A
tta

ch
m

en
t 1

 fo
r f

oo
tn

ot
es

.

T
O

T
A

L

M
:\

B
oa

rd
\B

oa
rd

 M
ee

ti
ng

s\
20

20
\M

em
os

\0
4 

A
pr

 1
4\

It
em

 1
7 

- D
TX

 A
llo

c 
A

pp
ro

p\
D

TX
 A

llo
c_

A
pp

ro
p 

A
TT

 1
-4

 B
oa

rd
 0

4.
14

.2
0;

 3
-R

ec
om

m
en

da
ti

on
s

Pa
ge

 3
 o

f 4

47



A
tta

ch
m

en
t 4

.
Pr

op
 K

 a
nd

 P
ro

p 
A

A
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

Su
m

m
ar

ie
s 

- F
Y

 2
01

9/
20

PR
O

P 
K 

SA
LE

S 
TA

X

T
ot

al
FY

 2
01

9/
20

FY
 2

02
0/

21
FY

 2
02

1/
22

FY
 2

02
2/

23
FY

 2
02

3/
24

FY
 2

02
4/

25
FY

 2
02

5/
26

Pr
io

r A
llo

ca
tio

ns
13

5,
83

3,
35

7
$ 

   
22

,9
78

,1
37

$ 
   

$5
6,

08
8,

04
9

$7
,8

27
,7

07
9,

93
4,

72
9

$ 
   

  
35

,5
60

,0
81

$ 
   

2,
72

7,
15

4
$ 

   
  

71
7,

50
0

$ 
   

   
 

C
ur

re
nt

 R
eq

ue
st

(s
)

14
,5

42
,6

67
$ 

   
  

79
2,

90
1

$ 
   

   
 

9,
40

9,
40

7
$ 

   
  

4,
34

0,
35

9
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

N
ew

 T
ot

al
 A

llo
ca

tio
ns

15
0,

37
6,

02
4

$ 
   

23
,7

71
,0

38
$ 

   
65

,4
97

,4
56

$ 
   

12
,1

68
,0

66
$ 

   
9,

93
4,

72
9

$ 
   

  
35

,5
60

,0
81

$ 
   

2,
72

7,
15

4
$ 

   
  

71
7,

50
0

$ 
   

   
 

Th
e 

ab
ov

e 
ta

bl
e 

sh
ow

s m
ax

im
um

 a
nn

ua
l c

as
h 

flo
w

 fo
r a

ll 
FY

 2
01

9/
20

 a
llo

ca
tio

ns
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

tio
ns

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
to

 d
at

e,
 a

lo
ng

 w
ith

 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t r
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
al

lo
ca

tio
n(

s)
. 

Pa
ra

tr
an

sit
, 

8.
6%

St
re

et
s &

 
Tr

af
fic

 
Sa

fe
ty

, 
24

.6
%

St
ra

te
gi

c 
In

iti
at

iv
es

, 
1.

3%

Tr
an

sit
, 

65
.5

%
,

In
ve

st
m

en
t C

om
m

itm
en

ts
, 

pe
r P

ro
p 

K 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 P
la

n

Tr
an

sit
72

%

Pa
ra

tr
an

sit
8%

St
re

et
s &

 
Tr

af
fic

 S
af

et
y

19
%

St
ra

te
gi

c 
In

iti
at

iv
es

0.
9%

Pr
op

 K
 In

ve
st

m
en

ts
 T

o 
Da

te

M
:\

B
oa

rd
\B

oa
rd

 M
ee

ti
ng

s\
20

20
\M

em
os

\0
4 

A
pr

 1
4\

It
em

 1
7 

- D
TX

 A
llo

c 
A

pp
ro

p\
D

TX
 A

llo
c_

A
pp

ro
p 

A
TT

 1
-4

 B
oa

rd
 0

4.
14

.2
0

48



San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Prop K/Prop AA Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: FY2019/20

Project Name: Downtown Extension - Phasing and Partial 15% Design

Grant Recipient: Transbay Joint Powers Authority

EXPENDITURE PLAN INFORMATION

Prop K EP categories: Transbay Terminal / Downtown Caltrain Extension

Current Prop K Request: $11,906,558

Supervisorial District(s): District 06

REQUEST

Brief Project Description
Extension of Caltrain 1.3 miles from Fourth and King Streets to the new Transbay Transit Center at First and Mission
Streets, with accommodations for future high-speed rail. The requested funds will support preliminary engineering work
including a phasing study, industry review, project delivery and other management plans, and development of 15% design
submittals for key elements of the Caltrain Downtown Extension (DTX) project.

Detailed Scope, Project Benefits and Community Outreach
See attached document for details.

Project Location
First & Mission Streets, San Francisco, CA

Project Phase(s)
Design Engineering (PS&E)

5YPP/STRATEGIC PLAN INFORMATION

Type of Project in the Prop K 5YPP/Prop
AA Strategic Plan?

Named Project

Is requested amount greater than the
amount programmed in the relevant

5YPP or Strategic Plan?

Greater than Programmed Amount

Prop AA Strategic Plan Amount: $7,096,290

Justification for Necessary Amendment

In 2018 the Transportation Authority programmed and allocated $9,678,626 In EP-5 funds for DTX 30% Design Part 1, 
of which $8,696,290 was deobligated in November 2019 pursuant to suspension of the grant by the Transportation 
Authority. Also in November 2019 the Board approved reprogramming and appropriation of $1.6 million of the 
deobligated funds for the Pennsylvania Avenue Extension Pre-environmental project. The TJPA and Transportation 
Authority are now requesting a total of $14.5 million for Downtown Extension—Phasing and Partial 15% Design and Rail 
Program Oversight. These requests require a Prop K Strategic Plan amendment to program the remdoneainder of the 
deobligated funds to the two projects in FY2019/20, and advance an additional $5.8 million in unprogrammed capacity 
in the Downtown Extension to a Rebuilt Transbay Terminal category.

49



Page 1 
March 28, 2020 Scope of Work 

 

Transbay Program Phase 2 

Scope of Work, Deliverables and Schedule 
May 1, 2020 –November 26, 2021 

 
The DTX MOU includes work scope to achieve ready for procurement status; however, this allocation 
only the initial 18 months of this scope; the remainder of the scope will be the subject of future funding 
request. Based upon direction from SFCTA staff, the scope of services is split into two terms, each of 
which will have a separate Notice to Proceed (NTP). Scope indicated as being included in NTP#1 is 
anticipated to commence on May 1, 2020. Scope within NTP #1 is expected to take approximately 6 to 
eight months to complete. The scope of NTP#2 will be initiated once the scope of NTP#1 is complete. 

 

NTP#1 (May 1, 2020 – November 30, 2020) 

 
The work during NTP#1 will focus on a project phasing study which will review options for identifying 
an initial operating segment for the DTX project in support of planning and funding strategy efforts. 
The work will also include creating a log of changes made to the program since the Supplemental 
EIS/EIR, a real estate acquisition plan, and the preparation of a configuration management plan, all of 
which will support and inform the phasing study and the procedures for implementing findings from the 
phasing study. The NTP will also include an industry review with contractors which will feed into 
a review with contractors which will feed into a review of project delivery planned in NTP#2 
 

A. Program Management $1,078,311 
Manage program scope of work and develop and implement Program Management and Program 
Controls (PMPC). Other direct office costs. Manage staff and coordinate the following activities. 

 

A.1 Program Manager and Staff 

o Hire a Project Director in accordance with the Memorandum of Understanding prepared 
in coordination with all stakeholders. (TJPA) 

o Provide a Program Manager and Deputy Program Manager (referred to collectively herein 
as the “Program Manager”) with overall responsibility for managing the program scope of 
work and developing and implementing PMPC. The Program Manager shall provide staff 
planning, supervision, and support for the Program Team, including coordination among 
project teams. As requested by TJPA, the Program Manager shall also assist the TJPA in 
the acquisition of funding for the Program, various Program approvals, and other third 
party agreements. The Program Manager, or his or her designee, will attend the TJPA’s 
weekly staff meetings and other meetings as required by the TJPA. The Program Manager 
will provide all other related services as requested by the TJPA. The Program Manager 
and Deputy Program Manager are designated as key personnel positions. The Program 
Manager also works with the project team to ensure schedule adherence. 

o Program Management staff serve as a point of technical contact in connection to the 
planning and Phase 2 design. Coordinate and maintain contact with key Program 
members, PMPC consultant team members, the Transit Center design team, outside 
agency representatives, and others as directed. 

o Staff provide assistance for the development and management of project design criteria, 
cost estimates and schedule. 

o Staff also provides technical and project specific assistance to TJPA, including 
preparation of letters and presentations. 

 
 

 
 

50



Page 2 
March 28, 2020 Scope of Work 

 

A.2 Program Management Plans 

o Preparation of a log of changes to the configuration of the Program since issuance of the 
Supplemental EIS/EIR. 

o Preparation of a configuration management plan. The supplemental environmental 
document for Phase 2 completed in late 2018 established the baseline configuration for 
Phase 2. A configuration management plan will be developed to document the baseline 
configuration and the processes for ensuring that the baseline configuration is not 
changed without a systematic review of the changes to the design and the impact that 
design changes may have on all other aspects of the project. The configuration 
management plan will address changes during the design and construction phases, 
interface management, O&M interfaces, and procurement bid documents. 

o Develop a preliminary real estate acquisition plan. A real estate acquisition plan was 
completed in 2005. Between 2008 and 2014, fifteen parcels were acquired to preserve 
right- of-way for the DTX. Since then, the right-of-way estimate has been updated 
(2017), and during the supplemental environmental process, DTX designers determined 
that underpinning could be used to support several historic buildings along the DTX 
alignment that previously had been slated for partial demolition and rebuilding. Work 
associated with an updated plan includes 

o Evaluating all affected properties to determine what engineering solutions are 
available to preserve as much of the buildings as possible 

o Estimating the right-of-way costs based on market rates of the buildings/portions 
of the buildings, potential for occupancy during construction, and the cost of 
construction of the engineering solutions 

o Updating the 2017 ROW estimate including utility relocations 

Deliverables/Schedule: 
1. Log of changes made to the Program (PMPC): NTP#1 plus 2 months 
2. Configuration Management Plan (PMPC): NTP#1 plus 6 months 
3. Preliminary Real Estate acquisition plan (PMPC): NTP#1 plus 5 months 

A.3 Program Meetings and Coordination. PMPC will plan and attend project 
meetings including bi-monthly meetings with SFCTA staff and the design team. PMPC 
Program Coordination activities including organizing project meetings with outside 
agencies and other stakeholder coordination activities to support the phasing concept 
study and stakeholder management efforts. Coordination with adjacent properties along 
the alignment to determine potential impacts to Phase 2 project elements and/or the 
properties. 

Deliverables/Schedule: 

1. Bi-weekly meetings/meeting minutes (PMPC, attended by Design Team). 
2. As-needed coordination and meetings/meeting minutes with stakeholders. (PMPC 

with Design Team support) 
3. Analyze at a preliminary level impacts or benefits to the project if a specific concern 

or comment from a stakeholder increased or decreased project risk, scope, cost, or 
duration. (Design Team with support from PMPC) 

4. Coordinate with rail operators on design criteria. (PMPC with Design Team 
support). 

5. Prepare a draft updated East Bay Crossing memorandum including: coordination 
with BART on BART’s second bay crossing effort, updated aerial mapping, updates 
to route constraints including potentially affected properties, and review Main Street 
route with reduced trainbox extension. (Design Team with management by PMPC) 

51



Page 3 
March 28, 2020 Scope of Work 

 

A.4 Rebrand Program and Public Outreach. TJPA and their consultants, in coordination 
with planning and modeling efforts by the SFCTA will develop a plan for re-branding of 
the Program with updated graphics and messaging based on economic benefits for the 
region, state, and nation. (TJPA) 

 

A.5 Public Outreach. TJPA will perform outreach by engaging external stakeholders, 
advocacy groups, and the public at large, and perform pubic outreach. An external 
outreach plan will be developed. (TJPA) 

 

A.6 Design Team Invoicing, Subconsultant Management, Scheduling and Reporting. 
Prepare monthly invoices including monthly invoice reports. Manage subconsultant 
contracts. 

Deliverables/Schedule: 
1. Monthly invoice and invoice reports. (Design Team) 
2. Bi-monthly updates to the design schedule. (Design Team) 

 

B. Program Implementation and Support Activities $1,151,000 
 

B.1 Project Phasing Concept. Review opportunities for project phasing. 

o Develop evaluation criteria including, but not limited to: constructability, scalability, cost 
and risk. (PMPC) 

o Workshop#1: Host a one-day “brainstorming” workshop with the project team, Caltrain, 
CHSRA, MTC and SFCTA staff and their consultants to agree initial and subsequent 
operational assumptions and constraints to form the basis of the review and develop 
phasing opportunities. (PMPC, attended by Design Team) 

o Analyze ideas from first workshop which may be selected for further study, including but 
not limited to the following: 

 High-level review of the loop concept to determine if two tracks is feasible for 
a near term scenario before a loop is built with connection to a new bay 
crossing including alignment and operations analyses to determine the 
maximum number of Caltrain trains which can operate reliably on two tracks. 
(Design Team) 

 Potential high-level review of the opportunity to lower profile on southern end 
to determine if there is a cost advantage to a one-tunnel solution for the 
Pennsylvania Avenue Extension, if agreed at the brainstorming workshop. 
(Design Team) 

 Provide a cost estimate for a high-level study of at least five other options as 
determined at the first workshop. (Design Team for construction costs, PMPC 
for program costs) 

 Costs for all options reviewed including the cost of deferred project elements 
will be based on current understanding of tunnel costs per mile, adjusted based 
on professional opinion. (Design Team for construction costs, PMPC for 
program costs) 

o Workshop#2: Host a second one-day workshop with the project team, Caltrain, 
CHSRA, MTC, and SFCTA staff and their consultants to present findings (a menu of 
options that details costs and assumed timing of the phasing and potential related issues 
that may be caused by deferral) from analyses of options carried forward from first 
workshop. (PMPC, Design Team to attend) 

o Hold up to two additional two-hour meetings to review with stakeholders. (PMPC, 
Design Team to attend) 

o Prepare draft project phasing report to summarize phasing opportunities, tradeoffs and 
recommendations consistent with DTX MOU. (PMPC with input from Design Team) 

52



Page 4 
March 28, 2020 Scope of Work 

 

o Present the draft report to the Executive Steering Committee (ESC). (PMPC with input 
from Design Team) 

o Prepare final report with feedback from ESC. (PMPC with input from Design Team) 
o Present to the final report to the SFCTA board and CAC. (PMPC with input from Design 

Team) 
o Present to the final report to the TJPA board. (PMPC with input from Design Team) 

 
Deliverables/Schedule: Evaluation criteria, preliminary risk matrix, phasing workshops 
and summary report and plan: NTP#1 plus 6 months. (PMPC with support from Design 
Team) 

 

B.2 Project Implementation Plan. Organize an initial Industry Review to review 
construction methodology, contract packaging, and project scheduling in consultation 
with the design teams and contractors and prepare a summary memorandum. Assumed 
five meetings at 2 hours/meeting. Design Team will provide on set of 
documents/graphics to support the meetings. 
Deliverables/Schedule: Industry Review with contractor interviews: NTP#1 plus 2 
months (PMPC with attendance and input from Design Team) 

 
B.3 Issue Resolution. Track and resolve issues related to design, construction and operations 

with regulatory agencies and other stakeholders that have an interest or are participants in 
the Program. Maintain issue-action logs. 

Deliverables/Schedule: On-going. (PMPC) 
 

B.4 Permit Management. Prepare a list of required permits for the design and construction 
of Phase 2 of the Program. 
Deliverables: Permit list: NTP#1 plus 3 months (PMPC) 

 

C. Phase 2 Design $82,531 
The Phase 2 PMPC Project Manager will be responsible for managing the project scope, 
schedule, budgets and contracting during the design phase. The Phase 2 PMPC Project Manager 
and support staff will perform the following: 

 
C.1 Engineering Contract Management. Assist in finalizing the scope, deliverables, 

schedule and budget for Engineering Contract. (PMPC) 
 

C.2 Project Management. Provide project management oversight of the design team. 
(PMPC) 

 
C.3 Design Submittal Reviews. Perform independent reviews of design submittal packages 

to verify that design intent is properly implemented, project scope is accurately 
represented in various contracts and QC/QA plans are effective. (PMPC) 
Deliverables: Comments on design submittals, as needed. (PMPC) 

 

C.4 Design Work. Perform a review of the throat trackwork geometry to reassess impacts on 
affected properties. 
Deliverables: Trackwork sketches for coordination and discussion with stakeholders. 
(Design Team) 

53



Page 5 
March 28, 2020 Scope of Work 

 

D. Program/Project Controls $285,533 
PMPC Program/Project Controls Manager will develop and implement program/project controls. 
The PMPC Program Controls Manager and support staff will work with the PMPC Project 
Managers in accomplishing the following scope of work. 

 

D.1 Project Phasing Concept. Provide cost estimating support to develop phasing concept 
cost estimates based on different time horizons for phasing project elements. Participate 
in phasing concept workshops and provide cost and schedule support for the entirety of 
the phasing concept study. 
Deliverables/Schedule: On-going support throughout study. (PMPC) 

 
D.2 Program Master Schedule. Develop and maintain Program master schedule based on 

the WBS and the Project Delivery and Procurement Plan. Update the Program master 
schedule monthly, to include current information regarding project and contract progress. 
Deliverables/Schedule: Quarterly Program Master Schedule update. (PMPC) 

D.4 Work Plan. Develop a comprehensive work plan in accordance with the DTX MOU, 
which will describe all necessary tasks and their relationships, and includes the prepared 
Program Master Schedule. (PMPC) 
Deliverables/Schedule: Work Plan. (PMPC) 

D.5 Status Reporting. Prepare quarterly reports of Program status. 

Deliverables/Schedule: Quarterly Program Status Reports to the Authority Board, 
Stakeholders and Funding Agencies. (PMPC) 

D.6 Work Breakdown Structure. Update and maintain a work breakdown structure (WBS) 
as needed for the implementation of the Program that will be used for organizing and 
reporting on cost, schedule and scope. (PMPC) 

 

D.7 Invoicing and Subconsultant Contract Management. Draft and receipt of appropriate 
approvals of subconsultant agreements, amendments and work authorizations in 
accordance with company and contractual guidelines. Coordination with TJPA staff on 
approvals of subconsultants scopes of work and authorizations including management of 
billing rates, overhead, coding of invoices and eligibility of charges. Work with TJPA 
staff on invoicing issues. (PMPC) 

 
E. Quality Control/Quality Assurance (QC/QA) $37,586 

 

E.1 QA Oversight. Provide oversight of design activities relative to implementation of the 
adopted QC/QA program. Identify areas needing improvement, recommend corrective 
action plans and provide oversight to confirm compliance. 
Deliverables/Schedule: Quarterly audit reports. (PMPC) 

 

F. Document Management and Administrative Support $397,040 

 
F.1 Administrative Support. Administrative support will include, but not be limited to, 

documentation of meetings, report writing, and preparation of correspondence. Edits and 
produces technical documents and presentations issued by the PMPC team for the 
Transbay Program. This includes, but is not limited to: status reporting, Board reports and 
presentations, program plans and procedures, and letters and reports. Ensures that all 
documents reflect standard practices for good technical writing, are complete and 
accurate, and adhere overall to the Program’s quality standards. Administrative staff are 

54



Page 6 
March 28, 2020 Scope of Work 

 

also responsible for day-to-day operations of the Program office operations and for 
management of office resources such as scheduling conference rooms. (PMPC) TJPA 
staff will provide administrative support for the Executive Steering Committee. (TJPA) 

 

F.2 Document Control. Maintain document control to serve as the official records 
management function for the Program and be the source for all official documentation 
and provide storage for all Program records and files. Coordinate with the TJPA IT 
Manager and Constructware representatives to ensure backup and disaster file procedures 
and protocols are in place. Perform day-to-day handling of all documents provided to 
Document Control for coding, reproduction, distribution, file sharing, storage and 
document searches and retrieval, and trouble-shooting office equipment such as printers 
and copiers. Provide quality assurance audits by checking documents for completeness. 
Provide the Program Information and Support Services as program software 
administrator responsible for creating and monitoring user accounts, profiles, permission 
levels, and training and assisting system users by trouble-shooting problems. Develop 
and updates databases used mostly by Document Control (e.g., software Interface, 
Protected Information List, Nondisclosure Agreements List, Annual Office Inventory, 
Reprographic Services, Messenger Services, and Agreements Lists). Implements the 
Program's compliance to its Protected Information Procedure by maintaining the 
Protected Information List and List of Approved Nondisclosure Agreement Holders 
while adhering to proper document handling protocol particularly involving the 
disseminating and securing of such documents. (PMPC) 

 
F.3 Presentation Support. Provide data, graphics and other materials as required for 

internal, external and public presentation. Develop maps, diagrams, infographics and 
general graphics for the program including those needed for funding applications. Assist 
with all property issues including reviews of plats and legals, and existing and future use 
planning. (PMPC) 

 

G. Management Information Systems (MIS) Support $20,000 
 

G.1 Program Software. Maintain document management software to facilitate team 
communication and manage storage of Program documents. (PMPC) 

 

NTP#2 (December 1, 2020 – November 26, 2021) 
 

During NTP#2 the PMPC will be examining project delivery and developing a work plan. The NTP also 
will progress the design team’s work on the design and cost estimate of the tunnel and Fourth and 
Townsend Street Station to a draft 15% design level and allow for a risk assessment to be performed. 
Additionally, the NTP supports the preparation of a third-party agreement plan. It is anticipated that this 
scope will take approximately 12 months after NTP. 

 
A. Program Management $2,853,865 

Manage program scope of work and develop and implement Program Management and Program 
Controls. Other direct office costs. Manage staff and coordinate the following activities. 

 

A.1 Program Management Staff 

o Maintain a Project Director in accordance with the Memorandum of Understanding 

prepared in coordination with all stakeholders. (TJPA) 

55



Page 7 
March 28, 2020 Scope of Work 

 

o Provide a Program Manager and Deputy Program Manager (referred to collectively herein 
as the “Program Manager”) with overall responsibility for managing the program scope of 
work and developing and implementing PMPC. The Program Manager shall provide staff 
planning, supervision, and support for the Program Team, including coordination among 
project teams. As requested by TJPA, the Program Manager shall also assist the TJPA in 
the acquisition of funding for the Program, various Program approvals, and other third 
party agreements. The Program Manager, or his or her designee, will attend the TJPA’s 
weekly staff meetings and other meetings as required by the TJPA. The Program Manager 
will provide all other related services as requested by the TJPA. The Program Manager 
and Deputy Program Manager are designated as key personnel positions. The Program 
Manager also works with the project team to ensure schedule adherence. 

o Program Management staff serve as a point of technical contact in connection to the 
planning and Phase 2 design. Coordinate and maintain contact with key Program 
members, PMPC consultant team members, the Transit Center design team, outside 
agency representatives, and others as directed. 

o Staff provide assistance for the development and management of project design criteria, 
cost estimates and schedule. 

o Staff also provides technical and project specific assistance to TJPA, including 
preparation of letters and presentations. 

 
A.2 Program Management Plans. Preparation of a third-party agreement plan. A third-party 

agreement plan will be developed to address: 

o New agreements with the operators Caltrain and CHSRA regarding design oversight, 
passenger facility charges, and operations and maintenance 

o Coordination with utility companies and government agencies to determine the location 
of existing utility infrastructure, who will be responsible for relocation costs and the 
party that undertakes the relocation work, the phasing of the design and construction 
work needed; and the needed agreements with the various public agencies and utility 
companies 

o Whether the existing agreements with the State and various City agencies and 
departments for various services can be amended or whether new agreements are 
required 
The plan will include a matrix showing the status of all existing third-party agreements. 
Deliverables/Schedule: Third-party agreement plan: NTP#2 plus 8 months (PMPC) 

 
A.3 Program Meetings and Coordination. PMPC will plan and attend project meetings 

including bi-monthly meetings with SFCTA staff and the design team. PMPC Program 
Coordination activities including organizing project meetings with outside agencies and 
other stakeholder coordination activities to support design and stakeholder management 
efforts. 

Deliverables/Schedule: 
1. Bi-weekly meetings/meeting minutes (PMPC, attended by Design Team). 
2. As-needed coordination with stakeholders (PMPC and Design Team). 
3. Analyze at a preliminary level impacts to the project if a specific concern or 

comment from a stakeholder increases project risk, scope, cost, or duration. (Design 
Team with support from PMPC) 

4. Coordinate with rail operators on design criteria. (PMPC with Design Team 
support) 

5. Updated East Bay Crossing memorandum with additional information from BART’s 
second bay crossing effort as available during NTP#2 duration. (Design Team with 
management by PMPC) 

56



Page 8 
March 28, 2020 Scope of Work 

 

A.4 Public Outreach. TJPA and their consultants will conduct public outreach and advocacy 
group outreach. (TJPA) 

 

A.5 Construction Cost Estimating. Update the construction cost estimate prepared in April 
2018 based on updated quantities based on the updated design work performed in this 
scope of work and current market rates. Divide cost estimate into phases as determined 
and approved in NTP#1. Submit a draft construction cost estimate. 
Deliverables/Schedule: Draft Construction Cost Estimate. (Design Team) 

 
B. Program Implementation and Support Activities $830,238 

 
B.1 Project Implementation Plan. An in depth, detailed study to determine the most 

appropriate delivery option for the DTX. This study will analyze traditional methods of 
delivery such as Design Bid Build and Design Build as well as alternative methods such 
as Construction Manager at Risk, Design Build Finance, Design Build Finance Maintain, 
and other forms of Public Private Partnerships as appropriate. Prepare and update the 
Contract Packaging Strategy Report including project phasing in consultation with the 
design teams and contractors. Prepare a work plan incorporating project phasing and 
contract packaging. Provide recommendations for optimization of program delivery as 
necessary. This work will support the DTX Work Program Funding Planing/Strategy 
development. 

Deliverables/Schedule: 
o Project Delivery Report: NTP#2 plus 6 months (PMPC) 
o Updated Contract Packaging Report: NTP#2 plus 6 months (PMPC) 
o Work Plan Memorandum: NTP#2 plus 9 months (PMPC) 

B.2 Issue Resolution. Track and resolve issues related to design, construction and operations 
with regulatory agencies and other stakeholders that have an interest or are participants in 
the Program. Maintain issue-action logs. 
Deliverables/Schedule: On-going. (PMPC) 

 

B.3 Risk Management. Provide Risk Manager. Organize and facilitate risk management and 
follow up mitigations workshop in conjunction with FTA and stakeholders. Develop and 
maintain Risk Register. Update Risk Register quarterly in conjunction with stakeholders. 
Prepare risk simulation modeling sufficient to develop project risk-based contingency. 
Summarize all work in performed in risk assessment report. It is assumed that any 
external experts required to attend the workshop would be provided by the funding 
partner.  
Deliverables/Schedule: 
o Conduct formal risk management process. (PMPC with participation and support of 

Design Team to resolve recommendations) 
o Prepare risk assessment report: NTP#2 plus 5 months (PMPC) 
o Develop and maintain Risk Register: Ongoing. (PMPC) 

 
B.4 Utility Coordination. Provide limited utility coordination oversight to verify project 

teams are successful in making arrangements for timely and cost-effective relocations of 
existing facilities. (PMPC) 

 

C. Phase 2 Design $3,924,490 
The PMPC Phase 2 Project Manager will be responsible for managing the project scope, schedule, 
budgets and contracting during the design phase. The PMPC Phase 2 Project Manager and support 
staff will perform the following: 

57



Page 9 
March 28, 2020 Scope of Work 

 

 

C.1 Engineering Contract Management. Assist in finalizing the scope, deliverables, 
schedule and budget for Engineering Contract. (PMPC) 

 

C.2 Project Management. Provide project management oversight of the design team. 
(PMPC) 

 
C.3 Design Submittal Reviews. Perform independent reviews of design submittal packages 

to verify that design intent is properly implemented, project scope is accurately 
represented in various contracts and QC/QA plans are effective. 
Deliverables: Comments on design submittals, as needed. (PMPC) 

 
C.4 Design Work. Perform design work for limited Phase 2 elements as described below: 

o Train Operations: Update alignment for TBM+SEM and new train operations model 
train for use in review. Review analysis performed by Caltrain, CHSRA and others that 
feed into DTX line. Prepare draft submittal. Assumption: No new analysis. 

o Track: Revise precise 1"=40' PE track plan and profiles to include adjustments at Fourth 
and Townsend Street Station and lower profile for TBM+SEM. Verification of special 
trackwork elements and identification of long-lead specialty items. Revised at-grade 
interlocking design concept along Seventh Street, including MOW tracks, turnback 
tracks and provisions for at-grade crossings. Continue to coordinate with Transit Center 
Phase 2 planning. Update track alignment and profile design calculations. Prepare 
technical memorandum documenting assumptions, outstanding issues and variances. 
Develop staging plans for cut-over of tunnel stub to a future rail connecting tunnel. 
Prepare draft submittal. Exclusion: Incorporate Caltrain North Terminal design. 

o Fire/Life/Safety (FLS): Update design plans for 2nd and Harrison emergency vent/exit 
building. Develop mechanical design for 3rd and Townsend emergency ventilation. 
Develop design for Fourth and Townsend Street Station emergency ventilation. Perform 
CFD station fire/life/safety modeling. Perform SES FLS modeling for DTX tunnel. 
Perform pedestrian flow/exit analysis for underground station. Update tunnel exiting 
technical memorandum (SES & CFD report). Prepare draft submittal. Assumption: 
Update for TBM+SEM and deeper tunnel profile. 

o Geotechnical: Conceptual evaluation of 655 Fourth Street impact. All field efforts 
(including tunnel stub explorations) and 80% of needed lab testing. Monitor groundwater 
in the existing and new wells for 6 months. Update Geotechnical Data Report (GDR) to 
include the new explorations and lab testing. Provide update parameters for the soil and 
rock units as given in the original Geotechnical Interpretive Reports (GIR) in a technical 
memorandum. (No other evaluations and updates to the GIR to be performed.) Reapply 
permitting, signages, and re-start investigation program for additional tunnel stub 
explorations which were approved in 2018. Prepare draft submittals. Exclusion: Does not 
include preparation of GBR. 

o Tunnel: Replace and extend with TBM+SEM method proposed in Tunnel Options Study 
including mining under 235 Second Street (and associated underpinning, as necessary) 
and mining under Howard Street. Assumes no code updates or review comments for 
previously accepted memos, calculations or drawings. Preparation of a draft submittal. 
Design temporary shafts, as needed. 

58



Page 10 
March 28, 2020 Scope of Work 

 

Continue technical support of TJPA coordination with adjacent properties related to the 
staging locations by discipline lead. 

o Fourth and Townsend Street Station: Prepare updated technical memorandum input 
and update 2016 conceptual plans to incorporate new station design utilizing third 
platform face on southside of station proposed by SFCTA Rail Operations Peer Review 
including updated rail operations analyses for third platform face. Includes coordination 
with Caltrain and CHSRA regarding platforms, Caltrain's surface station, and Prologis 
for underground station coordination. Includes update for TBM launch. Preparation of a 
draft submittal. 

o U-wall and Tunnel Stub: Prepare technical memorandum and drawings for permanent 
structure and shoring to incorporate new track alignment (not to preclude future 
undergrounding of surface yard tracks by others) and tunnel stub transition. Perform 
impact analysis for U-Wall/Tunnel Stub adjacent to I-280 6th Street off-ramp 
foundations. Preparation of a draft submittal. 

o Fourth Street Central Subway Interface: Technical support of TJPA coordination with 
SFMTA by discipline lead. Prepare conceptual design and technical memoranda of 
bridging structure/pipe canopy/tunnel. Prepare draft design plans. 

o Existing Building Settlement Analysis: Update zone of influence of entire alignment 
using including Second Street based on new cross section and depth. Updated building 
assessment analysis as needed on Second Street. New development at 4th/Townsend 
coordination. Preparation of draft submittal. 

o Utilities: Support advanced utility relocation package scoping by PMPC. Update 
technical memorandum and 1"=20' PE relocation plans to extend to Townsend Street, 
Seventh Street and at-grade crossings, including identification of temporary relocations. 
Technical support of TJPA coordination with City and utilities by discipline lead. Assist 
in coordination with utility providers as part of the Accela Notice of Intent process. 
Update existing utility CAD linework based on utility coordination. Coordination for 
potholing process. Utility potholing to confirm locations/depths/ sizes of utilities. 
Preparation of draft submittal. Assumptions: Utility companies and agencies will 
participate in the Accela Notice of Intent process at their own expense. 

Deliverables: 
o Draft Train Operations submittal (Design Team) 
o Trackwork Technical Memorandum and draft updated trackwork drawings (Design 

Team) 
o FLS Modeling Technical Memorandum and draft updated submittal (Design Team) 
o Draft Update to GDR and Limited Updates to GIR. (Design Team) 
o Draft Tunnel Drawings for TBM+SEM method (Design Team) 
o Draft Underpinning Drawings for 235 Second Street (as necessary) (Design Team) 
o Draft Temporary Shaft Drawings (as necessary) (Design Team) 
o Draft Technical Memorandum and drawings for Fourth and Townsend Street 

Station Design (Design Team) 
o Draft U-wall and Tunnel Stub Technical Memorandum and drawings (Design 

Team) 
o Draft Fourth Street Interface Technical Memorandum and drawings (Design Team) 
o Draft Technical Memorandum on Existing Buildings (Design Team) 
o Draft Potholing Memorandum and Utility Drawings (Design Team) 

59



Page 11 
March 28, 2020 Scope of Work 

 

D. Program/Project Controls $321,253 
PMPC Program/Project Controls Manager will develop and implement program/project controls. 
The PMPC Program Controls Manager and support staff will work with the Project Managers in 
accomplishing the following scope of work. 

 

D.1 Program Budget. Update and maintain a Baseline Budget for the Program based on the 
results of the phasing study in accordance with the updated Work Breakdown Structure. 
Incorporate construction budgets using cost estimates developed by design teams. 
Estimate other soft costs for each line item. Conduct market and escalation studies to 
forecast potential cost increases and market pressures over the life of the Program. Work 
with Risk Manager to develop contingency budgets at the project and Program level that 
are consistent with the risks associated with each Program element. Monitor, update and 
manage the budget over the course of the Program. (PMPC) 

 

D.2 Program Master Schedule. Develop and maintain Program master schedule based on 
the WBS and the Project Delivery and Procurement Plan. Update the Program master 
schedule monthly, to include current information regarding project and contract progress. 
Prepare an updated baseline schedule at the conclusion of the NTP#2. 
Deliverables/Schedule: Quarterly Program Master Schedule update including update to 
Program Baseline Schedule at conclusion of NTP#2. (PMPC) 

 
D.3 Cash Flow Planning. Working with the Authority’s Program Grant Administration, 

Budgeting, Financial Management and Cost Control consultant, analyze, prepare and 
maintain current and projected cash flow requirements for the Program. Provide limited 
support for funding plan development by others. (PMPC) 

 
D.4 Status Reporting. Prepare quarterly reports of Program status. 

Deliverables/Schedule: Quarterly Program Status Reports to the Authority Board, 
Stakeholders and Funding Agencies. (PMPC) 

 
D.5 Work Breakdown Structure. Update and maintain a work breakdown structure (WBS) 

as needed for the implementation of the Program that will be used for organizing and 
reporting on cost, schedule and scope. (PMPC) 

 
D.6 Invoicing and Subconsultant Contract Management. Draft and receipt of appropriate 

approvals of subconsultant agreements, amendments and work authorizations in 
accordance with company and contractual guidelines. Coordination with TJPA staff on 
approvals of subconsultants scopes of work and authorizations including management of 
billing rates, overhead, coding of invoices and eligibility of charges. Work with TJPA 
staff on invoicing issues. (PMPC) 

 

E. Quality Control/Quality Assurance (QC/QA) $159,550 
 

E.1 QA Oversight. Provide oversight of design activities relative to implementation of the 
adopted QC/QA program. Identify areas needing improvement, recommend corrective 
action plans and provide oversight to confirm compliance. 
Deliverables/Schedule: Quarterly audit reports. (PMPC) 

60



Page 12 
March 28, 2020 Scope of Work 

 

F. Document Management and Administrative Support $725,160 

 

F.1 Administrative Support. Administrative support will include, but not be limited to, 
documentation of meetings, report writing, and preparation of correspondence. Edits and 
produces technical documents and presentations issued by the PMPC team for the 
Transbay Program. This includes, but is not limited to: status reporting, Board reports 
and presentations, program plans and procedures, and letters and reports. Ensures that all 
documents reflect standard practices for good technical writing, are complete and 
accurate, and adhere overall to the Program’s quality standards. Administrative staff are 
also responsible for day-to-day operations of the Program office operations and for 
management of office resources such as scheduling conference rooms. (PMPC) TJPA 
staff will provide administrative support for the Executive Steering Committee. (TJPA) 

 
F.2 Document Control. Maintain document control to serve as the official records 

management function for the Program and be the source for all official documentation 
and provide storage for all Program records and files. Perform day-to-day handling of all 
documents provided to Document Control for coding, reproduction, distribution, file 
sharing, storage and document searches and retrieval, and trouble-shooting office 
equipment such as printers and copiers. Provide quality assurance audits by checking 
documents for completeness. Provide the Program Information and Support Services as 
program software administrator responsible for creating and monitoring user accounts, 
profiles, permission levels, and training and assisting system users by trouble-shooting 
problems. Develop and updates databases used mostly by Document Control (e.g., 
software Interface, Protected Information List, Nondisclosure Agreements List, Annual 
Office Inventory, Reprographic Services, Messenger Services, and Agreements Lists). 
Implements the Program's compliance to its Protected Information Procedure by 
maintaining the Protected Information List and List of Approved Nondisclosure 
Agreement Holders while adhering to proper document handling protocol particularly 
involving the disseminating and securing of such documents. (PMPC) 

 
F.3 Presentation Support. Provide data, graphics and other materials as required for 

internal, external and public presentation. Develop maps, diagrams, infographics and 
general graphics for the program including those needed for funding applications. Assist 
with all property issues including reviews of plats and legals, and existing and future use 
planning. (PMPC) 

 

G. Management Information Systems (MIS) Support $40,000 
 

G.1 Program Software. Maintain the Constructware software to facilitate team 
communication and manage storage of Program documents. (PMPC) 

 
 

61



San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Prop K/Prop AA Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: FY2019/20

Project Name: Downtown Extension - Phasing and Partial 15% Design

Grant Recipient: Transbay Joint Powers Authority

ENVIRONMENTAL CLEARANCE

Environmental Type: EIR/EIS

PROJECT DELIVERY MILESTONES

Phase Start End

Quarter Calendar Year Quarter Calendar Year

Planning/Conceptual Engineering

Environmental Studies (PA&ED) Oct-Nov-Dec 2018

Right of Way Jul-Aug-Sep 2004 Oct-Nov-Dec 2022

Design Engineering (PS&E) Jan-Feb-Mar 2005 Oct-Nov-Dec 2021

Advertise Construction Jan-Feb-Mar 2021

Start Construction (e.g. Award Contract) Jan-Feb-Mar 2022

Operations

Open for Use Jan-Feb-Mar 2028

Project Completion (means last eligible expenditure) Jan-Feb-Mar 2028

SCHEDULE DETAILS

The above schedule was presented to the TJPA Board of Directors in July 2018, assumes funding availability, and is
subject to change. The anticipated date for high-speed rail operations at the Salesforce Transit Center is 2029. This
request is intended to support enhanced oversight and a review of project phasing as well as additional design to
prepare an updated cost estimate. The work under this allocation and corresponding appropriation is scheduled for
completion in November 2021. Construction of the advance contract package was anticipated in the above schedule to
commence prior to Q1 2022 and proceed while design work was completed on the main contract package.

62



San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Prop K/Prop AA Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: FY2019/20

Project Name: Downtown Extension - Phasing and Partial 15% Design

Grant Recipient: Transbay Joint Powers Authority

FUNDING PLAN - FOR CURRENT REQUEST

Fund Source Planned Programmed Allocated Project Total

PROP K: Transbay Terminal / Downtown
Caltrain Extension

$11,906,558 $0 $0 $11,906,558

Phases in Current Request Total: $11,906,558 $0 $0 $11,906,558

FUNDING PLAN - ENTIRE PROJECT (ALL PHASES)

Fund Source Planned Programmed Allocated Project Total

PROP K $11,906,558 $0 $0 $11,906,558

DETAILS IN ATTACHED FUNDING PLAN $3,881,025,769 $0 $42,099,423 $3,923,125,192

Funding Plan for Entire Project Total: $3,892,932,327 $0 $42,099,423 $3,935,031,750

COST SUMMARY

Phase Total Cost Prop K -
Current
Request

Source of Cost Estimate

Planning/Conceptual Engineering $0 $0

Environmental Studies (PA&ED) $42,099,423 $0 Previous allocation request

Right of Way $305,900,000 $0 July 2018 TJPA Board presentation plus 15% Program Reserve

Design Engineering (PS&E) $132,363,400 $11,906,558 July 2018 TJPA Board presentation plus reserve and programwide

Construction (CON) $3,454,668,927 $0 July 2018 TJPA Board presentation plus reserve and programwide

Operations $0 $0

Total: $3,935,031,750 $11,906,558

% Complete of Design: 15.0%

As of Date: 10/31/2019

Expected Useful Life: 70 Years

63



Phase 2: Downtown Extension - Potential Funding

Phase 2 Potential Funding (in $ millions) Total Funds
Net Proceeds after 

Debt Financing

Committed Transportation Authority Sales Tax              

(Prop K) 1
$95 $95 

Committed San Mateo County Sales Tax $19 $19 

Committed MTC/BATA Bridge Tolls $7 $7 

Committed Regional Transportation Improvement 

Program2 $18 $18 

Transit Center District Plan-Mello Roos $275 - $375 $275-$375 

Tax Increment Residual (After TIFIA repayment) $665 - $735 $200 - $340

FTA New Starts $650 $650 

New MTC/BATA Bridge Tolls (Regional Measure 3) $300 $300 

Future San Francisco Sales Tax/Other Local Funds $350 $350 

Future California High-Speed Rail Funds $557 $557 

Land Sales (Block 4) $45 $45 

Passenger Facility Charges or Maintenance 
Contribution

$2,510 - $8,025 $865 - $1,920

TOTAL POTENTIAL FUNDS  $5,491 - $11,176 $3,381 - $4,676

1Including the pending July 2018 actions on the subject request and a companion appropriation, the DTX has 
a total of $67,117,109 in Prop K funds programmed to the project.  The estimated remaining Prop K funds is 
$28 million if DTX expended all of the funds over the next 3 to 5 years.

2The Transportation Authority has a long-standing commitment of RTIP funds to the Transbay Transit 
Center/Downtown Extension project.  All of the programmed RTIP funds to date went toward the Transit 
Center.  The remaining commitment is $17,847,000 (rounded to $18 million above).  Given higher priority 
RTIP commitments to the Central Subway and MTC, the RTIP funds will likely be unavailable to meet the 
project's cash flow needs.  The Transportation Authority will work with the TJPA to identify alternative fund 
sources.

64



MAJOR LINE ITEM BUDGET
Downtown Extension - Phasing and Partial 15% Design

Task Scope NTP 1 NTP 2 Total
PMPC Total $ 1,882,001 $ 3,482,175 $ 5,364,176

A Program Management $ 483,707 $ 909,627 $ 1,393,334
B Program Implementation $ 649,143 $ 830,238 $ 1,479,381
C Design Management $ 58,992 $ 641,431 $ 700,422
D Project Controls $ 285,533 $ 321,253 $ 606,787
E Quality Control/Quality Assurance $ 37,586 $ 114,466 $ 152,052
F Document Control/Administrative $ 347,040 $ 625,160 $ 972,200
G Program Software $ 20,000 $ 40,000 $ 60,000

Design Team Total $ 750,000 $ 4,892,382 $ 5,642,382
1 Project Management, Cost Estimating & Coordination $ 726,461 $ 1,564,238 $ 2,290,699
3 Train Operations $ 48,023 $ 48,023
5 Track & Fire/Life/Safety Design $ 23,539 $ 315,903 $ 339,442
6 Geotechnical $ 708,696 $ 708,696
7 Tunnel Design $ 1,107,715 $ 1,107,715
8 Underground Structures & Ventilation Structures Design $ 729,312 $ 729,312
9 Existing Building Assessements & Utility Design $ 373,411 $ 373,411
10 Quality Control/Quality Assurance $ 45,084 $ 45,084

TJPA Total $ 420,000 $ 480,000 $ 900,000
A Program Director & Rebranding/Outreach $ 370,000 $ 380,000 $ 750,000
F Administrative Support for Executive Steering Committee $ 50,000 $ 100,000 $ 150,000

TOTAL $ 3,052,001 $ 8,854,557 $ 11,906,558
Task TJPA, PMPC, and Design Team Scope NTP 1 NTP 2 Total
A Program Management $ 1,078,311 $ 2,853,865 $ 3,932,176
B Program Implementation $ 1,151,000 $ 830,238 $ 1,981,238
C Design Management $ 82,531 $ 3,924,490 $ 4,007,021
D Project Controls $ 285,533 $ 321,253 $ 606,787
E Quality Control/Quality Assurance $ 37,586 $ 159,550 $ 197,136
F Document Control/Administrative $ 397,040 $ 725,160 $ 1,122,200
G Program Software $ 20,000 $ 40,000 $ 60,000

TOTAL $ 3,052,001 $ 8,854,557 $ 11,906,558

Combined Budget for TJPA, PMPC Team, and Design Team

65



San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Prop K/Prop AA Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: FY2019/20

Project Name: Downtown Extension - Phasing and Partial 15% Design

Grant Recipient: Transbay Joint Powers Authority

SFCTA RECOMMENDATION

Resolution Number: Resolution Date:

Total Prop K Requested: $11,906,558 Total Prop AA Requested: $0

Total Prop K Recommended: $11,906,558 Total Prop AA Recommended: $0

66



SGA Project Number: 105-914036 Name: Downtown Extension - NTP 1

Sponsor: Transbay Joint Powers Authority Expiration Date: 12/31/2020

Phase: Design Engineering Fundshare: 100.0

Cash Flow Distribution Schedule by Fiscal Year

Fund Source FY 2019/20 FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Total

PROP K EP-105 $500,000 $2,552,001 $0 $0 $0 $3,052,001

Deliverables

1. Monthly progress reports shall be submitted through the Transportation Authority's grants portal. Progress reports
shall include % complete of design, work performed in the prior month, Quarterly Program Master Schedule update, and
any issues that may impact schedule, in addition to all other requirements described in the Standard Grant Agreement.

2. On completion of Task A.2 (estimated by March 31, 2121): 1. Log of changes made to the Program; 2. Configuration
Management Plan; 3. Real estate acquisition plan.

3. On completion of Task B.1 (estimated by March 31, 2121): Summary Phasing Report and Plan.

Special Conditions

1. Recommendation is contingent upon an amendment to the Prop K Strategic Plan to advance outyear funds in the
Downtown Extension to a Rebuilt Transbay Terminal category to Fiscal Year 2019/20. Recommendation is also
contingent upon an exception to the Strategic Plan policy that sets aside all remaining funds not already programmed to
Phase 1 for Phase 2 (DTX) construction.  See attached Strategic Plan amendment for details.

2. Reimbursement of NTP 1 funds ($ 3,052,001) is contingent upon the TJPA’s execution by March 31, 2020 of a 6-party
Memorandum of Usnderstanding (MOU) between TJPA, Transportation Authority, MTC, Caltrain, CHSRA and CCSF for
the management of the project. (Condition met on April 9, 2020).

3. The NTP 1 deliverable Project Phasing Strategy will be presented to the TJPA Board for adoption and then to the
Transportation Authority Board for acceptance.

4. Allocation is conditioned upon continued compliance with the attached Oversight Protocol until such time as the MOU
(See Condition #2) is executed.

5. Progress reports may be calendared on a regular or as-needed basis on the Transportation Authority Board and/or
CAC meeting agendas, at the discretion of the Board Chair and Executive Director. Project updates may be consent
items or discussion items with presentation by SFCTA staff. In either case TJPA staff shall be in attendance to present
or answer questions from Board and CAC members, if requested.

6. Any procurements funded wholly or partially by this Prop K grant shall be consistent with the City and County of San
Francisco's Local Business Enterprise Program, local hire policies, and Ordinances 12.X and 12.X.2 to the extent
allowable by the various revenue sources that are used to fund the approved scope of work.

Notes

1. The scope of work will be adjusted as necessary to reflect the final scope of work as defined by the ESC/ IPMT work
program.

67



SGA Project Number: 105-914NT2 Name: Downtown Extension - NTP 2

Sponsor: Transbay Joint Powers Authority Expiration Date: 12/31/2021

Phase: Design Engineering Fundshare: 100.0

Cash Flow Distribution Schedule by Fiscal Year

Fund Source FY 2019/20 FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Total

PROP K EP-105 $0 $5,100,000 $3,754,557 $0 $0 $8,854,557

Deliverables

1. Monthly progress reports shall be submitted through the Transportation Authority's grants portal. Quarterly progress
reports shall include % complete of design, work performed in the prior month, Quarterly Program Master Schedule
update, and any issues that may impact schedule, in addition to all other requirements described in the Standard Grant
Agreement.

2. On completion of Task B.1 (estimated by June 2022): 1. Project Delivery Report, 2. Updated Contract Packaging
Report, 3. Work Plan Memorandum

3. On completion of Task B.2 (estimated by August 2022): Risk Assessment Report.

Special Conditions

1. See Special Condition 1 for SGA 105-914036.

2. NTP 2 funds ($8,854,557) are placed on reserve to be released by the Transportation Authority Board following: 1)
Transportation Authority Board acceptance of the Project Phasing Strategy  and Interim Budget and Schedule for Phase
2 (see Deliverables #2 and #3, respectively for NTP 1), and (b) the identification of a new Program Director in
accordance with the 6-party MOU.

3. Allocation is conditioned upon continued compliance with the attached Oversight Protocol until such time as the MOU
(See Condition #2, NTP 1) is executed.

4. Progress reports may be calendared on a regular or as-needed basis on the Transportation Authority Board and/or
CAC meeting agendas, at the discretion of the Board Chair and Executive Director. Project updates may be consent
items or discussion items with presentation by SFCTA staff. In either case TJPA staff shall be in attendance to present
or answer questions from Board and CAC members, if requested.

5. Any procurements funded wholly or partially by this Prop K grant shall be consistent with the City and County of San
Francisco's Local Business Enterprise Program, local hire policies, and Ordinances 12.X and 12.X.2 to the extent
allowable by the various revenue sources that are used to fund the approved scope of work.

Metric Prop K Prop AA

Actual Leveraging - Current Request 0.0% No Prop AA

Actual Leveraging - This Project 99.7% No Prop AA

68



San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Prop K/Prop AA Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: FY2019/20

Project Name: Downtown Extension - Phasing and Partial 15% Design

Grant Recipient: Transbay Joint Powers Authority

EXPENDITURE PLAN INFORMATION

Current Prop K Request: $11,906,558

1) The requested sales tax and/or vehicle registration fee revenues will be used to supplement and under no circumstance
replace existing local revenues used for transportation purposes.

Initials of sponsor staff member verifying the above statement

MM

CONTACT INFORMATION

Project Manager Grants Manager

Name: Skip Sowko Mary Pryor

Title: Senior Design & Engineering Manager Financial Consultant

Phone: (415) 597-4617 (415) 896-6945

Email: ssowko@tjpa.org mary@nwcpartners.com

69



 D
ra

ft
 2

01
9 

P
ro

p
 K

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t 
2.

 P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g 
an

d
 F

in
an

ce
 C

os
ts

 B
y 

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
 P

la
n

 L
in

e 
It

em
 (

Y
O

E
 $

's
)

Pr
op

os
ed

 A
m

en
dm

en
t 

4

Pr
og

ra
m

m
in

g
20

6,
49

0,
01

8
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
   

  

5
Fi

na
nc

e 
Co

st
s

34
,5

99
,6

06
$ 

   
   

   
  

3,
87

4,
96

1
$ 

   
3,

12
2,

46
3

$ 
  

2,
75

5,
30

5
$ 

 
3,

44
1,

81
3

$ 
 

2,
73

8,
58

7
$ 

 
2,

39
4,

04
7

$ 
 

2,
00

8,
85

6
$ 

 
1,

61
3,

79
5

$ 
 

1,
17

9,
50

5
$ 

 
68

6,
35

9
$ 

 
47

,0
26

$ 
   

-
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
  

To
ta

l
24

1,
08

9,
62

5
$ 

   
   

   
3,

87
4,

96
1

$ 
   

3,
12

2,
46

3
$ 

  
2,

75
5,

30
5

$ 
 

3,
44

1,
81

3
$ 

 
2,

73
8,

58
7

$ 
 

2,
39

4,
04

7
$ 

 
2,

00
8,

85
6

$ 
 

1,
61

3,
79

5
$ 

 
1,

17
9,

50
5

$ 
 

68
6,

35
9

$ 
 

47
,0

26
$ 

   
-

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
   

  

Pr
op

os
ed

 A
m

en
dm

en
t 

5

Pr
og

ra
m

m
in

g
21

3,
93

6,
39

5
$ 

   
   

   
16

,1
42

,6
67

$ 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
   

  
5

Fi
na

nc
e 

Co
st

s
32

,4
98

,5
56

$ 
   

   
   

  
2,

03
5,

98
6

$ 
   

1,
79

1,
46

5
$ 

  
3,

25
7,

83
4

$ 
 

3,
08

2,
67

5
$ 

 
2,

65
8,

66
3

$ 
 

2,
30

9,
61

7
$ 

 
2,

45
3,

47
7

$ 
 

1,
84

5,
93

2
$ 

 
1,

39
5,

11
4

$ 
 

89
3,

58
2

$ 
 

26
6,

88
7

$ 
 

-
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
  

To
ta

l
24

6,
43

4,
95

2
$ 

   
   

   
18

,1
78

,6
53

$ 
 

1,
79

1,
46

5
$ 

  
3,

25
7,

83
4

$ 
 

3,
08

2,
67

5
$ 

 
2,

65
8,

66
3

$ 
 

2,
30

9,
61

7
$ 

 
2,

45
3,

47
7

$ 
 

1,
84

5,
93

2
$ 

 
1,

39
5,

11
4

$ 
 

89
3,

58
2

$ 
 

26
6,

88
7

$ 
 

-
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
  

Ch
an

ge

Pr
og

ra
m

m
in

g
7,

44
6,

37
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

16
,1

42
,6

67
$ 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
  

5
Fi

na
nc

e 
Co

st
s

(2
,1

01
,0

50
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
(1

,8
38

,9
75

)
$ 

  
(1

,3
30

,9
98

)
$ 

 
50

2,
52

9
$ 

   
 

(3
59

,1
38

)
$ 

   
(7

9,
92

5)
$ 

   
  

(8
4,

43
0)

$ 
   

  
44

4,
62

1
$ 

   
 

23
2,

13
7

$ 
   

 
21

5,
60

9
$ 

   
 

20
7,

22
3

$ 
 

21
9,

86
1

$ 
 

-
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
  

To
ta

l
5,

34
5,

32
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

14
,3

03
,6

92
$ 

 
(1

,3
30

,9
98

)
$ 

 
50

2,
52

9
$ 

   
 

(3
59

,1
38

)
$ 

   
(7

9,
92

5)
$ 

   
  

(8
4,

43
0)

$ 
   

  
44

4,
62

1
$ 

   
 

23
2,

13
7

$ 
   

 
21

5,
60

9
$ 

   
 

20
7,

22
3

$ 
 

21
9,

86
1

$ 
 

-
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
  

Pr
og

ra
m

m
in

g
2,

47
6,

99
5,

70
7

$ 
   

   
Fi

na
nc

e 
Co

st
s

26
3,

24
8,

35
7

$ 
   

   
   

To
ta

l
2,

74
0,

24
4,

06
4

$ 
   

   

Pr
og

ra
m

m
in

g
2,

48
4,

44
2,

08
4

$ 
   

   
Fi

na
nc

e 
Co

st
s

23
8,

21
9,

43
9

$ 
   

   
   

To
ta

l
2,

72
2,

66
1,

52
3

$ 
   

   

Pr
og

ra
m

m
in

g
7,

44
6,

37
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

Fi
na

nc
e 

Co
st

s
(2

5,
02

8,
91

8)
$ 

   
   

   
 

To
ta

l
(1

7,
58

2,
54

1)
$ 

   
   

   
 

TO
TA

L 
ST

RA
TE

G
IC

 P
LA

N
 -

 C
ha

ng
e

 $
   

   
   

   
   

1,
33

6,
21

3 
-0

.9
0%

TO
TA

L 
ST

RA
TE

G
IC

 P
LA

N
 -

 a
s 

A
m

en
de

d
 $

   
   

  2
,7

94
,1

60
,0

45
 

9.
42

%

TO
TA

L 
ST

RA
TE

G
IC

 P
LA

N
 -

 a
s 

Pr
op

os
ed

 $
   

   
  2

,7
95

,4
96

,2
59

 
8.

52
%

 E
P 

N
o.

  E
P 

Li
ne

 It
em

 
 T

ot
al

 A
va

ila
bl

e 
Fu

nd
s 

 P
er

ce
nt

 o
f 

A
va

ila
bl

e 
Fu

nd
s 

Sp
en

t 
on

 
Fi

na
nc

in
g 

 
 T

ot
al

 P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g 
&

 F
in

an
ce

 C
os

ts
 

D
ow

nt
ow

n 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

to
 a

 R
eb

ui
lt

 
Tr

an
sb

ay
 T

er
m

in
al

14
9,

59
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-0

.7
4%

FY
20

33
/3

4
FY

20
27

/2
8

FY
20

28
/2

9
FY

20
29

/3
0

FY
20

30
/3

1
FY

20
31

/3
2

FY
20

32
/3

3
FY

20
21

/2
2

FY
20

22
/2

3
FY

20
23

/2
4

FY
20

24
/2

5
FY

20
25

/2
6

FY
20

26
/2

7
FY

20
19

/2
0

FY
20

20
/2

1
 E

P 
N

o.
  E

P 
Li

ne
 It

em
 

 T
ot

al
 A

va
ila

bl
e 

Fu
nd

s 
 P

er
ce

nt
 o

f 
A

va
ila

bl
e 

Fu
nd

s 
Sp

en
t 

on
 

Fi
na

nc
in

g 
 

 T
ot

al
 P

ro
gr

am
m

in
g 

&
 F

in
an

ce
 C

os
ts

 

D
ow

nt
ow

n 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

to
 a

 R
eb

ui
lt

 
Tr

an
sb

ay
 T

er
m

in
al

28
4,

57
4,

55
9

$ 
   

   
   

  
11

.4
2%

FY
20

33
/3

4
FY

20
27

/2
8

FY
20

28
/2

9
FY

20
29

/3
0

FY
20

30
/3

1
FY

20
31

/3
2

FY
20

32
/3

3
FY

20
21

/2
2

FY
20

22
/2

3
FY

20
23

/2
4

FY
20

24
/2

5
FY

20
25

/2
6

FY
20

26
/2

7
FY

20
19

/2
0

FY
20

20
/2

1
 E

P 
N

o.
  E

P 
Li

ne
 It

em
 

 T
ot

al
 A

va
ila

bl
e 

Fu
nd

s 
 P

er
ce

nt
 o

f 
A

va
ila

bl
e 

Fu
nd

s 
Sp

en
t 

on
 

Fi
na

nc
in

g 
 

 T
ot

al
 P

ro
gr

am
m

in
g 

&
 F

in
an

ce
 C

os
ts

 

D
ow

nt
ow

n 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

to
 a

 R
eb

ui
lt

 
Tr

an
sb

ay
 T

er
m

in
al

28
4,

42
4,

96
2

$ 
   

   
   

  
12

.1
6%

FY
20

33
/3

4
FY

20
27

/2
8

FY
20

28
/2

9
FY

20
29

/3
0

FY
20

30
/3

1
FY

20
31

/3
2

FY
20

32
/3

3
FY

20
21

/2
2

FY
20

22
/2

3
FY

20
23

/2
4

FY
20

24
/2

5
FY

20
25

/2
6

FY
20

26
/2

7
FY

20
19

/2
0

FY
20

20
/2

1
 E

P 
N

o.
  E

P 
Li

ne
 It

em
 

 T
ot

al
 A

va
ila

bl
e 

Fu
nd

s 
 P

er
ce

nt
 o

f 
A

va
ila

bl
e 

Fu
nd

s 
Sp

en
t 

on
 

Fi
na

nc
in

g 
 

 T
ot

al
 P

ro
gr

am
m

in
g 

&
 F

in
an

ce
 C

os
ts

 

P:
\P

ro
p 

K\
SP

-5
YP

P\
20

19
 L

iv
in

g\
3 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
 M

od
el

\6
 -

 2
01

9 
SP

 A
m

en
dm

en
t 

5 
(D

TX
)\

Co
m

pa
ri

so
n 

Ta
bl

e(
Re

vi
se

d)
.x

ls
x

1 
of

 1

70



 D
ra

ft
 2

01
9 

P
ro

p
 K

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t 
3.

 C
as

h
 F

lo
w

 a
n

d
 F

in
an

ce
 C

os
ts

 B
y 

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
 P

la
n

 L
in

e 
It

em
 (

Y
O

E
 $

's
)

Pr
op

os
ed

 A
m

en
dm

en
t 

4

Pr
og

ra
m

m
in

g
20

6,
49

0,
01

8
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5
Fi

na
nc

e 
Co

st
s

34
,5

99
,6

06
$ 

   
   

   
  

3,
87

4,
96

1
$ 

   
   

  
3,

12
2,

46
3

$ 
   

   
  

2,
75

5,
30

5
$ 

   
   

  
3,

44
1,

81
3

$ 
   

   
  

2,
73

8,
58

7
$ 

   
   

  
2,

39
4,

04
7

$ 
   

   
  

2,
00

8,
85

6
$ 

   
   

  
1,

61
3,

79
5

$ 
   

   
  

1,
17

9,
50

5
$ 

   
   

  
68

6,
35

9
$ 

   
   

   
  

47
,0

26
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

To
ta

l
24

1,
08

9,
62

5
$ 

   
   

   
3,

87
4,

96
1

$ 
   

   
  

3,
12

2,
46

3
$ 

   
   

  
2,

75
5,

30
5

$ 
   

   
  

3,
44

1,
81

3
$ 

   
   

  
2,

73
8,

58
7

$ 
   

   
  

2,
39

4,
04

7
$ 

   
   

  
2,

00
8,

85
6

$ 
   

   
  

1,
61

3,
79

5
$ 

   
   

  
1,

17
9,

50
5

$ 
   

   
  

68
6,

35
9

$ 
   

   
   

  
47

,0
26

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 A
m

en
dm

en
t 

5

Pr
og

ra
m

m
in

g
21

3,
93

6,
39

5
$ 

   
   

   
1,

19
7,

76
7

$ 
   

   
  

10
,6

04
,5

41
$ 

   
   

4,
34

0,
35

9
$ 

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

5
Fi

na
nc

e 
Co

st
s

32
,4

98
,5

56
$ 

   
   

   
  

2,
03

5,
98

6
$ 

   
   

  
1,

79
1,

46
5

$ 
   

   
  

3,
25

7,
83

4
$ 

   
   

  
3,

08
2,

67
5

$ 
   

   
  

2,
65

8,
66

3
$ 

   
   

  
2,

30
9,

61
7

$ 
   

   
  

2,
45

3,
47

7
$ 

   
   

  
1,

84
5,

93
2

$ 
   

   
  

1,
39

5,
11

4
$ 

   
   

  
89

3,
58

2
$ 

   
   

   
  

26
6,

88
7

$ 
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

To
ta

l
24

6,
43

4,
95

2
$ 

   
   

   
3,

23
3,

75
3

$ 
   

   
  

12
,3

96
,0

06
$ 

   
   

7,
59

8,
19

3
$ 

   
   

  
3,

08
2,

67
5

$ 
   

   
  

2,
65

8,
66

3
$ 

   
   

  
2,

30
9,

61
7

$ 
   

   
  

2,
45

3,
47

7
$ 

   
   

  
1,

84
5,

93
2

$ 
   

   
  

1,
39

5,
11

4
$ 

   
   

  
89

3,
58

2
$ 

   
   

   
  

26
6,

88
7

$ 
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

Ch
an

ge

Pr
og

ra
m

m
in

g
7,

44
6,

37
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
19

7,
76

7
$ 

   
   

  
10

,6
04

,5
41

$ 
   

   
4,

34
0,

35
9

$ 
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5
Fi

na
nc

e 
Co

st
s

(2
,1

01
,0

50
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
(1

,8
38

,9
75

)
$ 

   
   

(1
,3

30
,9

98
)

$ 
   

   
50

2,
52

9
$ 

   
   

   
  

(3
59

,1
38

)
$ 

   
   

   
 

(7
9,

92
5)

$ 
   

   
   

   
(8

4,
43

0)
$ 

   
   

   
   

44
4,

62
1

$ 
   

   
   

  
23

2,
13

7
$ 

   
   

   
  

21
5,

60
9

$ 
   

   
   

  
20

7,
22

3
$ 

   
   

   
  

21
9,

86
1

$ 
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

To
ta

l
5,

34
5,

32
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

(6
41

,2
08

)
$ 

   
   

   
 

9,
27

3,
54

3
$ 

   
   

  
4,

84
2,

88
8

$ 
   

   
  

(3
59

,1
38

)
$ 

   
   

   
 

(7
9,

92
5)

$ 
   

   
   

   
(8

4,
43

0)
$ 

   
   

   
   

44
4,

62
1

$ 
   

   
   

  
23

2,
13

7
$ 

   
   

   
  

21
5,

60
9

$ 
   

   
   

  
20

7,
22

3
$ 

   
   

   
  

21
9,

86
1

$ 
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

D
ow

nt
ow

n 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

to
 a

 R
eb

ui
lt

 
Tr

an
sb

ay
 T

er
m

in
al

28
4,

42
4,

96
2

$ 
   

   
   

  
12

.1
6%

 E
P 

N
o.

  E
P 

Li
ne

 It
em

 
 T

ot
al

 A
va

ila
bl

e 
Fu

nd
s 

 P
er

ce
nt

 o
f 

A
va

ila
bl

e 
Fu

nd
s 

Sp
en

t 
on

 
Fi

na
nc

in
g 

 
 T

ot
al

 P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g 
&

 F
in

an
ce

 C
os

ts
 

FY
20

33
/3

4
FY

20
27

/2
8

FY
20

28
/2

9
FY

20
29

/3
0

FY
20

30
/3

1
FY

20
31

/3
2

FY
20

32
/3

3
FY

20
21

/2
2

FY
20

22
/2

3
FY

20
23

/2
4

FY
20

24
/2

5
FY

20
25

/2
6

FY
20

26
/2

7
FY

20
19

/2
0

FY
20

20
/2

1

FY
20

19
/2

0
FY

20
20

/2
1

 E
P 

N
o.

  E
P 

Li
ne

 It
em

 
 T

ot
al

 A
va

ila
bl

e 
Fu

nd
s 

 P
er

ce
nt

 o
f 

A
va

ila
bl

e 
Fu

nd
s 

Sp
en

t 
on

 
Fi

na
nc

in
g 

 
 T

ot
al

 P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g 
&

 F
in

an
ce

 C
os

ts
 

FY
20

33
/3

4
FY

20
27

/2
8

FY
20

28
/2

9
FY

20
29

/3
0

FY
20

30
/3

1
FY

20
31

/3
2

FY
20

32
/3

3
FY

20
21

/2
2

FY
20

22
/2

3
FY

20
23

/2
4

FY
20

24
/2

5
FY

20
25

/2
6

FY
20

26
/2

7

 E
P 

N
o.

  E
P 

Li
ne

 It
em

 
 T

ot
al

 A
va

ila
bl

e 
Fu

nd
s 

 P
er

ce
nt

 o
f 

A
va

ila
bl

e 
Fu

nd
s 

Sp
en

t 
on

 
Fi

na
nc

in
g 

 
 T

ot
al

 P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g 
&

 F
in

an
ce

 C
os

ts
 

D
ow

nt
ow

n 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

to
 a

 R
eb

ui
lt

 
Tr

an
sb

ay
 T

er
m

in
al

28
4,

57
4,

55
9

$ 
   

   
   

  
11

.4
2%

FY
20

23
/2

4
FY

20
24

/2
5

FY
20

25
/2

6
FY

20
26

/2
7

FY
20

19
/2

0
FY

20
20

/2
1

D
ow

nt
ow

n 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

to
 a

 R
eb

ui
lt

 
Tr

an
sb

ay
 T

er
m

in
al

14
9,

59
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-0

.7
4%

FY
20

33
/3

4
FY

20
27

/2
8

FY
20

28
/2

9
FY

20
29

/3
0

FY
20

30
/3

1
FY

20
31

/3
2

FY
20

32
/3

3
FY

20
21

/2
2

FY
20

22
/2

3

P:
\P

ro
p 

K\
SP

-5
YP

P\
20

19
 L

iv
in

g\
3 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
 M

od
el

\6
 -

 2
01

9 
SP

 A
m

en
dm

en
t 

5 
(D

TX
)\

Co
m

pa
ri

so
n 

Ta
bl

e(
Re

vi
se

d)
.x

ls
xA

TT
 9

 (
Co

m
pa

ri
so

n)
1 

of
 1

71



San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Prop K/Prop AA Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: FY2019/20

Project Name: DTX Rail Program Oversight and Project Development Support

Grant Recipient: San Francisco County Transportation Authority

EXPENDITURE PLAN INFORMATION

Prop K EP categories: Transbay Terminal / Downtown Caltrain Extension

Current Prop K Request: $2,636,109

Supervisorial District(s): District 06, District 10

REQUEST

Brief Project Description
The Caltrain Downtown Extension (DTX) Program of Projects represents the most significant interrelated rail projects in
San Francisco and the region under development today.  In response to the Board’s interest in enhanced oversight for the
DTX, the work to be performed under this appropriation is intended to complement and enhance the SFCTA’s ongoing
oversight functions for the DTX and the Program of Projects.  This request is intended to fund an 18-month effort
dedicated to coordinating decision-making on the various components of the Program and advancing the DTX project to
shovel ready.

Detailed Scope, Project Benefits and Community Outreach
See attached

Project Location
District 6, District 10

Project Phase(s)
Planning/Conceptual Engineering

72



DTX Rail Program Oversight and Project Development Support 
 
The Caltrain Downtown Extension (DTX) Program of Projects represents the most significant 
interrelated rail projects in San Francisco and the region under development today. While some 
of them, like the DTX itself, are environmentally cleared, others are in the very early stages of 
planning. In response to the Board’s interest in enhanced oversight for the DTX, the work to be 
performed under this appropriation is intended to complement and enhance the Authority’s 
ongoing oversight functions for the DTX and the Program of related Projects.  This request is 
intended to fund SFCTA staff and consultants for an 18-month effort dedicated to coordinating 
decision-making on the various components of the Program and advancing the DTX project to 
shovel-ready status. 
 
This effort will be undertaken by a combination of both TJPA and SFCTA staff and consultants, 
with support from other members of the Integrated Program Management Team (IPMT). The 
goal of the effort is to achieve the following outcomes, consistent with the DTX Expert Peer 
Review Final Report recommendations: 
 

1. Re-position the Rail Program such that it is developed and delivered by a highly 
collaborative inter-agency team and viewed as a “project of regional and national 
significance” by  

a. re-defining the Program’s value proposition as providing a critical connectivity link 
for current and future developing megaregional and state rail services and  

b. establishing an affordability limit and confirming the business case for an initial 
operating segment 
 

2. Strengthen the program’s strong claim on revenues from existing and emerging sources 
by re-evaluating and strengthening the existing funding plan including 

a. separating high-confidence from low-confidence level revenue sources  
b. establishing a credible long-term financial plan, with stakeholder input, to secure 

the amount and timing of capital and operating funding needed to deliver each 
element of the program 

c. seeking new grant opportunities to support development 
 

3. Secure long-term, durable support of key local, regional, state, and federal elected 
officials and stakeholders by  

a. Identifying and empowering internal and external program champions to drive 
progress 

b. Engaging regional leaders and the public to build program support by 
demonstrating how the project(s) advance social equity, environmental, 
economic development and other regional goals 

c. Providing clear direction to Congressional Delegation on program benefits and 
eligible sources of federal funds/financing support for the program 

 
 

73



Scope: 
 
Task A: Establish and Initiate New Management Structure 

As recommended by the DTX Peer Review panel, and at the request of the TJPA Board, the 
San Francisco Peninsula Rail Program MOU has instituted the Executive Steering Committee 
(ESC), to support the TJPA in DTX project development efforts.  

1. Executive Steering Committee: The ESC will consist of the Executive Directors (or 
designees) of the TJPA, MTC, SFCTA, Caltrain, CHSRA and the CCSF. The ESC is 
empowered to implement the DTX Summary Work Program as described in the MOU, 
with each organization responsible for separate tasks.  
 

2. Integrated Program Management Team: The ESC will be supported by an Integrated 
Program Management Team (IPMT) consisting of qualified staff from each of the 
members’ agencies designated by their corresponding Executive. The IPMT will be 
responsible for overseeing the program on behalf of the ESC, including weekly meetings 
and management of deliverables.  
 

3. Engagement and Outreach: Engage the public, program partners, and decision makers 
to promote awareness of project tasks, costs, benefits and impacts and build consensus  

a. Decision-makers and Policy-makers 
i. Regularly brief TJPA Board and CAC members, as well as Transportation 

Authority, on project progress.  
ii. Brief State and Federal representatives on program benefits and eligible 

sources of federal funds and financing opportunities.  
iii. Participate in regional rail governance and organization conversations 

b. Partner coordination 
The consultant will need to presenting project information to partner agencies 
and policy-makers, briefing funding agencies (federal, state, regional) and 
legislators. 

c. Public Engagement 
Engage the public to build project awareness and support of the program. 

i. Engage civic, environmental, business organizations and transportation 
advocates and meet regularly with community/neighborhood groups  

ii. Maintain ongoing communications (web, social media, fact sheets, etc.) 
 

4. Rail Program Monitoring: Related Projects in the SF Peninsula Rail Program include 
projects covered by the Railyards MOU. On June 3, 2019 the SFCTA, together with the 
CCSF, Caltrain, TJPA and Prologis entered into an MOU that recognizes a number of 
studies and a projects with independent utility that may affect the 4th and King Railyard 
site (owned by Prologis), the Peninsula Corridor Joint Powers Board easement, and the 
land adjacent to the railyard in San Francisco. The MOU establishes a venue to 
coordinate staff work related to the planning, design, development, operations, 
scheduling, funding, and other matters affecting these studies and projects, by 

74



coordinating the following set of activities while providing a singular, focused forum to 
seek consensus and mutually support the objectives of each party: 

a. Railyard Site Land Use and Development Study (related to the RAB Study) and 
Railyard Neighborhood Planning Process  

b. Pennsylvania Avenue Extension (PAX) preliminary environmental scoping and 
conceptual design 

c. 22nd Street Station Location Study including as needed, consultation with the 
California High Speed Rail Authority (CHSRA)  

Deliverables:  

 A1 – Work Program Schedule and Meeting Agendas 
 A2 – Monthly Progress Reports and Quarterly Board Reports 
 A3 – Outreach Plan and Workshops 
 A4 – Monitoring Reports/Coordination Meeting Minutes 

 
Task B: Define a Fundable and Deliverable Initial Phase of the DTX Project 
 
In addition to the technical elements of design development, there will be a parallel effort to re-
set the DTX as a project of regional and statewide importance which will enhance the project’s 
visibility and funding competitiveness.  

The SFCTA is responsible for leading planning and demand analysis efforts as well as co-
leading review of funding, governance, project delivery and contracting strategies.  

 
1. Planning and Coordination: Regional Rail Network Planning and Coordination - This 

task involves coordinating with various related rail system studies to identify a regionally 
preferred rail network integration approach.   

a. Caltrain Business Plan/Service Plan 
b. HSR Preferred Alternative 
c. Second Bay Crossings Study (BART and Capitol Corridor/Standard Gauge) 
d. Other Transbay Corridor Network Improvements  

2. Demand Benefit Analysis: Perform Demand and Benefit Analysis – This task involves 
coordinating with Caltrain and HSR on operational scenarios and estimating associated 
travel demand and benefits for the DTX project, using the SFCTA’s travel demand 
forecasting model and coordination with other planning tools. Includes coordination with 
and estimation of: 

a. Existing transit rider (Caltrain, Muni, BART A/C Transit) benefits (travel time or 
accessibility, crowding alleviation, reliability) 

b. New transit rider benefits (Caltrain, other operators) 
c. High Speed Rail rider benefits (accessibility) 
d. Transportation system benefits (e.g. regional/inter-regional highway network 

delay, vehicle miles traveled, greenhouse gas emissions avoided)Transportation 
and Land Use System Impact – Additionally, this task will estimate potential 
transportation and land use impacts of the DTX project as a component of a 
larger integrated regional rail network.  

 

75



3. Funding Strategy: Initial Operating Segment (IOS) and Full Project Funding Strategy – 
This task involves revaluating and strengthening the existing funding plan for the defined 
IOS and full project per the MOU work plan.   

a. Establish preferred IOS: 
i. Help identify preferred IOS and analyze business case 
ii. Support financial analysis for phasing scenarios from engineering work 

stream  
b. Determine Implementation Strategy:  

i. Evaluate Procurement plans and contracting strategy  
ii. Analyze funding plan alternatives and alternative delivery methods 

c. Establish a credible long-term financial plan, with stakeholder input, to secure 
capital and operating funding needed to deliver each program element 

i. Update DTX funding sources for capital and operating expenses, over the 
next 10+ years 

ii. Identify an upper limit of funding by 2030 
 
Deliverables:  

 B1 – Planning Coordination Study 
 B2 – Demand Benefit Analysis Report 
 B3 – IOS and Full Project Funding Strategy 

 

Task C: Oversight of Project Delivery Strategy Selection 

 
In addition to expanding staff capacity through consultant Project Management and Oversight 
(PMO) services, it is the intent of the SFCTA to engage independent subject matter experts in 
key areas of program evaluation. These areas will include but are not limited to: rail program 
operations, project delivery strategy, tunneling/underground construction, railway engineering, 
right-of-way, and procurement. The consultants will be contributors to oversight and review 
activities to assure that DTX project development and engineering efforts meet the highest 
standards of quality and efficiency. The consultant experts and their resources will provide 
recommendations, concepts and ideas for the consideration of IPMT. Oversight efforts related 
to Phase 2 of the DTX project design will include: 
 

1. Project Management: The consultant will provide third party review of project phasing 
plan prepared as part of DTX Phase 2 design work, inclusive of project delivery methods 
and industry standards.  

2. Constructability: Review of proposed methods for tunneling, boring, cut-and-cover, 
underpinning, excavation, geotechnical evaluation. Also evaluate means of access and 
ability to maintain rail operations throughout construction.  

3. Engineering: Review of design criteria for trackwork, ventilation, train operations, 
structural elements and utilities 

4. Right of Way: The consultant will work with the IPMT to review of real estate acquisition 
plan and procurement strategy: 

76



5. Cost Estimating: The consultant will prepare independent cost estimating for alternative 
delivery methods and phasing recommended by the IPMT. 
 

Deliverables: 
 C1 - Phasing Plan Review 
 C2 - Constructability Review 
 C3 - Initial Operating Segment Review 
 C4 - ROW Acquisition Plan Review 
 C5 - Independent Cost Estimates 

 
Task D: Undertake a Governance and Oversight Review and Transition 

1. Governance Strategy: SFCTA and MTC, in close coordination with TJPA are co-
leading review of the governance strategy per the MOU Summary Work Plan. The 
review will consider alternative business models and approaches to rail service 
operation within the region. 

a. Conduct studies, consultations and workshops with stakeholder agencies and 
organizations to identify potential and preferred Lead Agency arrangements for 
DTX Project delivery 

b. Define responsibility for permanent governance and rail delivery lead agency and 
organizational plan, and scope agreements for delivery of the DTX Rail Program 

Deliverables: 
 D1 - Governance Strategy Review 

77



5YPP/STRATEGIC PLAN INFORMATION

Type of Project in the Prop K 5YPP/Prop
AA Strategic Plan?

Named Project

Is requested amount greater than the
amount programmed in the relevant

5YPP or Strategic Plan?

Greater than Programmed Amount

Prop AA Strategic Plan Amount: $0

Justification for Necessary Amendment

In 2018 the Transportation Authority programmed and allocated $9,678,626 In EP-5 funds for DTX 30% Design Part 1,
of which $8,696,290 was deobligated in November 2019 pursuant to suspension of the grant by the Transportation
Authority. Also in November 2019 the Board approved reprogramming and appropriation of $1.6 million of the
deobligated funds for the Pennsylvania Avenue Extension Pre-environmental project. The TJPA and Transportation
Authority are now requesting a total of $14.5 million for Downtown Extension—Phasing and Partial 15% Design and Rail
Program Oversight. These requests require a Prop K Strategic Plan amendment to program the remainder of the
deobligated funds to the two projects in FY2019/20, and advance an additional $5.8 million in unprogrammed capacity
in the Downtown Extension to a Rebuilt Transbay Terminal category.

78



San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Prop K/Prop AA Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: FY2019/20

Project Name: DTX Rail Program Oversight and Project Development Support

Grant Recipient: San Francisco County Transportation Authority

ENVIRONMENTAL CLEARANCE

Environmental Type: N/A

PROJECT DELIVERY MILESTONES

Phase Start End

Quarter Calendar Year Quarter Calendar Year

Planning/Conceptual Engineering Apr-May-Jun 2020 Oct-Nov-Dec 2021

Environmental Studies (PA&ED)

Right of Way

Design Engineering (PS&E)

Advertise Construction

Start Construction (e.g. Award Contract)

Operations

Open for Use

Project Completion (means last eligible expenditure)

SCHEDULE DETAILS

Task     Deliverables:                                                             Estimated Completion Date
A1 - Work Program Schedule and Meeting Agendas
A2 - Monthly Progress Reports and Quarterly Board Reports
A3 - Outreach Planand Workshops                                       Summer 2020
A4 - Monitoring Reports/ Coordination Meeting Minutes
B1 - Planning Coordination Study
B2 - Demand Benefit Analysis Report                                   Spring 2021
B3 - IOS and Full Project Funding Strategy                          Summer 2021
C1 - Phasing Plan Review                                                     Fall 2020
C2 - Constructability Review                                                 Winter 2021  
C3 - Initial Operating Segment Review                                 Fall 2020
C4 - ROW Acquisition Plan Review                                      Spring 2021
C5 - Independent Cost Estimates                                         Summer 2021
D1 - Governance Strategy                                                    Fall 2021

79



San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Prop K/Prop AA Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: FY2019/20

Project Name: DTX Rail Program Oversight and Project Development Support

Grant Recipient: San Francisco County Transportation Authority

FUNDING PLAN - FOR CURRENT REQUEST

Fund Source Planned Programmed Allocated Project Total

PROP K: Transbay Terminal / Downtown
Caltrain Extension

$2,636,109 $0 $0 $2,636,109

Phases in Current Request Total: $2,636,109 $0 $0 $2,636,109

COST SUMMARY

Phase Total Cost Prop K -
Current
Request

Source of Cost Estimate

Planning/Conceptual Engineering $2,636,109 $2,636,109 Project Cost Estimate based on scope of work

Environmental Studies (PA&ED) $0 $0

Right of Way $0 $0

Design Engineering (PS&E) $0 $0

Construction (CON) $0 $0

Operations $0 $0

Total: $2,636,109 $2,636,109

% Complete of Design: N/A

As of Date: N/A

Expected Useful Life: N/A

80



DT
X 
Pr
og
ra
m
 M

an
ag
em

en
t O

ve
rs
ig
ht
 A
pp

ro
pr
ia
tio

n 
Bu

dg
et

18
 m

on
th
 p
er
io
d

$2
96

$2
45

$2
71

$2
56

$2
74

$1
99

Ta
sk
  

Sc
op

e
To

ta
l C
os
t

St
af
f C

os
t

Co
ns
ul
ta
nt
 

Co
st

De
pu

ty
 

Di
re
ct
or
 

Ca
pi
ta
l 

Pr
oj
ec
ts

As
sis
ta
nt
 

De
pu

ty
 

Di
re
ct
or
 

CP

Ra
il 

Pr
og

ra
m
 

M
an

ag
er

De
pu

ty
 

Di
re
ct
or
 

Pl
an

ni
ng

De
pu

ty
 

Di
re
ct
or
 

Da
ta
 

An
al
ys
is

Di
re
ct
or
 

of
 

Co
m
m
s

60
6

96
2

18
0

15
6

27
0

$3
77

,5
86

$1
49

,2
86

$2
28

,3
00

$5
3,
28

0
$4

2,
27

6
$5

3,
73

0
91

0
50

0
80

16
0

39
0

16
0

12
0

$4
17

,4
10

$2
42

,4
10

$1
75

,0
00

$2
3,
68

0
$3

9,
20

0
$1

05
,6
90

$4
0,
96

0
$3

2,
88

0
94

4
3,
02

0
20

0
12

0
62

4
$1

,0
41

,7
04

$2
57

,7
04

$7
84

,0
00

$5
9,
20

0
$2

9,
40

0
$1

69
,1
04

43
2

31
9

12
0

31
2

$2
34

,3
72

$1
20

,0
72

$1
14

,3
00

$3
5,
52

0
$8

4,
55

2
10

%
 C
on

tin
ge
nc
y

$2
07

,1
07

$7
7,
17
6

$1
30

,5
44

58
0

28
0

14
82

16
0

12
0

27
0

Su
bt
ot
al

$2
,2
78

,1
79

$8
49

,5
40

$1
,4
36

,9
45

$1
71

,6
80

$6
8,
60

0
$4

01
,6
22

$4
0,
96

0
$3

2,
88

0
$5

3,
73

0

33
0

$3
57

,9
30

$9
7,
68

0
$2

60
,2
50

$9
7,
68

0
To

ta
l

$2
,6
36

,1
09

$9
47

,2
20

$1
,6
97

,1
95

*N
ot
e:
 B
ud

ge
t a

cc
ou

nt
s f
or
 a
dd

iti
on

al
 c
os
ts
 fo

r D
TX

 e
xp
er
t p

an
el
 re

vi
ew

Ex
pe

rt
 P
an
el
 R
ev
ie
w
*

Es
ta
bl
ish

 a
nd

 In
iti
at
e 
N
ew

 
M
an
ag
em

en
t S

tr
uc
tu
re

De
fin

e 
a 
Fu
nd

ab
le
 a
nd

 D
el
iv
er
ab
le
 

In
iti
al
 P
ha
se
 o
f t
he

 D
TX

 P
ro
je
ct

St
af
f H

ou
rs

O
ve
rs
ig
ht
 o
f P

ro
je
ct
 D
el
iv
er
y 
St
ra
te
gy
 

Se
le
ct
io
n

U
nd

er
ta
ke
 a
 G
ov
er
na
nc
e 
an
d 

O
ve
rs
ig
ht
 R
ev
ie
w
 a
nd

 T
ra
ns
iti
on

A B C D

81



DT
X 
Pr
og
ra
m
 M

an
ag
em

en
t O

ve
rs
ig
ht
 A
pp

ro
pr
ia
tio

n 
Bu

dg
et

18
 m

on
th
 p
er
io
d

Ta
sk
  

Sc
op

e
To

ta
l C
os
t

St
af
f C

os
t

Co
ns
ul
ta
nt
 

Co
st

60
6

96
2

$3
77

,5
86

$1
49

,2
86

$2
28

,3
00

91
0

50
0

$4
17

,4
10

$2
42

,4
10

$1
75

,0
00

94
4

3,
02

0
$1

,0
41

,7
04

$2
57

,7
04

$7
84

,0
00

43
2

31
9

$2
34

,3
72

$1
20

,0
72

$1
14

,3
00

10
%
 C
on

tin
ge
nc
y

$2
07

,1
07

$7
7,
17
6

$1
30

,5
44

Su
bt
ot
al

$2
,2
78

,1
79

$8
49

,5
40

$1
,4
36

,9
45

$3
57

,9
30

$9
7,
68

0
$2

60
,2
50

To
ta
l

$2
,6
36

,1
09

$9
47

,2
20

$1
,6
97

,1
95

*N
ot
e:
 B
ud

ge
t a

cc
ou

nt
s f
or
 a
dd

iti
on

al
 c
os
ts
 fo

r D
TX

 e
xp
er
t p

an
el
 re

vi
ew

Ex
pe

rt
 P
an
el
 R
ev
ie
w
*

Es
ta
bl
ish

 a
nd

 In
iti
at
e 
N
ew

 
M
an
ag
em

en
t S

tr
uc
tu
re

De
fin

e 
a 
Fu
nd

ab
le
 a
nd

 D
el
iv
er
ab
le
 

In
iti
al
 P
ha
se
 o
f t
he

 D
TX

 P
ro
je
ct

O
ve
rs
ig
ht
 o
f P

ro
je
ct
 D
el
iv
er
y 
St
ra
te
gy
 

Se
le
ct
io
n

U
nd

er
ta
ke
 a
 G
ov
er
na
nc
e 
an
d 

O
ve
rs
ig
ht
 R
ev
ie
w
 a
nd

 T
ra
ns
iti
on

A B C D

$3
25

$9
5

$2
00

$4
50

$3
50

$2
75

$3
00

$3
00

$2
25

$2
25

Pr
og

ra
m
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

O
ve
rs
ig
ht

Ad
m
in
 

Su
pp

or
t

O
ut
re
ac
h

Le
ga

l
Fu
nd

in
g

Ra
il

Tu
nn

el
s

O
pe
ra
tio

ns
RO

W

In
de
pe
nd

en
t 

Co
st
 

Es
tim

at
or

31
2

22
0

35
0

80
$1

01
,4
00

$2
0,
90

0
$7

0,
00

0
$3

6,
00

0
50

0
$1

75
,0
00

78
0

40
0

40
0

50
0

28
0

22
0

44
0

$2
53

,5
00

$3
8,
00

0
$1

10
,0
00

$1
50

,0
00

$8
4,
00

0
$4

9,
50

0
$9

9,
00

0
23

4
85

$7
6,
05

0
$3

8,
25

0

13
26

62
0

35
0

16
5

50
0

40
0

50
0

28
0

22
0

44
0

$4
30

,9
50

$5
8,
90

0
$7

0,
00

0
$7

4,
25

0
$1

75
,0
00

$1
10

,0
00

$1
50

,0
00

$8
4,
00

0
$4

9,
50

0
$9

9,
00

0

31
0

11
0

40
0

$1
00

,7
50

$4
9,
50

0
$1

10
,0
00

Co
ns
ul
ta
nt
 H
ou

rs

82



San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Prop K/Prop AA Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: FY2019/20

Project Name: DTX Rail Program Oversight and Project Development Support

Grant Recipient: San Francisco County Transportation Authority

SFCTA RECOMMENDATION

Resolution Number: Resolution Date:

Total Prop K Requested: $2,636,109 Total Prop AA Requested: $0

Total Prop K Recommended: $2,636,109 Total Prop AA Recommended: $0

83



SGA Project Number: 105-XXX Name: Rail Program Oversight

Sponsor: San Francisco County
Transportation Authority

Expiration Date: 03/31/2022

Phase: Planning/Conceptual Engineering Fundshare: 100.0

Cash Flow Distribution Schedule by Fiscal Year

Fund Source FY 2019/20 FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Total

PROP K EP-105 $292,901 $1,757,406 $585,802 $0 $0 $2,636,109

Deliverables

1. Monthly progress reports shall be submitted through the Transportation Authority's grants portal with updates on each
of the oversight tasks in the scope of work.

2. On completion of Task A3 – Outreach Plan and Workshops (estimated by September, 2020): Outreach Plan for
partner coordination and public engagement.

3. On completion of Task B - Define a Fundable and Deliverable Initial Phase of the DTX Project: (estimated by
September 2021): (1) Planning Coordination Study; (2) Demand Benefit Analysis of benefits to Caltrain, Muni, BART
and A/C Transit riders as well as regional and inter-regional transportation networks; (3) IOS and Full Project Funding
Strategy.

4. On completion of Task C - Oversight of Project Delivery Strategy Selection (estimated by September 2021): Project
Due Diligence Report, including Phasing Plan Review, Constructability Review, Independent Cost Estimates.

5. On completion of Task D – Governance Strategy (estimated by December 2021): Governance Strategy identifying
preferred lead agency and defining permanent governance responsibilities.

Special Conditions

1. Recommendation is contingent upon an amendment to the Prop K Strategic Plan to advance outyear funds in the
Downtown Extension to a Rebuilt Transbay Terminal category to Fiscal Year 2019/20. Recommendation is also
contingent upon an exception to the Strategic Plan policy that sets aside all remaining funds not already programmed to
Phase 1 for Phase 2 (DTX) construction.  See attached Strategic Plan amendment for details.

2. Progress reports may be calendared on a regular or as-needed basis on the Transportation Authority Board and/or
CAC meeting agendas, at the discretion of the Board Chair and Executive Director. Project updates may be consent
items or discussion items with presentation by staff.

3. Any procurements funded wholly or partially by this Prop K grant shall be consistent with the City and County of San
Francisco's Local Business Enterprise Program, local hire policies, and Ordinances 12.X and 12.X.2 to the extent
allowable by the various revenue sources that are used to fund the approved scope of work.

Notes

1. Retroactive expenditures are eligible for this grant

Metric Prop K Prop AA

Actual Leveraging - Current Request 0.0% No Prop AA

Actual Leveraging - This Project 0.0% No Prop AA

84



San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Prop K/Prop AA Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: FY2019/20

Project Name: DTX Rail Program Oversight and Project Development Support

Grant Recipient: San Francisco County Transportation Authority

EXPENDITURE PLAN INFORMATION

Current Prop K Request: $2,636,109

1) The requested sales tax and/or vehicle registration fee revenues will be used to supplement and under no circumstance
replace existing local revenues used for transportation purposes.

Initials of sponsor staff member verifying the above statement

YW

CONTACT INFORMATION

Project Manager Grants Manager

Name: Yana Waldman Anna LaForte

Title: Assistant Deputy Director Deputy Director for Policy & Programming

Phone: (415) 522-4813 (415) 522-4805

Email: yana.waldman@sfcta.org anna.laforte@sfcta.org

85



 D
ra

ft
 2

01
9 

P
ro

p
 K

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t 
2.

 P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g 
an

d
 F

in
an

ce
 C

os
ts

 B
y 

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
 P

la
n

 L
in

e 
It

em
 (

Y
O

E
 $

's
)

Pr
op

os
ed

 A
m

en
dm

en
t 

4

Pr
og

ra
m

m
in

g
20

6,
49

0,
01

8
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
   

  

5
Fi

na
nc

e 
Co

st
s

34
,5

99
,6

06
$ 

   
   

   
  

3,
87

4,
96

1
$ 

   
3,

12
2,

46
3

$ 
  

2,
75

5,
30

5
$ 

 
3,

44
1,

81
3

$ 
 

2,
73

8,
58

7
$ 

 
2,

39
4,

04
7

$ 
 

2,
00

8,
85

6
$ 

 
1,

61
3,

79
5

$ 
 

1,
17

9,
50

5
$ 

 
68

6,
35

9
$ 

 
47

,0
26

$ 
   

-
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
  

To
ta

l
24

1,
08

9,
62

5
$ 

   
   

   
3,

87
4,

96
1

$ 
   

3,
12

2,
46

3
$ 

  
2,

75
5,

30
5

$ 
 

3,
44

1,
81

3
$ 

 
2,

73
8,

58
7

$ 
 

2,
39

4,
04

7
$ 

 
2,

00
8,

85
6

$ 
 

1,
61

3,
79

5
$ 

 
1,

17
9,

50
5

$ 
 

68
6,

35
9

$ 
 

47
,0

26
$ 

   
-

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
   

  

Pr
op

os
ed

 A
m

en
dm

en
t 

5

Pr
og

ra
m

m
in

g
21

3,
93

6,
39

5
$ 

   
   

   
16

,1
42

,6
67

$ 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
   

  
5

Fi
na

nc
e 

Co
st

s
32

,4
98

,5
56

$ 
   

   
   

  
2,

03
5,

98
6

$ 
   

1,
79

1,
46

5
$ 

  
3,

25
7,

83
4

$ 
 

3,
08

2,
67

5
$ 

 
2,

65
8,

66
3

$ 
 

2,
30

9,
61

7
$ 

 
2,

45
3,

47
7

$ 
 

1,
84

5,
93

2
$ 

 
1,

39
5,

11
4

$ 
 

89
3,

58
2

$ 
 

26
6,

88
7

$ 
 

-
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
  

To
ta

l
24

6,
43

4,
95

2
$ 

   
   

   
18

,1
78

,6
53

$ 
 

1,
79

1,
46

5
$ 

  
3,

25
7,

83
4

$ 
 

3,
08

2,
67

5
$ 

 
2,

65
8,

66
3

$ 
 

2,
30

9,
61

7
$ 

 
2,

45
3,

47
7

$ 
 

1,
84

5,
93

2
$ 

 
1,

39
5,

11
4

$ 
 

89
3,

58
2

$ 
 

26
6,

88
7

$ 
 

-
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
  

Ch
an

ge

Pr
og

ra
m

m
in

g
7,

44
6,

37
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

16
,1

42
,6

67
$ 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
  

5
Fi

na
nc

e 
Co

st
s

(2
,1

01
,0

50
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
(1

,8
38

,9
75

)
$ 

  
(1

,3
30

,9
98

)
$ 

 
50

2,
52

9
$ 

   
 

(3
59

,1
38

)
$ 

   
(7

9,
92

5)
$ 

   
  

(8
4,

43
0)

$ 
   

  
44

4,
62

1
$ 

   
 

23
2,

13
7

$ 
   

 
21

5,
60

9
$ 

   
 

20
7,

22
3

$ 
 

21
9,

86
1

$ 
 

-
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
  

To
ta

l
5,

34
5,

32
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

14
,3

03
,6

92
$ 

 
(1

,3
30

,9
98

)
$ 

 
50

2,
52

9
$ 

   
 

(3
59

,1
38

)
$ 

   
(7

9,
92

5)
$ 

   
  

(8
4,

43
0)

$ 
   

  
44

4,
62

1
$ 

   
 

23
2,

13
7

$ 
   

 
21

5,
60

9
$ 

   
 

20
7,

22
3

$ 
 

21
9,

86
1

$ 
 

-
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
  

Pr
og

ra
m

m
in

g
2,

47
6,

99
5,

70
7

$ 
   

   
Fi

na
nc

e 
Co

st
s

26
3,

24
8,

35
7

$ 
   

   
   

To
ta

l
2,

74
0,

24
4,

06
4

$ 
   

   

Pr
og

ra
m

m
in

g
2,

48
4,

44
2,

08
4

$ 
   

   
Fi

na
nc

e 
Co

st
s

23
8,

21
9,

43
9

$ 
   

   
   

To
ta

l
2,

72
2,

66
1,

52
3

$ 
   

   

Pr
og

ra
m

m
in

g
7,

44
6,

37
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

Fi
na

nc
e 

Co
st

s
(2

5,
02

8,
91

8)
$ 

   
   

   
 

To
ta

l
(1

7,
58

2,
54

1)
$ 

   
   

   
 

TO
TA

L 
ST

RA
TE

G
IC

 P
LA

N
 -

 C
ha

ng
e

 $
   

   
   

   
   

1,
33

6,
21

3 
-0

.9
0%

TO
TA

L 
ST

RA
TE

G
IC

 P
LA

N
 -

 a
s 

A
m

en
de

d
 $

   
   

  2
,7

94
,1

60
,0

45
 

9.
42

%

TO
TA

L 
ST

RA
TE

G
IC

 P
LA

N
 -

 a
s 

Pr
op

os
ed

 $
   

   
  2

,7
95

,4
96

,2
59

 
8.

52
%

 E
P 

N
o.

  E
P 

Li
ne

 It
em

 
 T

ot
al

 A
va

ila
bl

e 
Fu

nd
s 

 P
er

ce
nt

 o
f 

A
va

ila
bl

e 
Fu

nd
s 

Sp
en

t 
on

 
Fi

na
nc

in
g 

 
 T

ot
al

 P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g 
&

 F
in

an
ce

 C
os

ts
 

D
ow

nt
ow

n 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

to
 a

 R
eb

ui
lt

 
Tr

an
sb

ay
 T

er
m

in
al

14
9,

59
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-0

.7
4%

FY
20

33
/3

4
FY

20
27

/2
8

FY
20

28
/2

9
FY

20
29

/3
0

FY
20

30
/3

1
FY

20
31

/3
2

FY
20

32
/3

3
FY

20
21

/2
2

FY
20

22
/2

3
FY

20
23

/2
4

FY
20

24
/2

5
FY

20
25

/2
6

FY
20

26
/2

7
FY

20
19

/2
0

FY
20

20
/2

1
 E

P 
N

o.
  E

P 
Li

ne
 It

em
 

 T
ot

al
 A

va
ila

bl
e 

Fu
nd

s 
 P

er
ce

nt
 o

f 
A

va
ila

bl
e 

Fu
nd

s 
Sp

en
t 

on
 

Fi
na

nc
in

g 
 

 T
ot

al
 P

ro
gr

am
m

in
g 

&
 F

in
an

ce
 C

os
ts

 

D
ow

nt
ow

n 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

to
 a

 R
eb

ui
lt

 
Tr

an
sb

ay
 T

er
m

in
al

28
4,

57
4,

55
9

$ 
   

   
   

  
11

.4
2%

FY
20

33
/3

4
FY

20
27

/2
8

FY
20

28
/2

9
FY

20
29

/3
0

FY
20

30
/3

1
FY

20
31

/3
2

FY
20

32
/3

3
FY

20
21

/2
2

FY
20

22
/2

3
FY

20
23

/2
4

FY
20

24
/2

5
FY

20
25

/2
6

FY
20

26
/2

7
FY

20
19

/2
0

FY
20

20
/2

1
 E

P 
N

o.
  E

P 
Li

ne
 It

em
 

 T
ot

al
 A

va
ila

bl
e 

Fu
nd

s 
 P

er
ce

nt
 o

f 
A

va
ila

bl
e 

Fu
nd

s 
Sp

en
t 

on
 

Fi
na

nc
in

g 
 

 T
ot

al
 P

ro
gr

am
m

in
g 

&
 F

in
an

ce
 C

os
ts

 

D
ow

nt
ow

n 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

to
 a

 R
eb

ui
lt

 
Tr

an
sb

ay
 T

er
m

in
al

28
4,

42
4,

96
2

$ 
   

   
   

  
12

.1
6%

FY
20

33
/3

4
FY

20
27

/2
8

FY
20

28
/2

9
FY

20
29

/3
0

FY
20

30
/3

1
FY

20
31

/3
2

FY
20

32
/3

3
FY

20
21

/2
2

FY
20

22
/2

3
FY

20
23

/2
4

FY
20

24
/2

5
FY

20
25

/2
6

FY
20

26
/2

7
FY

20
19

/2
0

FY
20

20
/2

1
 E

P 
N

o.
  E

P 
Li

ne
 It

em
 

 T
ot

al
 A

va
ila

bl
e 

Fu
nd

s 
 P

er
ce

nt
 o

f 
A

va
ila

bl
e 

Fu
nd

s 
Sp

en
t 

on
 

Fi
na

nc
in

g 
 

 T
ot

al
 P

ro
gr

am
m

in
g 

&
 F

in
an

ce
 C

os
ts

 

P:
\P

ro
p 

K\
SP

-5
YP

P\
20

19
 L

iv
in

g\
3 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
 M

od
el

\6
 -

 2
01

9 
SP

 A
m

en
dm

en
t 

5 
(D

TX
)\

Co
m

pa
ri

so
n 

Ta
bl

e(
Re

vi
se

d)
.x

ls
x

1 
of

 1

86



 D
ra

ft
 2

01
9 

P
ro

p
 K

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t 
3.

 C
as

h
 F

lo
w

 a
n

d
 F

in
an

ce
 C

os
ts

 B
y 

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
 P

la
n

 L
in

e 
It

em
 (

Y
O

E
 $

's
)

Pr
op

os
ed

 A
m

en
dm

en
t 

4

Pr
og

ra
m

m
in

g
20

6,
49

0,
01

8
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5
Fi

na
nc

e 
Co

st
s

34
,5

99
,6

06
$ 

   
   

   
  

3,
87

4,
96

1
$ 

   
   

  
3,

12
2,

46
3

$ 
   

   
  

2,
75

5,
30

5
$ 

   
   

  
3,

44
1,

81
3

$ 
   

   
  

2,
73

8,
58

7
$ 

   
   

  
2,

39
4,

04
7

$ 
   

   
  

2,
00

8,
85

6
$ 

   
   

  
1,

61
3,

79
5

$ 
   

   
  

1,
17

9,
50

5
$ 

   
   

  
68

6,
35

9
$ 

   
   

   
  

47
,0

26
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

To
ta

l
24

1,
08

9,
62

5
$ 

   
   

   
3,

87
4,

96
1

$ 
   

   
  

3,
12

2,
46

3
$ 

   
   

  
2,

75
5,

30
5

$ 
   

   
  

3,
44

1,
81

3
$ 

   
   

  
2,

73
8,

58
7

$ 
   

   
  

2,
39

4,
04

7
$ 

   
   

  
2,

00
8,

85
6

$ 
   

   
  

1,
61

3,
79

5
$ 

   
   

  
1,

17
9,

50
5

$ 
   

   
  

68
6,

35
9

$ 
   

   
   

  
47

,0
26

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 A
m

en
dm

en
t 

5

Pr
og

ra
m

m
in

g
21

3,
93

6,
39

5
$ 

   
   

   
1,

19
7,

76
7

$ 
   

   
  

10
,6

04
,5

41
$ 

   
   

4,
34

0,
35

9
$ 

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

5
Fi

na
nc

e 
Co

st
s

32
,4

98
,5

56
$ 

   
   

   
  

2,
03

5,
98

6
$ 

   
   

  
1,

79
1,

46
5

$ 
   

   
  

3,
25

7,
83

4
$ 

   
   

  
3,

08
2,

67
5

$ 
   

   
  

2,
65

8,
66

3
$ 

   
   

  
2,

30
9,

61
7

$ 
   

   
  

2,
45

3,
47

7
$ 

   
   

  
1,

84
5,

93
2

$ 
   

   
  

1,
39

5,
11

4
$ 

   
   

  
89

3,
58

2
$ 

   
   

   
  

26
6,

88
7

$ 
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

To
ta

l
24

6,
43

4,
95

2
$ 

   
   

   
3,

23
3,

75
3

$ 
   

   
  

12
,3

96
,0

06
$ 

   
   

7,
59

8,
19

3
$ 

   
   

  
3,

08
2,

67
5

$ 
   

   
  

2,
65

8,
66

3
$ 

   
   

  
2,

30
9,

61
7

$ 
   

   
  

2,
45

3,
47

7
$ 

   
   

  
1,

84
5,

93
2

$ 
   

   
  

1,
39

5,
11

4
$ 

   
   

  
89

3,
58

2
$ 

   
   

   
  

26
6,

88
7

$ 
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

Ch
an

ge

Pr
og

ra
m

m
in

g
7,

44
6,

37
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
19

7,
76

7
$ 

   
   

  
10

,6
04

,5
41

$ 
   

   
4,

34
0,

35
9

$ 
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5
Fi

na
nc

e 
Co

st
s

(2
,1

01
,0

50
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
(1

,8
38

,9
75

)
$ 

   
   

(1
,3

30
,9

98
)

$ 
   

   
50

2,
52

9
$ 

   
   

   
  

(3
59

,1
38

)
$ 

   
   

   
 

(7
9,

92
5)

$ 
   

   
   

   
(8

4,
43

0)
$ 

   
   

   
   

44
4,

62
1

$ 
   

   
   

  
23

2,
13

7
$ 

   
   

   
  

21
5,

60
9

$ 
   

   
   

  
20

7,
22

3
$ 

   
   

   
  

21
9,

86
1

$ 
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

To
ta

l
5,

34
5,

32
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

(6
41

,2
08

)
$ 

   
   

   
 

9,
27

3,
54

3
$ 

   
   

  
4,

84
2,

88
8

$ 
   

   
  

(3
59

,1
38

)
$ 

   
   

   
 

(7
9,

92
5)

$ 
   

   
   

   
(8

4,
43

0)
$ 

   
   

   
   

44
4,

62
1

$ 
   

   
   

  
23

2,
13

7
$ 

   
   

   
  

21
5,

60
9

$ 
   

   
   

  
20

7,
22

3
$ 

   
   

   
  

21
9,

86
1

$ 
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

D
ow

nt
ow

n 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

to
 a

 R
eb

ui
lt

 
Tr

an
sb

ay
 T

er
m

in
al

28
4,

42
4,

96
2

$ 
   

   
   

  
12

.1
6%

 E
P 

N
o.

  E
P 

Li
ne

 It
em

 
 T

ot
al

 A
va

ila
bl

e 
Fu

nd
s 

 P
er

ce
nt

 o
f 

A
va

ila
bl

e 
Fu

nd
s 

Sp
en

t 
on

 
Fi

na
nc

in
g 

 
 T

ot
al

 P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g 
&

 F
in

an
ce

 C
os

ts
 

FY
20

33
/3

4
FY

20
27

/2
8

FY
20

28
/2

9
FY

20
29

/3
0

FY
20

30
/3

1
FY

20
31

/3
2

FY
20

32
/3

3
FY

20
21

/2
2

FY
20

22
/2

3
FY

20
23

/2
4

FY
20

24
/2

5
FY

20
25

/2
6

FY
20

26
/2

7
FY

20
19

/2
0

FY
20

20
/2

1

FY
20

19
/2

0
FY

20
20

/2
1

 E
P 

N
o.

  E
P 

Li
ne

 It
em

 
 T

ot
al

 A
va

ila
bl

e 
Fu

nd
s 

 P
er

ce
nt

 o
f 

A
va

ila
bl

e 
Fu

nd
s 

Sp
en

t 
on

 
Fi

na
nc

in
g 

 
 T

ot
al

 P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g 
&

 F
in

an
ce

 C
os

ts
 

FY
20

33
/3

4
FY

20
27

/2
8

FY
20

28
/2

9
FY

20
29

/3
0

FY
20

30
/3

1
FY

20
31

/3
2

FY
20

32
/3

3
FY

20
21

/2
2

FY
20

22
/2

3
FY

20
23

/2
4

FY
20

24
/2

5
FY

20
25

/2
6

FY
20

26
/2

7

 E
P 

N
o.

  E
P 

Li
ne

 It
em

 
 T

ot
al

 A
va

ila
bl

e 
Fu

nd
s 

 P
er

ce
nt

 o
f 

A
va

ila
bl

e 
Fu

nd
s 

Sp
en

t 
on

 
Fi

na
nc

in
g 

 
 T

ot
al

 P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g 
&

 F
in

an
ce

 C
os

ts
 

D
ow

nt
ow

n 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

to
 a

 R
eb

ui
lt

 
Tr

an
sb

ay
 T

er
m

in
al

28
4,

57
4,

55
9

$ 
   

   
   

  
11

.4
2%

FY
20

23
/2

4
FY

20
24

/2
5

FY
20

25
/2

6
FY

20
26

/2
7

FY
20

19
/2

0
FY

20
20

/2
1

D
ow

nt
ow

n 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

to
 a

 R
eb

ui
lt

 
Tr

an
sb

ay
 T

er
m

in
al

14
9,

59
6

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-0

.7
4%

FY
20

33
/3

4
FY

20
27

/2
8

FY
20

28
/2

9
FY

20
29

/3
0

FY
20

30
/3

1
FY

20
31

/3
2

FY
20

32
/3

3
FY

20
21

/2
2

FY
20

22
/2

3

P:
\P

ro
p 

K\
SP

-5
YP

P\
20

19
 L

iv
in

g\
3 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
 M

od
el

\6
 -

 2
01

9 
SP

 A
m

en
dm

en
t 

5 
(D

TX
)\

Co
m

pa
ri

so
n 

Ta
bl

e(
Re

vi
se

d)
.x

ls
xA

TT
 9

 (
Co

m
pa

ri
so

n)
1 

of
 1

87



 

 

Page 1 of 4 

Memorandum 

AGENDA ITEM 6 

DATE:  April 6, 2020 

TO:  Transportation Authority Board 

FROM:  Eric Cordoba – Deputy Director for Capital Projects and Anna LaForte – Deputy 
Director for Policy and Programming 

SUBJECT:  4/14/2020 Board Meeting: Allocate $11,906,558, with Conditions, for Downtown 
Rail Extension – Phasing and Partial 15% Design and Appropriate $2,636,109 in 
Prop K Sales Tax Funds for Rail Program Oversight and Project Development 
Support 

RECOMMENDATION ☐ Information ☒ Action 

Allocate $11,906,558, with conditions, in Prop K funds to the 
Transbay Joint Powers Authority (TJPA) for:  

1. Downtown Rail Extension (DTX) - Phasing and Partial 15% 
Design  

Appropriate $2,636,109 in Prop K funds for: 

2. Rail Program Oversight and Project Development 
Support 

SUMMARY 
Pending TJPA approval of a 6-party Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) with the TJPA, the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission (MTC), the Peninsula Corridor Joint 
Powers Board (PCJPB), the California High Speed Rail Authority 
(CHSRA), and the City and County of San Francisco (CCSF) for the 
establishment of a new organizational structure that will support 
the efforts of the TJPA in the development of the DTX to a ready-
for-procurement status on April 9, and approval of the MOU by 
the Transportation Authority, at this April 14 meeting, we are 
recommending approval of two Prop K funding items to support 
the TJPA and Transportation Authority’s activities under the 
MOU’s work program. These activities are consistent with the 
recommendations of an expert peer review convened by the 
Transportation Authority last year to review current and best 
practices for governance, oversight, management, funding, and 
project delivery for the DTX.   

Attachment 1 lists the requests, including requested phase(s) and 
supervisorial district(s) for each project. Attachment 2 provides a 
brief description of each project. Attachment 3 contains the staff 
recommendations.    

☒ Fund Allocation 

☒ Fund Programming 

☐ Policy/Legislation 

☐ Plan/Study 

☐ Capital Project 
Oversight/Delivery 

☐ Budget/Finance 

☐ Contract/Agreement 

☐ Other: 
___________________ 

88



Agenda Item 6 Page 2 of 4 

DISCUSSION  

The expert panel review of the governance, oversight, management, funding, and project 
delivery of the Downtown Rail Extension (DTX) conducted by staff at the request of the Board, 
resulted in a series of recommendations to re-envision and re-position the DTX program as a 
project of regional, state and national significance; confirm the project’s phasing and funding 
plan; identify the governing entity and organization with a clear mandate and capability to 
implement it; and select a project delivery method, among other activities. To implement 
those recommendations, Transportation Authority staff, together with other major 
stakeholders, developed a MOU which proposes a new management structure and defines a 
work program for the development of the project to ready-for-procurement status. 
Participating agencies in the MOU are the TJPA, MTC, PCJPB, CHSRA, CCSF and the 
Transportation Authority.   

The two subject requests, an allocation for the TJPA and an appropriation to the 
Transportation Authority, will provide funding to cover our respective agencies’ involvement 
for the first eighteen months of the implementation of the Work Program defined in the MOU.  
Together with our MOU partners, TJPA and Transportation Authority staff will work to develop 
an initial DTX operating phase that provides the necessary capacity to operate a reliable 
blended system to the Salesforce Transit Center at the earliest practicable date and with 
consideration of reasonably available funding. 

Attachment 1 summarizes the subject allocation requests, including information on proposed 
leveraging (i.e., stretching Prop K sales tax dollars further by matching them with other fund 
sources) compared with the leveraging assumptions in the Prop K Expenditure Plan. 
Attachment 2 includes a brief description of each project. Attachment 3 summarizes the staff 
recommendations for the requests, highlighting special conditions and other items of 
interest. An Allocation Request Form for each project is attached, with more detailed 
information on scope, schedule, budget, funding, deliverables, and special conditions. 

Downtown Rail Extension (DTX) - Phasing and Partial 15% Design (TJPA) ($11,906,558). 
This scope of work for this allocation has been divided into two Notices-to-Proceed (NTPs). 
The work during NTP#1 will focus on a project phasing study which will review opportunities 
for phasing the DTX project. The work will also include creating a log of changes made to the 
program since the Supplemental EIS/EIR, a real estate acquisition plan, support for planning 
and funding strategy tasks, and the preparation of a configuration management plan, all of 
which will support and inform the phasing study and associated recommendations to confirm 
the initial operating segment for the DTX project. The NTP will also include an industry review 
with contractors, which will feed into a review of project delivery planned in NTP#2. 

Funds for NTP #2 ($8,177,927) will be on reserve until released by the Board following: (1) 
Board acceptance of the Project Phasing Strategy and Interim Budget and Schedule for Phase 
2, and (2) the identification of a new Program Director for the DTX in accordance with the 6-
party MOU. 

During NTP #2, the project team will progress the design and cost estimate of the tunnel and 
the 4th and Townsend Street Station to a draft 15% design level and allow for a risk 

89



Agenda Item 6 Page 3 of 4 

assessment to be performed. The project team will also examine project delivery options and 
expand the work plan.  

Rail Program Oversight and Project Development Support (SFCTA) ($2,636,109). In response 
to the Board’s interest in enhanced oversight for the DTX, the work to be performed under 
this appropriation is intended to complement and enhance the Transportation Authority’s 
ongoing oversight functions for the DTX and the Peninsula Rail Program. This request also 
funds the Transportation Authority’s roles to lead Planning and Funding Strategy updates, 
and to co-lead Project Delivery and Institutional Options analyses to help prepare the DTX 
project for procurement. These key tasks are consistent with the Expert Peer Review Final 
Report recommendations. 

Strategic Plan Amendment: When the Board adopted the 2019 Prop K Strategic Plan, the 
remaining Prop K funds for the DTX project were left unprogrammed to allow time for the 
Board, Mayor’s Office, San Francisco agencies, and TJPA to move toward consensus on how 
to proceed with the DTX project. In 2018, the Transportation Authority allocated $9,678,626 
of those funds for DTX 30% Design Part 1, of which $8,696,290 was de-obligated in 
November 2019, pursuant to suspension of the grant by the Transportation Authority Board. 
Funding the subject requests totaling $14.5 million, requires a Strategic Plan amendment to 
program the remainder of the de-obligated funds to the subject projects in Fiscal Year 
2019/20, and advance an additional $5.8 million in unprogrammed capacity in the DTX to a 
Rebuilt Transbay Terminal category. These changes result in a net decrease in finance costs 
since the de-obligated funds are being reprogrammed with a delayed cash flow schedule 
compared to what was originally approved.  

Next Steps: Based on recent meetings with partner agencies, we anticipate that following 
TJPA and Transportation Authority approval of the 6-party Peninsula Rail Program MOU, the 
other partner agencies will approve the MOU over the next two months.  Pending the 
Transportation Authority Board approval of the subject funding requests, we will continue to 
refine the DTX work program with TJPA and the other partner agencies. We may bring a 
subsequent set of funding requests to the Board to fund the work of partner agencies which 
would be reimbursable, once the Regional Measure 3 bridge toll program funds are 
available.  

FINANCIAL IMPACT  

Funding the two subject requests requires a Prop K Strategic Plan amendment to reprogram 
$8.7 million in de-obligated funds and advance $5.8 million in outyear funds from the 
Downtown Extension to a Rebuilt Transbay Terminal category to Fiscal Year 2019/20. The 
amendment would result in a net decrease of 0.9% in anticipated financing costs for the Prop 
K program over its 30-year life. See the attached allocation request forms for the amendment 
details.  

Conditioned upon approval of the aforementioned Strategic Plan amendment, the 
recommended action would allocate and appropriate $14,542,667 in Prop K funds. The 
allocation and appropriation would be subject to the Fiscal Year Cash Flow Distribution 
Schedules contained in the attached Allocation Request Forms. 

90



Agenda Item 6 Page 4 of 4 

Attachment 4 shows the approved Fiscal Year 2019/20 allocations and appropriations to 
date, with associated annual cash flow commitments as well as the recommended allocations, 
appropriations, and cash flow amounts that are the subject of this memorandum. 

Sufficient funds are included in the Fiscal Year 2019/20 budget to accommodate the 
recommended actions. Furthermore, sufficient funds will be included in future budgets to 
cover the recommended cash flow distribution for those respective fiscal years. 

CAC POSITION  

None. The March 25 CAC meeting was cancelled in light of the local health emergency 
related to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIALS 

• Attachment 1 – Summary of Requests Received 
• Attachment 2 – Project Descriptions 
• Attachment 3 – Staff Recommendations 
• Attachment 4 – Prop K Allocation Summary – FY 2019/20 
• Attachment 5 – Allocation Request Forms (2) 

91



[ this page intentionally left blank ]

92



BD041420 RESOLUTION NO. 20-50 
 

Page 1 of 4 

RESOLUTION APPROVING PROGRAMMING PRIORITIES FOR UP TO $3,794,003 IN 

SAN FRANCISCO’S ESTIMATED FISCAL YEAR 2020/21 STATE TRANSIT ASSISTANCE 

COUNTY BLOCK GRANT FUNDS  

WHEREAS, In 2018, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) 

established a transit-focused State Transit Assistance (STA) County Block Grant 

program, combining funds that were previously distributed via a regional paratransit 

program, a regional Lifeline Transportation Program (LTP), and a northern 

counties/small transit operators’ program; and 

WHEREAS, As the Congestion Management Agency (CMA) for San Francisco, 

the Transportation Authority is responsible for administering San Francisco’s STA 

County Block Grant program; and 

WHEREAS, MTC requires that by May 1 of each year, CMAs submit the 

distribution policy for STA population-based funds; and 

WHEREAS, STA funds are generated by the sales tax on diesel fuel and have 

been a volatile source of funding even before the COVID-19 pandemic; and 

WHEREAS, For the first two years of the STA block grant program (Fiscal Years 

(FYs) 2018/19 and 2019/20), San Francisco was projected to receive a total of $7.9 

million of which the Board programmed $3.1 million (40%) to the San Francisco 

Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA) for its paratransit program based on the 

amount that SFMTA would have received under the regional program in FY 2018/19, 

and for the remaining $4.7 million (60%), the Board approved the San Francisco LTP 

Cycle 1 program of projects that address transportation needs of low-income 

populations; and  

 WHEREAS, The STA County Block Grant Cycle 1 program of projects included 

the SFMTA’s paratransit program ($3,141,610), SFMTA’s Continuing Late Night 

Transit Service to Communities in Need ($1,609,700), SFMTA’s San Francisco 

93



BD041420 RESOLUTION NO. 20-50 
 

Page 2 of 4 

Community Health Mobility Navigation Project: Removing Health Care 

Transportation Barriers for Low Access Neighborhoods ($396,300), and the Bay Area 

Rapid Transit’s (BART’s) Elevator Attendant Initiative ($2,600,000); and  

WHEREAS, Annual STA revenues are projections and annual amounts may be 

higher or lower when confirmed at the end of each FY following the State’s 

reconciliation of actual revenues generated; and 

WHEREAS, The current projections for San Francisco’s FY 2020/21 and FY 

2021/22 STA County Block Grant funds, totaling $7.59 million, are based on 

estimates that were prepared in January 2020 before the economic effects of the 

COVID-19 pandemic began to be experienced; and  

WHEREAS, Given expectation of lower than anticipated FY 2019/20 STA 

revenues and a fall revision to reduce the FY 2020/21 revenue forecast, 

Transportation Authority staff recommended programming just the first year of funds 

at this time with the first priority for the FY 2020/21 funds as backfilling anticipated 

lower STA revenues for the aforementioned four transit operating projects serving 

low income populations funded in the prior cycle and then directing all the 

remaining funds to support SFMTA’s FY 2020/21 paratransit program operations; 

and  

WHEREAS, Transportation Authority staff anticipate returning to the Board in 

Spring 2021 to recommend a programming approach for the FY 2021/22 STA 

revenues after assessing the updated STA revenue forecast and considering the 

status of SFMTA’s operating revenues, now, therefore be it  

RESOLVED, That the Transportation Authority hereby approves up to 

$3,794,003 in San Francisco’s estimated FY 2020/21 STA County Block Grant funds 

with the first priority being to backfill any shortfalls in the aforementioned four 

projects funded in the prior cycle due to lower than anticipated FY 2019/20 STA 

County Share block grant revenues and then programming all remaining revenues to 

94



BD041420 RESOLUTION NO. 20-50 
 

Page 3 of 4 

SFMTA’s paratransit program; and be it further  

RESOLVED, That the Executive Director is hereby authorized to communicate 

this information to the MTC, other relevant agencies, and interested parties. 

 
 
 
 

  

95



Page 1 of 4 

Memorandum 

AGENDA ITEM 7 

DATE:  March 31, 2020 

TO:  Transportation Authority Board 

FROM:  Anna LaForte – Deputy Director for Policy and Programming 

SUBJECT:  04/14/20 Board Meeting: Approve Programming Priorities for Up to $3,794,003 
in San Francisco’s Estimated Fiscal Year 2020/21 State Transit Assistance County 
Block Grant Funds  

RECOMMENDATION ☐ Information ☒ Action

Approve programming priorities for up $3,794,003  in San 
Francisco’s Estimated Fiscal Year 2020/21 State Transit 
Assistance (STA) County Block Grant Funds  

SUMMARY 

In 2018, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) 
established the STA County Block Grant program to be 
administered by Congestion Management Agencies (CMAs). 
MTC used to distribute these funds via a regional paratransit 
program, a regional Lifeline Transportation Program (LTP), 
and a northern counties/small transit operators program. For 
the first cycle (FYs 2018/19 and 2019/20) the Board directed 
40% ($3.1 million) of San Francisco’s share of revenues to 
SFMTA’s paratransit program and the remaining 60% ($4.7 
million) to a new San Francisco LTP (Table 1 in the memo).  
STA revenues come from the state sales tax on diesel fuel and 
have been a volatile source of funding even before the 
COVID-19 pandemic.  We expect to receive actual FY 2019/20 
revenues in the fall and updated FY 2020/21 revenue 
estimates, both of which will likely be lower than current 
estimates.   In light of the significant decline in transit fare and 
other operating revenues due to the COVID-19 pandemic, we 
recommend first backfilling the FY 2019/20 funds 
programmed to paratransit and SF LTP projects (Table 1) and 
then directing the remaining FY 2020/21 funds to support the 
San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency’s paratransit 
operations. 

☐ Fund Allocation

☒ Fund Programming

☐ Policy/Legislation

☐ Plan/Study

☐ Capital Project
Oversight/Delivery

☐ Budget/Finance

☐ Contract/Agreement

☐ Other:
___________________

96



Agenda Item 7 Page 2 of 4 

BACKGROUND 

STA funds are generated by the sales tax on diesel fuel.  It is a flexible transit funding program 
that can be used for a wide range of transit-related capital and operating purposes.  In FY 
2018/19, MTC began distributing a majority of the region’s STA population-based funds to 
CMAs through a transit-focused STA County Block Grant program.  The program allows each 
county to determine how best to invest in paratransit and other transit operating and capital 
needs, including providing lifeline transit services. Funds are distributed among the nine Bay 
Area counties based on the amount that each county would have received in FY 2018/19 
under the former regional programs. MTC requires that by May 1 of each year, CMAs submit 
the distribution policy for STA population-based funds.  

In FYs 2018/19 and 2019/20, the first two years of the new STA block grant program, San 
Francisco was projected to receive a total of $7.9 million. The Board previously directed $3.1 
million (40%) to the SFMTA for its paratransit program based on the amount that SFMTA 
would have received under the regional program in FY 2018/19.  For the remaining $4.7 
million (60%), the Board approved the SF LTP Cycle 1 program of projects that address 
transportation needs of low-income populations. Table 1 below shows the projects funded in 
the prior cycle of the STA block grant program. 

Table 1. STA County Block Grant Program (FYs 2018/19-2019/20) 

Paratransit (operations) (SFMTA) $ 3,141,610 

San Francisco Community Health Mobility Navigation Project: 
Removing Health Care Transportation Barriers for Low Access 
Neighborhoods (SFMTA) 

$   396,300 

Continuing Late Night Transit Service to Communities in Need 
(SFMTA) 

$1,609,700 

Elevator Attendant Initiative (BART) $2,600,000 

Total $7,747,610 

97



Agenda Item 7 Page 3 of 4 

DISCUSSION 

As noted above, STA funds tend to be a volatile fund source.  For each funding cycle, we receive 
an estimate of San Francisco’s share of revenues, which is followed by a reconciliation with 
actual revenues when those figures become available.  Table 2 below shows the current 
projections for San Francisco’s FY 20201/21 and FY 2021/22 STA County Share Block Grant 
funds, totaling $7.59 million.  These estimates were prepared in January 2020 before the 
economic effects of the COVID-19 pandemic began to be experienced.   

Table 2. Estimated San Francisco STA County Block Grant Funds 
for FY 2020/21 and 2021/22 (as of January 2020)* 

STA Revenues (FY 2020/21) * $ 3,794,003 

STA Revenues (FY 2021/22)** $ 3,794,003 

 Total Estimated Funds  $ 7,588,006 

* Based on the Governor’s budget released in January 2020. The Metropolitan Transportation Commission will
provide revised county share estimates in Fall 2020.

** Projected 0% growth rate for FY 2021/22 is based on annual trends from FY 2008/09 to FY 2017/18 in diesel 
fuel prices and diesel consumption in California, an average of 2.2% and -1.3% respectively. 

Given our expectation of lower than anticipated FY 2019/20 STA revenues and a fall revision 
to reduce the FY 2020/21 revenue forecast, we are recommending programming just the first 
year of funds at this time.  We recommend that the first priority for the FY 2020/21 funds be 
backfilling anticipated lower STA revenues for the four projects shown in Table 1, funded in 
the prior cycle. These are SFMTA and BART transit operating projects benefitting 
communities of concern.  Then, we recommend directing all the remaining funds to support 
SFMTA’s paratransit program operations in FY 2020/21.  

Next Steps 

Following Board approval of the FY 2020/21 STA County Block Grant priorities, we will 
provide the Board resolution to MTC.  We will provide an update to the Board in Fall 2020 on 
actual FY 2019/20 STA revenues.  We anticipate returning to the Board in Spring 2021 to 
program the FY 2021/22 STA revenues.   At the time, we will assess the current STA revenue 
forecast and consider the status of SFMTA’s operating revenues, as well as other factors to 
develop a recommendation about whether to continue directing all the funds toward 
SFMTA’s paratransit program or to issue a call for projects for San Francisco’s LTP. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT  

There are no impacts to the Transportation Authority’s budget associated with the 
recommended action. 

98



Agenda Item 7 Page 4 of 4 

CAC POSITION 

None. The March 25 CAC meeting was cancelled in light of the local health emergency 
related to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIALS 

None. 

99



[ this page intentionally left blank ]

100



BD041420 RESOLUTION NO. 20-51 
 

Page 1 of 4 

RESOLUTION ALLOCATING $580,000 IN PROP K SALES TAX FUNDS AND $383,776 

IN PROP AA VEHICLE REGISTRATION FEE FUNDS FOR THREE REQUESTS, WITH 

CONDITIONS 

WHEREAS, The Transportation Authority received three requests for a total of 

$580,000 in Prop K local transportation sales tax funds and $383,776 in Prop AA 

vehicle registration fee funds, as summarized in Attachments 1 and 2 and detailed in 

the attached allocation request forms; and 

 WHEREAS, The requests seek funds from the Bicycle Circulation/Safety 

category of the Prop K Expenditure Plan; and from the Transit Reliability and Mobility 

Improvements category of the Prop AA Expenditure Plan; and 

WHEREAS, As required by the voter-approved Expenditure Plans, the 

Transportation Authority Board has adopted a Prop K or Prop AA 5-Year Prioritization 

Program (5YPP) for each of the aforementioned Expenditure Plan programmatic 

categories; and  

WHEREAS, Two of the three requests are consistent with the relevant 5YPPs; 

and 

WHEREAS, The San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency’s (SFMTA’s) 

request for Bicycle Safety Education and Outreach requires an amendment to the 

Bicycle Circulation and Safety 5YPP to reprogram $100,000 from Citywide 

Neighborways to the subject project in Fiscal Year 2019/20, and reprogram all of the 

funds Fiscal Year 2020/21 programmed for Bike Safety Education and Outreach 

($90,000) to Citywide Neighborways, as summarized in Attachment 3 and detailed in 

the attached allocation request form; and 

WHEREAS, After reviewing the requests, Transportation Authority staff 

recommended allocating $580,000 in Prop K Sales Tax Funds and $383,776 in Prop 

AA Vehicle Registration Fee Funds, with conditions, for three projects, as described 

101



BD041420 RESOLUTION NO. 20-51 
 

Page 2 of 4 

in Attachment 3 and detailed in the attached allocation request forms, which include 

staff recommendations for Prop K and Prop AA allocation amounts, required 

deliverables, timely use of funds requirements, special conditions, and Fiscal Year 

Cash Flow Distribution Schedules; and 

WHEREAS, There are sufficient funds in the Capital Expenditures line item of 

the Transportation Authority’s approved Fiscal Year 2019/20 budget to cover the 

proposed actions; now therefore, be it 

RESOLVED, That the Transportation Authority hereby amends the Prop K 

Bicycle Circulation/Safety 5YPP, as detailed in the attached allocation request form 

for Bicycle Safety Education and Outreach; and be it further  

RESOLVED, That the Transportation Authority hereby allocates $580,000 in 

Prop K Sales Tax Funds and $383,776 in Prop AA Vehicle Registration Fee Funds, 

with conditions, for three projects, as summarized in Attachment 3 and detailed in 

the attached allocation request forms; and be it further 

RESOLVED, That the Transportation Authority finds the allocation of these 

funds to be in conformance with the priorities, policies, funding levels, and 

prioritization methodologies established in the Prop K and Prop AA Expenditure 

Plans, the Prop K Strategic Plan, the Prop AA Strategic Plan, and the relevant 5YPPs; 

and be it further 

RESOLVED, That the Transportation Authority hereby authorizes the actual 

expenditure (cash reimbursement) of funds for these activities to take place subject 

to the Fiscal Year Cash Flow Distribution Schedules detailed in the attached 

allocation request forms; and be it further  

RESOLVED, That the Capital Expenditures line item for subsequent fiscal year 

annual budgets shall reflect the maximum reimbursement schedule amounts 

adopted, and the Transportation Authority does not guarantee reimbursement levels 

102



BD041420 RESOLUTION NO. 20-51 
 

Page 3 of 4 

higher than those adopted; and be it further  

RESOLVED, That as a condition of this authorization for expenditure, the 

Executive Director shall impose such terms and conditions as are necessary for the 

project sponsor to comply with applicable law and adopted Transportation Authority 

policies and execute Standard Grant Agreements to that effect; and be it further 

RESOLVED, That as a condition of this authorization for expenditure, the 

project sponsor shall provide the Transportation Authority with any other information 

it may request regarding the use of the funds hereby authorized; and be it further 

RESOLVED, That the Capital Improvement Program of the Congestion 

Management Program, Prop K Strategic Plan, Prop AA Strategic Plan and relevant 

5YPPs are hereby amended, as appropriate. 

 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Attachment 1 –Summary of Requests 
2. Attachment 2 – Project Description 
3. Attachment 3 – Staff Recommendation 
4. Attachment 4 – Prop K/AA Allocation Summary – FY 2019/20 
5. Attachment 5 – Allocation Request Forms (3) 

 

  

103



A
tta

ch
m

en
t 1

: S
um

m
ar

y 
of

 R
eq

ue
st

s 
R

ec
ei

ve
d

 S
ou

rc
e

E
P 

L
in

e 
N

o.
/ 

C
at

eg
or

y 
1

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Sp
on

so
r 2

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e

C
ur

re
nt

 
Pr

op
 K

 
R

eq
ue

st

C
ur

re
nt

 
Pr

op
 A

A
 

R
eq

ue
st

T
ot

al
 C

os
t f

or
 

R
eq

ue
st

ed
 

Ph
as

e(
s)

E
xp

ec
te

d 
L

ev
er

ag
in

g 
by

 
E

P 
L

in
e 

3

A
ct

ua
l L

ev
er

ag
in

g 
by

 P
ro

je
ct

 P
ha

se
(s

)4
Ph

as
e(

s)
 

R
eq

ue
st

ed
D

is
tr

ic
t(

s)

P r
op

 K
39

S F
M

TA
C

es
ar

 C
ha

ve
z/

Ba
ys

ho
re

/P
ot

re
ro

 In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 (T
he

 H
air

ba
ll)

 P
ha

se
 2

 $
   

   
   

 4
80

,0
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

 4
80

,0
00

 
28

%
0%

D
es

ig
n

9,
 1

0

Pr
op

 K
39

S F
M

TA
Bi

cy
cl

e 
Sa

fe
ty

 E
du

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
O

ut
re

ac
h

 $
   

   
   

 1
00

,0
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
00

,0
00

 
28

%
0%

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
ci

ty
w

id
e

Pr
op

 A
A

Tr
an

sit
S F

M
TA

Th
ird

 S
tre

et
 T

ra
ns

it 
an

d 
Sa

fe
ty

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 $
   

   
  3

83
,7

76
 

 $
   

   
   

 2
,8

83
,7

76
 

N
A

13
%

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
6

 $
   

   
   

 5
80

,0
00

 
 $

   
   

 3
83

,7
76

 
 $

   
   

   
 3

,4
63

,7
76

 
5%

11
%

L
ev

er
ag

in
g

T
O

T
A

L

M
:\

B
oa

rd
\B

oa
rd

 M
ee

ti
ng

s\
2

0
2

0
\M

em
os

\0
4

 A
p

r 1
4

\I
te

m
 1

6
 - 

Pr
op

 K
 G

ro
up

ed
 A

llo
ca

ti
on

s\
Pr

op
 K

 G
ro

up
ed

 A
TT

 1
-4

 B
oa

rd
 0

4
1

4
2

0
; 1

-S
um

m
ar

y
Pa

ge
 1

 o
f 6

104



A
tta

ch
m

en
t 1

: S
um

m
ar

y 
of

 R
eq

ue
st

s 
R

ec
ei

ve
d

Fo
ot

no
te

s
1 2 3 4

"A
ct

ua
l L

ev
er

ag
in

g 
by

 P
ro

je
ct

 P
ha

se
" 

is 
ca

lc
ul

at
ed

 b
y 

di
vi

di
ng

 th
e 

to
ta

l n
on

-P
ro

p 
K

 o
r n

on
-P

ro
p 

A
A

 fu
nd

s i
n 

th
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

pl
an

 b
y 

th
e 

to
ta

l c
os

t f
or

 th
e 

re
qu

es
te

d 
ph

as
e 

or
 p

ha
se

s. 
If

 th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 in

 th
e 

"A
ct

ua
l L

ev
er

ag
in

g"
 c

ol
um

n 
is 

lo
w

er
 th

an
 in

 th
e 

"E
xp

ec
te

d 
Le

ve
ra

gi
ng

" 
co

lu
m

n,
 th

e 
re

qu
es

t (
in

di
ca

te
d 

by
 y

el
lo

w
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

in
g)

 is
 le

ve
ra

gi
ng

 fe
w

er
 n

on
-P

ro
p 

K
 d

ol
lar

s t
ha

n 
as

su
m

ed
 in

 th
e 

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 P
lan

. A
 

pr
oj

ec
t t

ha
t i

s w
el

l l
ev

er
ag

ed
 o

ve
ra

ll 
m

ay
 h

av
e 

lo
w

er
-th

an
-e

xp
ec

te
d 

le
ve

ra
gi

ng
 fo

r a
n 

in
di

vi
du

al 
or

 p
ar

tia
l p

ha
se

.

"E
P 

Li
ne

 N
o.

/C
at

eg
or

y"
 is

 e
ith

er
 th

e 
Pr

op
 K

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 P
lan

 li
ne

 n
um

be
r r

ef
er

en
ce

d 
in

 th
e 

20
19

 P
ro

p 
K

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
 o

r t
he

 P
ro

p 
A

A
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 P

lan
 c

at
eg

or
y 

re
fe

re
nc

ed
 in

 th
e 

20
17

 P
ro

p 
A

A
 S

tra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
: S

tre
et

 R
ep

air
 a

nd
 R

ec
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
(S

tre
et

), 
Pe

de
st

ria
n 

Sa
fe

ty
 (P

ed
), 

an
d 

Tr
an

sit
 R

el
iab

ili
ty

 a
nd

 M
ob

ili
ty

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 (T
ra

ns
it)

.
A

cr
on

ym
: S

FM
TA

 (S
an

 F
ra

nc
isc

o 
M

un
ic

ip
al 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
A

ge
nc

y)
"E

xp
ec

te
d 

Le
ve

ra
gi

ng
 B

y 
E

P 
Li

ne
" 

is 
ca

lc
ul

at
ed

 b
y 

di
vi

di
ng

 th
e 

to
ta

l n
on

-P
ro

p 
K

 fu
nd

s e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 b
e 

av
ail

ab
le

 fo
r a

 g
iv

en
 P

ro
p 

K
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 P

lan
 li

ne
 it

em
 (e

.g
. P

ed
es

tri
an

 C
irc

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

Sa
fe

ty
) b

y 
th

e 
to

ta
l e

xp
ec

te
d 

fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r t

ha
t P

ro
p 

K
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 P

lan
 li

ne
 it

em
 o

ve
r t

he
 3

0-
ye

ar
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 P

lan
 p

er
io

d.
 F

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e,

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
le

ve
ra

gi
ng

 o
f 9

0%
 in

di
ca

te
s t

ha
t o

n 
av

er
ag

e 
no

n-
Pr

op
 K

 fu
nd

s s
ho

ul
d 

co
ve

r 9
0%

 o
f t

he
 to

ta
l c

os
ts

 fo
r a

ll 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 in

 th
at

 c
at

eg
or

y,
 a

nd
 P

ro
p 

K
 sh

ou
ld

 c
ov

er
 o

nl
y 

10
%

. 

M
:\

B
oa

rd
\B

oa
rd

 M
ee

ti
ng

s\
2

0
2

0
\M

em
os

\0
4

 A
p

r 1
4

\I
te

m
 1

6
 - 

Pr
op

 K
 G

ro
up

ed
 A

llo
ca

ti
on

s\
Pr

op
 K

 G
ro

up
ed

 A
TT

 1
-4

 B
oa

rd
 0

4
1

4
2

0
; 1

-S
um

m
ar

y
Pa

ge
 2

 o
f 6

105



A
tta

ch
m

en
t 2

: B
rie

f P
ro

je
ct

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
ns

 1

E
P 

Li
ne

 N
o.

/
C

at
eg

or
y

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Sp
on

so
r

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e

Pr
op

 K
 F

un
ds

 
R

eq
ue

st
ed

Pr
op

 A
A

 F
un

ds
 

R
eq

ue
st

ed
Pr

oj
ec

t D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

39
SF

M
TA

C
es

ar
 C

ha
ve

z/
Ba

ys
ho

re
/P

ot
re

ro
 

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 (T
he

 
H

ai
rb

al
l) 

Ph
as

e 
2

 $
   

   
   

48
0,

00
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

Re
qu

es
te

d 
fu

nd
s a

re
 fo

r d
es

ig
n 

of
 th

e 
ne

xt
 se

t o
f i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
su

bj
ec

t 
in

te
rs

ec
tio

n,
 a

lso
 k

no
w

n 
as

 th
e 

H
ai

rb
al

l. 
Th

is 
pr

oj
ec

t w
ill

 b
ui

ld
 o

n 
pr

ev
io

us
 p

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

Ph
as

e 
1 

ne
ar

-te
rm

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

. I
t w

ill
 c

re
at

e 
a 

co
nt

in
uo

us
, a

cc
es

sib
le

 a
nd

 sa
fe

 
se

rie
s o

f b
ic

yc
le

 a
nd

 p
ed

es
tri

an
 p

at
hw

ay
s t

ha
t c

on
ne

ct
 th

e 
su

rr
ou

nd
in

g 
ar

ea
s, 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
a 

cr
uc

ia
l l

in
k 

be
tw

ee
n 

re
sid

en
tia

l n
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

ds
 a

nd
 v

ita
l d

es
tin

at
io

ns
 su

ch
 

as
 re

gi
on

al
 tr

an
sit

 st
op

s, 
pa

rk
s, 

ho
sp

ita
ls,

 e
du

ca
tio

na
l i

ns
tit

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 fo

od
 m

ar
ke

ts
. 

Th
e 

sc
op

e 
in

cl
ud

es
 ro

ad
w

ay
 st

rip
in

g,
 si

gn
s, 

po
st

s, 
an

d 
so

m
e 

ci
vi

l d
es

ig
n 

w
or

k,
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
de

sig
ns

 fo
r f

iv
e 

ne
w

 c
on

cr
et

e 
ra

ise
d 

cr
os

sw
al

ks
. D

es
ig

n 
is 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 b

e 
do

ne
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
02

1.
 

39
SF

M
TA

Bi
cy

cl
e 

Sa
fe

ty
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

O
ut

re
ac

h
 $

   
   

   
10

0,
00

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 

Pr
ov

id
e 

16
 m

on
th

s o
f B

ic
yc

le
 S

af
et

y 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

O
ut

re
ac

h 
fr

om
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
02

0 
th

ro
ug

h 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

02
1,

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
on

 su
cc

es
sf

ul
 p

as
t p

ro
gr

am
m

in
g.

 T
he

 p
ro

gr
am

 
pr

ov
id

es
 le

ar
n-

to
-r

id
e 

an
d 

bi
cy

cl
e 

sa
fe

ty
 c

la
ss

es
 to

 m
or

e 
th

an
 1

,0
00

 p
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

in
cl

ud
es

 b
ro

ad
 o

ut
re

ac
h 

to
 S

an
 F

ra
nc

isc
o 

re
sid

en
ts

 a
nd

 v
isi

to
rs

 v
ia

 in
-p

er
so

n 
pr

es
en

ce
 a

t f
ai

rs
, f

es
tiv

al
s, 

fa
rm

er
’s 

m
ar

ke
ts

, a
nd

 o
pe

n 
st

re
et

s e
ve

nt
s. 

E
du

ca
tio

na
l 

an
d 

pr
om

ot
io

na
l m

at
er

ia
ls 

w
ill

 b
e 

di
st

rib
ut

ed
 in

 E
ng

lis
h,

 S
pa

ni
sh

, C
hi

ne
se

, a
nd

 
Fi

lip
in

o.
 E

ac
h 

ye
ar

, a
 m

in
im

um
 o

f t
w

o 
cl

as
se

s e
ac

h 
sh

al
l b

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

in
 E

ng
lis

h,
 

Sp
an

ish
, a

nd
 C

hi
ne

se
, a

nd
 a

 m
in

im
um

 o
f o

ne
 c

la
ss

 e
ac

h 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

in
 F

ili
pi

no
. S

ee
 

th
e 

at
ta

ch
ed

 a
llo

ca
tio

n 
re

qu
es

t f
or

m
 fo

r t
he

 m
os

t r
ec

en
t s

um
m

ar
y 

re
po

rt 
(2

01
7 

- 
20

19
) f

or
 d

et
ai

ls 
on

 c
la

ss
 a

tte
nd

an
ce

 a
nd

 d
em

og
ra

ph
ic

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

Tr
an

sit
SF

M
TA

Th
ird

 S
tre

et
 T

ra
ns

it 
an

d 
Sa

fe
ty

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

 $
   

   
   

   
38

3,
77

6 

Fu
nd

s r
eq

ue
st

ed
 a

re
 to

 c
on

st
ru

ct
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

te
nd

ed
 to

 re
du

ce
 b

us
 d

el
ay

s a
nd

 
im

pr
ov

e 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

sa
fe

ty
 to

 b
et

te
r a

cc
om

m
od

at
e 

ex
ist

in
g 

tra
ve

l d
em

an
d 

pa
tte

rn
s o

n 
Th

ird
 S

tre
et

 b
et

w
ee

n 
H

ow
ar

d 
an

d 
Br

an
na

n,
 a

nd
 a

t T
ow

ns
en

d 
St

re
et

 a
t T

hi
rd

 S
tre

et
.  

Th
e 

ov
er

al
l p

ro
je

ct
 w

ill
 b

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 in

 th
re

e 
ph

as
es

. P
ha

se
 2

, t
he

 su
bj

ec
t o

f t
hi

s 
re

qu
es

t, 
w

ill
 a

dd
 a

 tr
an

sit
-o

nl
y 

qu
eu

e-
ju

m
p 

tu
rn

 la
ne

 a
t T

ow
ns

en
d 

an
d 

Th
ird

 st
re

et
s, 

an
d 

sig
na

l h
ar

dw
ar

e 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 a

t t
he

 in
te

rs
ec

tio
ns

 o
f T

hi
rd

 S
tre

et
 a

nd
 F

ol
so

m
, 

H
ar

ris
on

, B
ry

an
t, 

an
d 

To
w

ns
en

d 
st

re
et

s. 
 T

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 is

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 
by

 Ju
ly

 2
02

1.
$5

80
,0

00
$3

83
,7

76
1  S

ee
 A

tta
ch

m
en

t 1
 fo

r f
oo

tn
ot

es
.

T
O

T
A

L

M
:\

B
oa

rd
\B

oa
rd

 M
ee

ti
ng

s\
20

20
\M

em
os

\0
4 

A
pr

 1
4\

It
em

 1
6 

- P
ro

p 
K 

G
ro

up
ed

 A
llo

ca
ti

on
s\

Pr
op

 K
 G

ro
up

ed
 A

TT
 1

-4
 B

oa
rd

 0
41

42
0;

 2
-D

es
cr

ip
ti

on
Pa

ge
 3

 o
f 6

106



A
tta

ch
m

en
t 3

: S
ta

ff 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 1

E
P 

L
in

e 
N

o.
/

C
at

eg
or

y

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Sp
on

so
r

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e

Pr
op

 K
 F

un
ds

 
R

ec
om

m
en

de
d

Pr
op

 A
A

 F
un

ds
 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d

39
SF

M
TA

C
es

ar
 C

ha
ve

z/
Ba

ys
ho

re
/P

ot
re

ro
 

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 (T
he

 
H

ai
rb

al
l) 

Ph
as

e 
2

 $
   

   
   

   
 4

80
,0

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
- 

39
SF

M
TA

Bi
cy

cl
e 

Sa
fe

ty
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

O
ut

re
ac

h
 $

   
   

   
   

 1
00

,0
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

- 

Tr
an

sit
SF

M
TA

Th
ird

 S
tr

ee
t T

ra
ns

it 
an

d 
Sa

fe
ty

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

- 
 $

   
   

   
   

 3
83

,7
76

 

$5
80

,0
00

$3
83

,7
76

1  S
ee

 A
tta

ch
m

en
t 1

 fo
r f

oo
tn

ot
es

.

T
O

T
A

L

M
:\

B
oa

rd
\B

oa
rd

 M
ee

ti
ng

s\
20

20
\M

em
os

\0
4 

A
pr

 1
4\

It
em

 1
6 

- P
ro

p 
K 

G
ro

up
ed

 A
llo

ca
ti

on
s\

Pr
op

 K
 G

ro
up

ed
 A

TT
 1

-4
 B

oa
rd

 0
41

42
0;

 3
-R

ec
om

m
en

da
ti

on
s

Pa
ge

 4
 o

f 6

107



A
tta

ch
m

en
t 3

: S
ta

ff 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 1

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 

5-
Y

ea
r P

rio
rit

iz
at

io
n 

Pr
og

ra
m

 (5
Y

PP
) A

m
en

dm
en

t: 
R

eq
ue

st
 in

cl
ud

es
 a

n 
am

en
dm

en
t t

o 
th

e 
Bi

cy
cl

e 
C

irc
ul

at
io

n 
an

d 
Sa

fe
ty

 5
Y

PP
 to

 re
pr

og
ra

m
 $

10
0,

00
0 

fr
om

 C
ity

w
id

e 
N

ei
gh

bo
rw

ay
s t

o 
th

e 
su

bj
ec

t p
ro

je
ct

 in
 F

Y
 1

9/
20

, a
nd

 re
pr

og
ra

m
 

al
l o

f t
he

 fu
nd

s F
Y

 2
0/

21
 p

ro
gr

am
m

ed
 fo

r B
ik

e 
Sa

fe
ty

 E
du

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
O

ut
re

ac
h 

($
90

,0
00

) t
o 

C
ity

w
id

e 
N

ei
gh

bo
rw

ay
s. 

Se
e 

at
ta

ch
ed

 5
Y

PP
 a

m
en

dm
en

t f
or

 d
et

ai
ls.

M
:\

B
oa

rd
\B

oa
rd

 M
ee

ti
ng

s\
20

20
\M

em
os

\0
4 

A
pr

 1
4\

It
em

 1
6 

- P
ro

p 
K 

G
ro

up
ed

 A
llo

ca
ti

on
s\

Pr
op

 K
 G

ro
up

ed
 A

TT
 1

-4
 B

oa
rd

 0
41

42
0;

 3
-R

ec
om

m
en

da
ti

on
s

Pa
ge

 5
 o

f 6

108



Attachment 4.
Prop K and Prop AA Allocation Summaries - FY 2019/20

PROP K SALES TAX

Total FY 2019/20 FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 FY 2024/25 FY 2025/26
Prior Allocations 150,376,024$   23,771,038$   65,497,456$   12,168,066$   9,934,729$     35,560,081$   2,727,154$     717,500$        
Current Request(s) 580,000$          -$                   530,000$        50,000$          -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
New Total Allocations 150,956,024$   23,771,038$   66,027,456$   12,218,066$   9,934,729$     35,560,081$   2,727,154$     717,500$        

PROP AA VEHICLE REGISTRATION FEE
Total FY 2019/20 FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23

Prior Allocations 6,852,380$       2,365,202$     3,193,812$     1,293,366$     -$                   
Current Request(s) 383,776$          -$                   383,776$        -$                   -$                   
New Total Allocations 7,236,156$       2,365,202$     3,577,588$     1,293,366$     -$                   
The above table shows total cash flow for all FY 2019/20 allocations approved to date, along with the current 
recommended allocation(s). 

The above table shows maximum annual cash flow for all FY 2019/20 allocations and appropriations approved to date, along with 
the current recommended allocation(s). 

Street
52%Ped

28%

Transit
20%

Prop AA Investments To Date

Street
50%

Ped
25%

Transit
25%

Investment Commitments, per Prop AA 
Expenditure Plan

Paratransit, 
8.6%

Streets & 
Traffic 
Safety, 
24.6%

Strategic 
Initiatives, 

1.3%

Transit, 
65.5%,

Investment Commitments, 
per Prop K Expenditure Plan

Transit
72%

Paratransit
8%

Streets & 
Traffic Safety

19%

Strategic 
Initiatives

0.9%

Prop K Investments To Date

M:\Board\Board Meetings\2020\Memos\04 Apr 14\Item 16 - Prop K Grouped Allocations\Prop K Grouped ATT 1-4 Board 041420

109



San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Prop K/Prop AA Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: FY2019/20

Project Name: Cesar Chavez/Bayshore/Potrero Intersection Improvements (The Hairball) Phase 2

Grant Recipient: San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency

EXPENDITURE PLAN INFORMATION

Prop K EP categories: Bicycle Circulation/Safety

Current Prop K Request: $480,000

Supervisorial District(s): District 09, District 10

REQUEST

Brief Project Description
Improvements to the existing limited circulation network for people walking and biking through the Cesar Chavez/
Bayshore/ Potrero Intersection known as the Hairball. The project will create a continuous, accessible, and safe series of
bicycle and pedestrians pathways that connect the surrounding areas and destinations. Phase 2 will build on the
improvements completed in Phase 1 with scope that includes raised crosswalks at key crossings, new and upgraded bike
lanes, flashing pedestrian beacons, and wheelchair accessibility/safety improvements such as curb ramps and special
pavement striping.

Detailed Scope, Project Benefits and Community Outreach
In the area known as the Hairball, Cesar Chavez Street, Bayshore Boulevard and Potrero Avenue change from city streets
to a complex arrangement of bridges and ramps linking with Highway 101. The intersection is built in three levels, with
pedestrian and bicycle circulation generally restricted to the middle and ground levels, while motor vehicles use all three
levels. This series of pedestrian and bicycle pathways in the Hairball allow for connections between Cesar Chavez Street,
Bayshore Boulevard and Potrero Avenue that are not possible by vehicle. However, the network has clear gaps where the
bicycle and/or pedestrian facilities are limited or substandard. Certain portions of the network are not ADA accessible and
are in poor condition. Lastly, because of the many paths that intersect in this area, the interchange is challenging to
navigate and there are points of high conflict between vehicles, pedestrians and bicycles. 

In 2010, the San Francisco Planning Department began a community outreach process to develop a community-
supported vision and design for a safe, comfortable and accessible Cesar Chavez Street for all users. This outreach
process culminated in the Cesar Chavez East Community Design Plan, which was finalized in early 2012 and
incorporates the Hairball. The Plan separates the larger Hairball area into a series of segments (see map, attached) and
includes safety improvement recommendations for each segment. In fall 2015, the Transportation Authority allocated
$100,000 in Prop K Neighborhood Transportation Improvement Program funds to develop recommendations for safety
improvements at five of the prioritized segments: Segments F and G at the western entry to the Hairball, and Segments
M, N, and O at the southeastern entry to the Hairball. SFMTA and Public Works have implemented near-term
improvements to Segments M,N, and O and capital improvements to F,G,M,N, and O.  

For details of the Phase 2 scope  see the list of improvements by location (i.e. by project segment) and the segment map,
attached. Phase 2 will build on previous planning and near-term improvements to the existing limited circulation to create
a continuous, accessible, and safe series of bicycle and pedestrians pathways and linkages that connect the surrounding
areas, providing connections between residential neighborhoods and vital destinations such as regional transit stops,
parks, hospitals, educational institutions and food markets.  

The scope and construction costs of Phase 2 have been reduced from those originally planned. Due to feasibility issues
the planned sidewalk expansions and lighting upgrades have been cut from the scope. During Phase 1 the sidewalk
widening elements were found to be infeasible due to issues with utilities and Caltrans rights-of-way. Planned lighting
changes were cut from the scope because lighting falls within the purview of the San Francisco Public Utilities
Commission, which has made some bulb upgrades in the area's existing lights. The revised scope therefore focuses on

110



raised crosswalks, rectangular rapid flashing beacons, and pavement striping to improve safety in the Hairball.  

The revised Phase 2 scope includes roadway striping, signs, posts, and new concrete and asphalt raised crosswalks for
the following: 
> new/ upgraded striping for bicycle lanes; 
> key crossings to be upgraded with raised crosswalks, new curb ramps, and flashing pedestrian beacons; 
> wheelchair accessibility to be improved through additional striping and new curb ramps. 

This project builds on earlier community engagement processes, including Cesar Chavez East Community Plan and the
Prop K NTIP funded Bayshore Boulevard/Cesar Chavez Street/Potrero Avenue Intersection (The Hairball). This phase
does not include additional in-depth outreach through open houses or public meetings, but will continue to engage with
neighbors, community groups and schools nearby with stakeholder interviews and door-to-door outreach. We expect this
outreach to be completed in late Spring of 2020.

Project Location
Cesar Chavez/Potrero/Bayshore intersection

Project Phase(s)
Design Engineering (PS&E)

5YPP/STRATEGIC PLAN INFORMATION

Type of Project in the Prop K 5YPP/Prop
AA Strategic Plan?

Named Project

Is requested amount greater than the
amount programmed in the relevant
5YPP or Strategic Plan?

Less than or Equal to Programmed Amount

Prop K 5YPP Amount: $480,000

111



112



Th
e 

Ha
irb

al
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 P
ha

se
 2

 - 
Sc

op
e 

an
d 

Hi
gh

 Le
ve

l C
os

t E
st

im
at

es
 

Sc
op

e 
by

 S
eg

m
en

t a
nd

 C
os

t 
Se

gm
en

ts
 F

,G
 a

nd
 N

 n
ot

 in
clu

de
d;

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 th

es
e 

se
gm

en
ts

 a
re

 in
clu

de
d 

in
 P

ha
se

 1
 a

nd
 a

re
 u

nd
er

w
ay

Po
rt

io
ns

 o
f S

eg
m

en
ts

 M
 a

nd
 O

 in
clu

de
d;

 re
m

ai
nd

er
 o

f i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 th
os

e 
se

gm
en

ts
 a

re
 in

clu
de

d 
in

 P
ha

se
 1

Se
gm

en
t

De
sc

rip
tio

n
Bo

un
da

rie
s

Po
te

nt
ia

l S
co

pe
 o

f I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
De

sig
n

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n

Se
gm

en
t A

: (
ap

pr
ox

. 
15

0f
t)

A
In

 se
gm

en
t A

, t
he

 v
eh

ic
ul

ar
 ci

rc
ul

at
io

n 
ne

tw
or

k 
in

te
rs

ec
ts

 th
e 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
an

d 
bi

cy
cl

e 
ne

tw
or

k.
 

Ve
hi

cl
es

 e
xi

tin
g 

hi
gh

w
ay

 1
01

 so
ut

hb
ou

nd
 to

w
ar

d 
no

rt
hb

ou
nd

 P
ot

re
ro

 A
ve

nu
e 

di
p 

be
lo

w
 g

ra
de

 
w

hi
le

 m
ak

in
g 

a 
sh

ar
p 

rig
ht

 tu
rn

. B
ef

or
e 

th
e 

of
f-

ra
m

p 
ris

es
 co

m
pl

et
el

y 
up

 to
 st

re
et

 le
ve

l, 
it 

cr
os

se
s 

a 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

cr
os

sw
al

k 
th

at
 is

 se
ve

ra
l s

te
ps

 b
el

ow
 

sid
ew

al
k 

gr
ad

e.

• 
No

rt
h:

 P
ot

re
ro

 (N
B)

, r
ig

ht
 

af
te

r t
he

 m
er

ge
 fr

om
 C

es
ar

 
Ch

av
ez

• 
So

ut
h 

: E
xi

t o
f t

he
 

bi
ke

w
ay

 b
rid

ge
 fr

om
 E

 
Ce

sa
r C

ha
ve

z

Fl
as

hi
ng

 b
ea

co
n

$2
5,

00
0

$1
50

,0
00

Se
gm

en
t B

: (
ap

pr
ox

. 
15

0 
ft.

)
Se

gm
en

t B
 ca

rie
s p

ed
es

tr
ia

ns
 a

nd
 cy

cli
st

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
no

rt
hb

ou
nd

 P
ot

re
ro

an
d 

so
ut

hb
ou

nd
 P

ot
re

ro
 cr

os
sw

al
ks

. T
he

 
ex

ist
in

g 
co

m
bi

ne
d 

bi
cy

cle
 a

nd
pe

de
st

ria
n 

pa
th

 is
 a

 si
de

w
al

k 
le

ss
 th

an
 8

 fe
et

 
w

id
e.

 

• 
Ea

st
 : 

Cr
os

sw
al

k 
at

 
no

rt
hb

ou
nd

 P
ot

re
ro

• 
W

es
t: 

So
ut

hb
ou

nd
 

Po
tr

er
o 

cr
os

sw
al

k

Pa
in

t a
nd

 p
os

t u
pg

ra
de

s
$1

5,
00

0
$3

0,
00

0

Se
gm

en
t C

: (
ap

pr
ox

. 
60

0 
ft.

)
Se

gm
en

t C
 is

 a
 b

rid
ge

 in
te

nd
ed

 fo
r w

es
tb

ou
nd

 
bi

cy
cl

e 
tr

af
fic

 o
nl

y,
 b

ut
 is

 a
lso

us
ed

 b
y 

m
an

y 
pe

de
st

ria
ns

 a
nd

 so
m

e 
ea

st
bo

un
d 

cy
cl

ist
s. 

Th
er

e 
is 

no
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
pe

de
st

ria
ns

 p
at

h 
on

 th
e 

no
rt

h 
sid

e 
of

 
Ce

sa
r C

ha
ve

z s
tr

ee
t b

et
w

ee
n

Ve
rm

on
t S

tr
ee

t a
nd

 B
ay

sh
or

e 
Bo

ul
ev

ar
d.

• 
Ea

st
: e

nt
ra

nc
e 

th
e 

bi
ke

w
ay

 b
rid

ge
 

• 
W

es
t: 

ex
it 

of
 th

e 
bi

ke
w

ay
 

br
id

ge

Up
gr

ad
e 

st
rip

in
g

$1
0,

00
0

$3
0,

00
0

Se
gm

en
t D

: 
(a

pp
ro

x.
 1

50
 ft

.)
Se

gm
en

t D
 co

ns
ist

s o
f a

n 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

7’
-4

” 
w

id
e 

sid
ew

al
k 

w
hi

ch
 ca

rie
s p

ed
es

tr
ia

ns
 a

nd
 

so
ut

hb
ou

nd
 b

icy
cle

s, 
an

 a
dj

ac
en

t 6
’ w

id
e 

cu
rb

sid
e 

bi
cy

cle
 la

ne
 fo

r n
or

th
bo

un
d 

bi
cy

cle
s, 

an
d 

tw
o 

cr
os

sw
al

ks
 u

se
d 

by
 b

ot
h 

pe
de

st
ria

ns
 

an
d 

bi
cy

cli
st

s t
o 

cr
os

s n
or

th
bo

un
d 

Po
tr

er
o 

Av
en

ue
.

• 
No

rt
h:

 C
ro

ss
w

al
k 

at
 

no
rt

hb
ou

nd
 P

ot
re

ro
• 

So
ut

h:
 C

ro
ss

w
al

k 
at

 o
ff 

ra
m

p/
Ba

ys
ho

re
 , 

be
fo

re
 

ro
ad

w
ay

 sp
lit

s t
o 

ei
th

er
 

W
es

t C
es

ar
 C

ha
ve

z o
r 

N.
Po

tr
er

o

Pa
in

t a
nd

 p
os

t u
pg

ra
de

s
$1

0,
00

0
$3

0,
00

0

Se
gm

en
t E

: (
ap

pr
ox

. 
15

0 
ft.

)
Se

gm
en

t E
 is

 a
 w

es
tb

ou
nd

 b
icy

cle
 p

at
h 

an
d 

a 
m

iss
in

g 
lin

k 
in

 th
e 

pe
de

st
ria

n
ne

tw
or

k,
 sp

an
ni

ng
 th

e 
ga

p 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
no

rt
h 

sid
ew

al
k 

of
 C

es
ar

 C
ha

ve
z S

tr
ee

t
ea

st
 o

f V
er

m
on

t S
tr

ee
t, 

an
d 

th
e 

bi
cy

cl
e 

br
id

ge
 

(a
lso

 u
se

d 
by

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
ns

)
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

15
0’

 to
 th

e 
w

es
t.

• 
Ea

st
: T

he
 g

ap
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

no
rt

h 
sid

ew
al

k 
of

 C
es

ar
 

Ch
av

ez
 S

tr
ee

t e
as

t o
f 

Ve
rm

on
t S

tr
ee

t
• 

W
es

t: 
En

tr
an

ce
 to

 th
e 

bi
cy

cl
e 

br
id

ge
 

Pr
ov

id
e 

tw
o 

as
ph

al
t r

ai
se

d 
cr

os
sw

al
ks

,  
st

rip
in

g 
up

gr
ad

es
$2

0,
00

0
$4

0,
00

0

113



Se
gm

en
t

De
sc

rip
tio

n
Bo

un
da

rie
s

Po
te

nt
ia

l S
co

pe
 o

f I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
De

sig
n

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n

Se
gm

en
t H

: 
(a

pp
ro

x.
 1

50
 ft

.)
Se

gm
en

t H
 co

ns
ist

s o
f a

 n
ar

ro
w

 b
rid

ge
 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
w

hi
ch

 ca
rie

s p
ed

es
tr

ia
ns

 a
nd

ea
st

bo
un

d 
cy

cli
st

s u
nd

er
 se

ve
ra

l h
ig

hw
ay

 
ra

m
ps

 a
nd

 o
ve

r a
 tr

en
ch

 ca
rr

yi
ng

ve
hi

cle
s f

ro
m

 C
es

ar
 C

ha
ve

z S
tr

ee
t t

o 
Ba

ys
ho

re
 

Bo
ul

ev
ar

d.
 T

he
 cr

os
sw

al
k 

at
 th

e
ea

st
er

n 
en

d 
of

 th
e 

se
gm

en
t i

s a
 cr

uc
ia

l n
od

e 
co

nn
ec

tin
g 

se
gm

en
ts

 C
, H

 a
nd

 I.

• 
Ea

st
: E

as
te

rn
 e

nd
 o

f 
na

rr
ow

 b
rid

ge
 st

ru
ct

ur
e 

w
hi

ch
 ca

rr
ie

s p
ed

es
tr

ia
ns

 
an

d 
ea

st
bo

un
d 

cy
cli

st
s 

un
de

r s
ev

er
al

 h
w

y 
ra

m
ps

 
an

d 
ov

er
 a

 tr
en

ch
 ca

rr
yi

ng
 

ve
hi

cl
es

 fr
om

 C
es

ar
 C

ha
ve

z 
St

re
et

 to
 B

ay
sh

or
e 

Bo
ul

ev
ar

d.
 A

t e
as

t e
nd

, 
th

er
e 

is 
a 

cr
os

sw
al

k 
at

 
Po

tr
er

o 
Av

en
ue

.
• 

W
es

t: 
W

es
te

rn
 e

nd
 o

f 
na

rr
ow

 b
rid

ge
 st

ru
ct

ur
e.

 

Up
gr

ad
e 

st
rip

in
g

$1
0,

00
0

$3
0,

00
0

Se
gm

en
t I

: (
ap

pr
ox

. 
40

0 
ft.

)
Se

gm
en

ts
 I 

ca
rr

ie
s p

ed
es

tr
ia

ns
 a

nd
 tw

o-
w

ay
 

bi
cy

cl
e 

tr
af

fic
 th

ro
ug

h 
a 

la
rg

e
la

nd
sc

ap
ed

 a
re

a 
an

d 
un

de
r t

he
 m

ai
n 

fre
ew

ay
 

st
ru

ct
ur

e.

• 
Ea

st
: C

ro
ss

w
al

k 
at

 
no

rt
hb

ou
nd

 B
ay

sh
or

e 
Bo

ul
ev

ar
d

• 
W

es
t: 

Cr
os

sw
al

k 
at

 
Po

tr
er

o 
Av

en
ue

Up
gr

ad
e 

st
rip

in
g

$1
0,

00
0

$3
0,

00
0

Se
gm

en
t J

: (
ap

pr
ox

. 
25

 ft
.)

Se
gm

en
t J

 is
 a

n 
un

sig
na

liz
ed

 cr
os

sw
al

k 
ca

rr
yi

ng
 

pe
de

st
ria

ns
 a

nd
 tw

o-
w

ay
 b

ic
yc

le
tr

af
fic

 a
cr

os
s n

or
th

bo
un

d 
Ba

ys
ho

re
 B

ou
le

va
rd

 
be

tw
ee

n 
se

gm
en

ts
 I,

 K
 a

nd
 L.

• 
Ea

st
: E

as
t e

nd
 o

f 
cr

os
sw

al
k 

at
 n

or
th

bo
un

d 
Ba

ys
ho

re
 B

ou
le

va
rd

/C
ity

-
O

w
ne

d 
Pa

rk
in

g 
Lo

t o
n 

E.
 

Ce
sa

r C
ha

ve
z

• 
W

es
t: 

W
es

t e
nd

 o
f 

cr
os

sw
al

k 
at

 n
or

th
bo

un
d 

Ba
ys

ho
re

 B
ou

le
va

rd

Co
nc

re
te

 ra
ise

d 
cr

os
sw

al
k,

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

an
d 

cy
cl

ist
-a

ct
iv

at
ed

 si
gn

al
, w

id
en

 cu
rb

 
ra

m
ps

, n
ar

ro
w

 ro
ad

w
ay

$1
60

,0
00

$3
30

,0
00

Se
gm

en
t K

: (
ap

pr
ox

. 
30

0 
ft.

)
Se

gm
en

t K
 ca

rr
ie

s p
ed

es
tr

ia
ns

 a
nd

 tw
o-

w
ay

 
bi

cy
cl

e 
tr

af
fic

 b
et

w
ee

n 
Se

gm
en

t J
 a

nd
 th

e 
in

te
rs

ec
tio

n 
of

 C
es

ar
 C

ha
ve

z a
nd

 K
an

sa
s S

tr
ee

ts
. 

Ea
st

bo
un

d 
cy

cl
ist

s u
se

 th
e 

w
id

e 
cu

rb
sid

e 
ve

hi
cle

 
la

ne
 o

f C
es

ar
 C

ha
ve

z S
tr

ee
t.

• 
Ea

st
: I

nt
er

se
ct

io
n 

of
 

Ce
sa

r C
ha

ve
z a

nd
 K

an
sa

s 
St

re
et

s
• 

W
es

t: 
Ea

st
 e

nd
 o

f 
cr

os
sw

al
k 

at
 n

or
th

bo
un

d 
Ba

ys
ho

re
 B

ou
le

va
rd

/ C
ity

-
O

w
ne

d 
Pa

rk
in

g 
Lo

t o
n 

E.
 

Ce
sa

r C
ha

ve
z

Na
rr

ow
 v

eh
ic

le
 la

ne
 to

 in
st

al
l b

ik
e 

la
ne

, 
po

ss
ib

le
 2

 w
ay

 b
ik

e 
la

ne
 o

n 
EB

 C
es

ar
 

Ch
av

ez
 (s

tr
ip

in
g)

; f
la

sh
in

g 
be

ac
on

$1
0,

00
0

$3
0,

00
0

114



Se
gm

en
t

De
sc

rip
tio

n
Bo

un
da

rie
s

Po
te

nt
ia

l S
co

pe
 o

f I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
De

sig
n

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n

Se
gm

en
t L

: (
ap

pr
ox

. 
35

0 
ft.

)
Se

gm
en

t L
 ca

rr
ie

s p
ed

es
tr

ia
ns

 a
nd

 tw
o-

w
ay

 
bi

cy
cl

e 
tr

af
fic

. T
he

 n
or

th
er

n 
po

rt
io

n 
of

 th
e 

se
gm

en
t i

s a
 1

0-
fo

ot
 w

id
e 

pa
th

 b
or

de
re

d 
by

 a
 ci

ty
-

ow
ne

d 
su

rfa
ce

 p
ar

ki
ng

 lo
t t

o 
th

e 
ea

st
 a

nd
 th

e 
el

ev
at

ed
 H

ig
hw

ay
 1

01
 n

or
th

bo
un

d 
on

-r
am

p 
to

 th
e 

w
es

t. 
Th

e 
so

ut
he

rn
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

se
gm

en
t i

s 
sig

ni
fic

an
tly

 n
ar

ro
w

er
.

• 
No

rt
h:

 C
ity

-o
w

ne
d 

pa
rk

in
g 

lo
t a

t E
. C

es
ar

 
Ch

av
ez

• 
So

ut
h:

 e
nt

ra
nc

e 
to

 th
e 

10
1 

N 
Hi

gh
w

ay
 o

n-
ra

m
p/

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

of
 M

ar
in

 
St

. a
nd

 N
B 

Ba
ys

ho
re

 B
lv

d

St
rip

in
g/

pa
th

 m
ar

ki
ng

s
$1

0,
00

0
$3

0,
00

0

Se
gm

en
t M

:
Se

gm
en

t M
 w

he
re

 B
ay

sh
or

e 
Bl

vd
 m

ee
ts

 M
ar

in
 

St
re

et
 h

as
 a

 tw
o-

w
ay

 b
ic

yc
le

 w
ay

 a
nd

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

cr
os

sin
g 

no
rt

h 
so

ut
h 

w
he

re
 n

or
th

bo
un

d 
tr

af
fic

 
m

ak
es

 u
nc

on
tr

ol
le

d 
rig

ht
 tu

rn
s a

cr
os

s a
nd

 
w

es
tb

ou
nd

 tr
af

fic
 m

ak
es

 st
op

 si
gn

 co
nt

ro
lle

d 
rig

ht
 

tu
rn

s a
cr

os
s. 

Th
er

e 
is 

a 
Hi

gh
w

ay
 1

01
 n

or
th

bo
un

d 
on

-r
am

p 
no

rt
h 

of
 th

e 
M

ar
in

 in
te

rs
ec

tio
n

• 
Ba

ys
ho

re
 a

nd
 M

ar
in

 
In

te
rs

ec
tio

n
Bu

ild
 a

 co
nc

re
te

 ra
ise

d 
cr

os
sw

al
k 

fo
r 

pe
de

st
ria

ns
 a

nd
 b

ic
yc

le
s c

ro
ss

in
g 

M
ar

in
 

St
re

et
 a

t B
ay

sh
or

e 
Bo

ul
ev

ar
d,

 cr
ea

te
 a

 
tw

o-
w

ay
 b

ik
ew

ay
 o

n 
Ba

ys
ho

re
 B

lv
d 

so
ut

h 
of

 M
ar

in
 S

tr
ee

t

$8
0,

00
0

$2
30

,0
00

Se
gm

en
t O

:
Se

gm
en

t 0
 w

he
re

 Je
rr

ol
d 

m
ee

ts
 B

ay
sh

or
e 

Bl
vd

 
ca

rr
ie

s n
or

th
bo

un
d 

an
d 

so
ut

hb
ou

nd
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

ns
 

an
d 

bi
cy

cle
st

s 

• 
Ba

ys
ho

re
 a

nd
 Je

rr
ol

d 
In

te
rs

ec
tio

n
Bu

ild
 a

 co
nc

re
te

 ra
ise

d 
cr

os
sw

al
k 

fo
r 

pe
de

st
ria

ns
 a

nd
 b

ic
yc

le
s c

ro
ss

in
g 

Je
rr

ol
d 

Av
e 

at
 B

ay
sh

or
e 

Bo
ul

ev
ar

d

$7
0,

00
0

$1
00

,0
00

Co
nt

in
ge

nc
y

$5
0,

00
0

TO
TA

L E
ST

IM
AT

ED
 C

O
ST

$4
80

,0
00

$1
,0

60
,0

00

115



San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Prop K/Prop AA Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: FY2019/20

Project Name: Cesar Chavez/Bayshore/Potrero Intersection Improvements (The Hairball) Phase 2

Grant Recipient: San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency

ENVIRONMENTAL CLEARANCE

Environmental Type: Categorically Exempt

PROJECT DELIVERY MILESTONES

Phase Start End

Quarter Calendar Year Quarter Calendar Year

Planning/Conceptual Engineering

Environmental Studies (PA&ED) Jul-Aug-Sep 2020 Jul-Aug-Sep 2020

Right of Way

Design Engineering (PS&E) Jul-Aug-Sep 2020 Jan-Feb-Mar 2021

Advertise Construction

Start Construction (e.g. Award Contract) Apr-May-Jun 2021

Operations

Open for Use Oct-Nov-Dec 2021

Project Completion (means last eligible expenditure) Oct-Nov-Dec 2021

SCHEDULE DETAILS

ENVIRONMENTAL CLEARANCE: SFMTA expects to be able to seek a Categorical Exemption for this work in Summer
2020 after Conceptual Design is complete.  

LEGISLATIVE APPROVALS: This project will require coordination with SFMTA's Transit and Accessibility divisions,
another SFMTA project on Bayshore Blvd., and the SF Fire Department. SFMTA expects to advance the conceptual
design through inter-agency approvals by the Summer 2020, with SFMTA Board Approval (if required) by Fall 2020.

116



San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Prop K/Prop AA Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: FY2019/20

Project Name: Cesar Chavez/Bayshore/Potrero Intersection Improvements (The Hairball) Phase 2

Grant Recipient: San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency

FUNDING PLAN - FOR CURRENT REQUEST

Fund Source Planned Programmed Allocated Project Total

PROP K: Bicycle Circulation/Safety $0 $480,000 $0 $480,000

Phases in Current Request Total: $0 $480,000 $0 $480,000

FUNDING PLAN - ENTIRE PROJECT (ALL PHASES)

Fund Source Planned Programmed Allocated Project Total

PROP K $0 $480,000 $0 $480,000

PROP B GENERAL FUND SET-ASIDE $1,060,527 $0 $90,000 $1,150,527

Funding Plan for Entire Project Total: $1,060,527 $480,000 $90,000 $1,630,527

COST SUMMARY

Phase Total Cost Prop K -
Current
Request

Source of Cost Estimate

Planning/Conceptual Engineering $90,000 $0 Actual Cost

Environmental Studies (PA&ED) $0 $0

Right of Way $0 $0

Design Engineering (PS&E) $480,000 $480,000 Engineering Estimate based on previous projects

Construction (CON) $1,060,527 $0 Engineering Estimate/Staff Hours and Cost

Operations $0 $0

Total: $1,630,527 $480,000

% Complete of Design: 0.0%

As of Date: 02/25/2020

Expected Useful Life: 20 Years

117



MAJOR LINE ITEM BUDGET
Cesar Chavez/Bayshore/Potrero Intersection Improvements Phase 2 - DESIGN

Total Planning Design Construction
$1,630,527 90,000$      480,000$        1,060,527$     

SFMTA: 480,918$        199,368$        281,550$        
Sustainable Streets Division - Engineering 199,368$        199,368$        -$                
Paint Shop Costs 212,690$        -$                212,690$        
Sign Shop 68,860$          -$                68,860$          
Signal Shop -$                -$                -$                

Public Works: builds 5 raised crosswalks 610,000      180,000$        430,000$        
(2 asphault/3 concrete)

Contractor- 2 RRFBs 350,000      50,000        300,000      
2 Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons * 350,000      50,000$          300,000$        

Contingency 100,000      50,000$         50,000$         

* Contractor will be responsible for both design andj construction of the RRFBs

118



San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Prop K/Prop AA Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: FY2019/20

Project Name: Cesar Chavez/Bayshore/Potrero Intersection Improvements (The Hairball) Phase 2

Grant Recipient: San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency

SFCTA RECOMMENDATION

Resolution Number: Resolution Date:

Total Prop K Requested: $480,000 Total Prop AA Requested: $0

Total Prop K Recommended: $480,000 Total Prop AA Recommended: $0

SGA Project Number: Name: Cesar Chavez/Bayshore/Potrero
Intersection Improvements (Hairball)
Phase 2 - Design

Sponsor: San Francisco Municipal
Transportation Agency

Expiration Date: 0

Phase: Design Engineering Fundshare: 100.0

Cash Flow Distribution Schedule by Fiscal Year

Fund Source FY 2019/20 FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Total

PROP K EP-139 $0 $480,000 $0 $0 $0 $480,000

Deliverables

1. Quarterly progress reports shall include % complete of the funded phase, work performed in the prior quarter, work
anticipated to be performed in the upcoming quarter, and any issues that may impact schedule, in addition to all other
requirements described in the Standard Grant Agreement.

2. Upon completion, SFMTA shall provide evidence of completion of 100% design (e.g., copy of certifications page or
copy of work order) and updated scope, schedule, budget, and funding plan for construction. This deliverable may be
met with an allocation request for construction.

Special Conditions

1. The Transportation Authority will only reimburse SFMTA up to the approved overhead multiplier rate for the fiscal year
that SFMTA incurs charges.

Metric Prop K Prop AA

Actual Leveraging - Current Request 0.0% No Prop AA

Actual Leveraging - This Project 70.56% No Prop AA

119



San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Prop K/Prop AA Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: FY2019/20

Project Name: Cesar Chavez/Bayshore/Potrero Intersection Improvements (The Hairball) Phase 2

Grant Recipient: San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency

EXPENDITURE PLAN INFORMATION

Current Prop K Request: $480,000

1) The requested sales tax and/or vehicle registration fee revenues will be used to supplement and under no circumstance
replace existing local revenues used for transportation purposes.

Initials of sponsor staff member verifying the above statement

JJ

CONTACT INFORMATION

Project Manager Grants Manager

Name: Thalia Leng Joel C Goldberg

Title: Transportation Planner Grants Procurement Manager

Phone: (415) 701-4762 (415) 646-2520

Email: thalia.leng@sfmta.com joel.goldberg@sfmta.com

120



San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Prop K/Prop AA Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: FY2019/20

Project Name: Bicycle Safety Education and Outreach

Grant Recipient: San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency

EXPENDITURE PLAN INFORMATION

Prop K EP categories: Bicycle Circulation/Safety

Current Prop K Request: $100,000

Supervisorial District(s): Citywide

REQUEST

Brief Project Description
Provide 16 months of Bicycle Safety Education and Outreach, building on successful past programming. The program
includes broad outreach to 10,000 San Francisco residents and visitors, and provides classes to more than 1,000 people.

Detailed Scope, Project Benefits and Community Outreach
The SFMTA requests $100,000 to support 16 months of the Bicycle Safety Education and Outreach program. The SFMTA
provides bicycle training classes for adults and children with funding from voter-approved Prop K funds. These classes
support Vision Zero and the City’s Transportation Demand Management and mode share goals by encouraging more
people to bicycle and to do so safely. This program will be delivered through a contract that was awarded to the San
Francisco Bicycle Coalition through a competitive bid process. See attached scope for details.

Project Location
Citywide

Project Phase(s)
Construction (CON)

5YPP/STRATEGIC PLAN INFORMATION

Type of Project in the Prop K 5YPP/Prop
AA Strategic Plan?

Named Project

Is requested amount greater than the
amount programmed in the relevant

5YPP or Strategic Plan?

Greater than Programmed Amount

Justification for Necessary Amendment

Request includes an amendment to the Bicycle Circulation and Safety 5YPP to reprogram $100,000 from Citywide
Neighborways to the subject project in FY 19/20, and reprogram all of the funds programmed for Bike Safety Education
and Outreach in FY 20/21 ($90,000) to Citywide Neighborways. This amendment is required to fully fund the subject
project in FY 19/20. The Citywide Neighborways program is still developing its initial set of projects, so deferring a
portion of FY 19/20 programming until next year (and leaving $660,000 in the current fiscal year) will not have an impact
on the delivery of the program.  

121



San Francisco County Transportation Authority 
Proposition K Sales Tax Program Allocation Request Form 

 
Background and Scope 

The SFMTA requests $100,000 to support the next 16 months of the Bicycle Safety Education and 
Outreach program. The SFMTA provides bicycle training classes for adults and children thanks to voter-
approved Prop K funds. These classes support Vision Zero and the City’s Transportation Demand 
Management and mode share goals by encouraging more people to bicycle and to do so safely. This 
program will be delivered through a contract that was awarded to the San Francisco Bicycle Coalition 
through a competitive bid process.  

Please see the attached Evaluation Report for the 2019 program year to learn more about the program’s 
reach and history. 

Task 1: Broad Bicycle Safety and Education Outreach Activities  

Task 1 requires the SFMTA’s contractor to develop and implement activities that introduce bicycling and 
bicycling safety concepts to people who may not otherwise receive safety messaging and encouragement. 
The contractor will host a table at 12 pre-determined and mutually agreed-upon fairs, festivals, farmer’s 
markets, and/or open streets events over the course of the contract. The contractor will submit an 
outreach plan proposing specific dates and locations to the SFMTA for feedback and approval at least one 
month prior. The goal will be to reach at least 2250 people per quarter. Task 1 requires in-person, 
community-oriented programming, not on-line messaging or marketing, in order to connect with people 
where they spend their time. This will include distributing educational and promotional materials in 
Chinese, Spanish, and Filipino as well as English.   

Task 2: Bicycle Safety Education Classes 

Task 2 involves multiple activities that will provide bicycle education opportunities for children and adults 
of varying abilities, including:  

• Teaching children and adults how to ride a bike 
• Providing bicycling basics to help people start to commute, shop, and travel by bike 
• Rules of the road trainings 
• On-street bicycle instruction 

Each year, a minimum of two classes shall be conducted in each of the following languages: Spanish, 
English and Chinese, and a minimum of one class conducted in Filipino. Based on learnings from previous 
years, the SFMTA and the contractor have developed the following portfolio of classes for this contract:  

 

Class Description Hrs/Class Target 
Attendees 

# of 
Classes 

Total 
People 

Adult Learn-to-ride 3 20 7 140 
Smart City Cycling 1: Classroom 2 30 10 300 
Smart City Cycling 2: Maneuvering 2 15 3 45 
Smart City Cycling 3: Road Practice 2 15 3 45 
Night and All-Weather Biking 1 20 6 120 
On-Bike Practice for Adult Beginning Cyclists 3 20 3 60 
Sharing City Streets 2 20 2 40 
Youth Freedom from Training Wheels 3.5 50 10 500 
Total   44 1250 

122



San Francisco County Transportation Authority 
Proposition K Sales Tax Program Allocation Request Form 

 
 

 

Additional Information 

Annual evaluation: 

The program will be evaluated on demographic information to ensure that outreach and classes are 
reaching the many, varied communities across the city, as well as on program outcomes, increases in 
bicycling in SF among program participants, and increases in safety knowledge for people who have 
participated in trainings and classes. Results from last year’s evaluation have been included as an 
attachment to this request.  
 
Equity: 
The program will ensure that event participation is not limited only to people who can pay to attend and 
that outreach and activities happen within all four quadrants of the city. The budget includes funding to 
provide multi-lingual materials and translation to ensure people are not excluded by language barriers. 
 
Environmental Status:   
On January 10, 2019, the SFMTA Environmental Review Team determined that the Bicycle Safety 
Education and Outreach program is “Not a Project” pursuant to CEQA as defined in CEQA Guidelines 
Sections 15060(c) and 15378(b) because the action would not result in a direct or a reasonably foreseeable 
indirect physical change to the environment. 

123



San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Prop K/Prop AA Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: FY2019/20

Project Name: Bicycle Safety Education and Outreach

Grant Recipient: San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency

ENVIRONMENTAL CLEARANCE

Environmental Type: Categorically Exempt

PROJECT DELIVERY MILESTONES

Phase Start End

Quarter Calendar Year Quarter Calendar Year

Planning/Conceptual Engineering

Environmental Studies (PA&ED)

Right of Way

Design Engineering (PS&E)

Advertise Construction

Start Construction (e.g. Award Contract) Jul-Aug-Sep 2020

Operations

Open for Use Oct-Nov-Dec 2021

Project Completion (means last eligible expenditure) Jan-Feb-Mar 2022

SCHEDULE DETAILS

Classes will run from September 2020 through December 2021; final closeout, reporting etc may continue into early
2022.

124



San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Prop K/Prop AA Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: FY2019/20

Project Name: Bicycle Safety Education and Outreach

Grant Recipient: San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency

FUNDING PLAN - FOR CURRENT REQUEST

Fund Source Planned Programmed Allocated Project Total

PROP K: Bicycle Circulation/Safety $100,000 $0 $0 $100,000

Phases in Current Request Total: $100,000 $0 $0 $100,000

COST SUMMARY

Phase Total Cost Prop K -
Current
Request

Source of Cost Estimate

Planning/Conceptual Engineering $0 $0

Environmental Studies (PA&ED) $0 $0

Right of Way $0 $0

Design Engineering (PS&E) $0 $0

Construction (CON) $100,000 $100,000 Budget from current contractor

Operations $0 $0

Total: $100,000 $100,000

% Complete of Design: N/A

As of Date: N/A

Expected Useful Life: N/A

125



Sa
n 

Fr
an

ci
sc

o 
C

ou
nt

y 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

Au
th

or
ity

Pr
op

 K
/P

ro
p 

AA
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

R
eq

ue
st

 F
or

m
Pr

oj
ec

t N
am

e:

B
ud

ge
t L

in
e 

Ite
m

Ite
m

 (Q
ua

nt
)

Ite
m

 (R
at

e)
La

bo
r (

Q
ua

nt
)

La
bo

r (
R

at
e)

To
ta

ls
1.

C
on

tr
ac

t
99

,5
00

.0
0

$ 
   

 

M
at

er
ia

ls
 &

 P
ro

m
ot

io
n

1
1,

00
0

$ 
 

1,
00

0
$ 

 
Tr

an
sl

at
io

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
1

30
0

$ 
 

30
0

$ 
 

M
aj

or
 O

ut
re

ac
h 

Ev
en

t
12

1,
79

6
$ 

 
21

,5
54

$ 
 

M
at

er
ia

ls
 &

 P
ro

m
ot

io
n

1
1,

00
0

$ 
 

1,
00

0
$ 

 
Sp

ac
e 

an
d 

Su
pp

lie
s 

R
en

ta
l

1
1,

00
0

$ 
 

1,
00

0
$ 

 
Tr

an
sl

at
io

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
1

1,
00

0
$ 

 
1,

00
0

$ 
 

Ad
ul

t L
ea

rn
-to

-R
id

e
7

2,
43

1
$ 

 
17

,0
18

$ 
 

Sm
ar

t C
ity

 C
yc

lin
g 

1:
 C

la
ss

ro
om

10
1,

33
4

$ 
 

13
,3

40
$ 

 
Sm

ar
t C

ity
 C

yc
lin

g 
2:

 M
an

eu
ve

rin
g

3
2,

12
3

$ 
 

6,
37

0
$ 

 
Sm

ar
t C

ity
 C

yc
lin

g 
3:

 R
oa

d 
Pr

ac
tic

e
3

2,
12

3
$ 

 
6,

37
0

$ 
 

N
ig

ht
 a

nd
 A

ll-
W

ea
th

er
 B

ik
in

g
6

1,
15

1
$ 

 
6,

90
6

$ 
 

Pi
lo

t: 
O

n-
Bi

ke
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

fo
r A

du
lt 

Be
gi

nn
in

g 
C

yc
lis

ts
3

2,
13

4
$ 

 
6,

40
3

$ 
 

Pi
lo

t: 
Sh

ar
in

g 
C

ity
 S

tre
et

s
2

1,
27

9
$ 

 
2,

55
8

$ 
 

Fr
ee

do
m

 F
ro

m
 T

ra
in

in
g 

W
he

el
s

10
1,

18
3

$ 
 

11
,8

30
$ 

 

M
on

th
ly

 a
nd

 F
in

al
 R

ep
or

tin
g

1
2,

85
0

$ 
 

2,
85

0
$ 

 
2.

SF
M

TA
 S

up
po

rt 
(C

on
tr

ac
t A

w
ar

d 
an

d 
O

ve
rs

ig
ht

)
50

0
$ 

 
C

ity
 A

tto
rn

ey
2

25
0

$
50

0
$ 

 
10

0,
00

0
$ 

 

Ta
sk

 3
: R

ep
or

tin
g

Ta
sk

 1
: B

ic
yc

le
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

O
ut

re
ac

h

Ta
sk

 2
: B

ic
yc

le
 S

af
et

y 
Ed

uc
at

io
n 

C
la

ss
es

TO
TA

L 
C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
 P

H
AS

E

MM
A

JO
R

 L
IN

E
 I

T
E

M
 B

U
D

G
E

T

Bi
cy

cl
e 

Sa
fe

ty
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

O
ut

re
ac

h

SU
M

M
AR

Y 
B

Y 
M

AJ
O

R
 L

IN
E 

IT
EM

 (B
Y 

AG
EN

C
Y 

LA
B

O
R

 B
Y 

TA
SK

)

Pa
ge

 1
 o

f 2

126



San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Prop K/Prop AA Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: FY2019/20

Project Name: Bicycle Safety Education and Outreach

Grant Recipient: San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency

SFCTA RECOMMENDATION

Resolution Number: Resolution Date:

Total Prop K Requested: $100,000 Total Prop AA Requested: $0

Total Prop K Recommended: $100,000 Total Prop AA Recommended: $0

SGA Project Number: Name: Bicycle Safety Education and
Outreach

Sponsor: San Francisco Municipal
Transportation Agency

Expiration Date: 09/30/2022

Phase: Construction Fundshare: 100.0

Cash Flow Distribution Schedule by Fiscal Year

Fund Source FY 2019/20 FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 FY 2024/25 + Total

PROP K EP-139 $0 $50,000 $50,000 $0 $0 $0 $100,000

Deliverables

1. Quarterly Progress Reports (QPRs) shall provide percent complete of the scope of work; description of outreach
activities performed that quarter (including those intended to engage traditionally under-represented bicycle
communities); and data on the number of classes held, including class type, location, and number of participants; in
addition to the requirements described in the Standard Grant Agreement (SGA). See SGA for definitions. QPRs shall
also include samples of outreach and class materials.

2. Upon SFMTA’s approval of contractor outreach plan (anticipated September 2020), including specific dates and
locations, MTA shall submit the outreach plan.

3. Upon project completion (anticipated March 2022), provide copy of program evaluation.

Special Conditions

1. The recommended allocation is contingent upon a concurrent amendment to the Prop K Bicycle Circulation and
Safety 5YPP. See attached 5YPP amendment for details.

2. The Transportation Authority will only reimburse SFMTA up to the approved overhead multiplier rate for the fiscal year
that SFMTA incurs charges.

Notes

1. As a reminder, per the Standard Grant Agreement, all flyers, brochures, posters, websites and other similar materials
prepared with Proposition K funding shall comply with the attribution requirements established in the Standard Grant
Agreement.

Metric Prop K Prop AA

Actual Leveraging - Current Request 0.0% No Prop AA

Actual Leveraging - This Project 0.0% No Prop AA

127



San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Prop K/Prop AA Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: FY2019/20

Project Name: Bicycle Safety Education and Outreach

Grant Recipient: San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency

EXPENDITURE PLAN INFORMATION

Current Prop K Request: $100,000

1) The requested sales tax and/or vehicle registration fee revenues will be used to supplement and under no circumstance
replace existing local revenues used for transportation purposes.

Initials of sponsor staff member verifying the above statement

JJ

CONTACT INFORMATION

Project Manager Grants Manager

Name: Crysta Highfield Joel C Goldberg

Title: Transportation Planner II Grants Procurement Manager

Phone: (415) 646-2454 (415) 646-2520

Email: crysta.highfield@sfmta.com joel.goldberg@sfmta.com

128



 

Bicycle Safety Education 
and Outreach Program   
2019 Program Report 

Overview 

The San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency Bicycle Safety Education and Outreach Program is 
funded by Prop K and is administered through a contract with the San Francisco Bicycle Coalition. 

In 2019, the Bicycle Safety Education and Outreach program reached over 10,000 people

Since 2017, the program has seen an increase in the ethnic/racial diversity of participants

Nearly all (96%) participants in the adult education classes would recommend their course

Attendance 

Over the past three years, the program has seen an increase of participation in bicycle safety 
programming, both per-event and corresponding to increases in the number of offered events. Our 
contractors held at least one event (and often more) in each Supervisor District. 

Figure 1: Event attendance at bicycle safety events from 2017 to 2019 

Outreach Events Adult Bicycle Education 
Freedom from Training 

Wheels 

Year # of Events 
# of People 

Engaged 
# of Classes 

# of 
Attendees 

# of Events 
# of 

Attendees 

2019 11 8944 27 440 9 703 

2018 11 8802 26 399 9 778 

2017 9 6038 20 268 7 345 

Figure 2: Location of 2019 events by San Francisco Supervisor District 

Class Outcomes 

Post-class surveys were conducted 6 weeks after classes were held and had about a 25% response rate 
(~100 responses total). The post-class surveys show positive impacts from the classes (though it should 
be noted that survey respondents are likely more engaged with bicycle safety than participants overall). 

96% are very or somewhat likely to recommend the course

1 While in-classroom courses are spread out among the districts, on-bike classes require car-free outdoor space, 
which is limited in San Francisco; these classes are most likely to be held at the Arguello Extension in District 5. 

District 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

# of Events 3 1 3 1 131 7 2 2 3 7 5 

129



Bicycle Safety Education and Outreach 2019 Program Report 

38% say they bike more since taking the class

53% say they have good or excellent knowledge of their rights and responsibilities when biking

57% of Adult Learn-to-Ride participants feel at least a little bit confident in their bicycle skills
when riding in a car-free area (compared to 13% pre-class)

59% of Smart City Cyclist participants feel at least a little bit confident in their bicycle skills when
riding in traffic (compared to 39% pre-class)

Demographics 

In 2019, our contractors reached an increasingly diverse population of San Francisco residents through 
culturally competent outreach and education delivered in English, Chinese, Spanish, and Filipino.  

In 2019, 5 out of 27 classes were offered in languages other than English, compared to 3 out
of 46 classes in 2017-18

An additional 8 classes offered the possibility of multi-lingual instruction for attendees

Figure 3: Percentage of adult bicycle education attendees by ethnicity 

Figure 4: Percentage of adult bicycle education attendees by gender 

1.2%

8.8%

37.1% 37.8%

7.6%

12.0%

2.3%

14.4%

25.2%

31.5%

9.5%

13.4%

3.6%

12.2%

38.9%

29.8%

8.8% 9.3%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

35.0%

40.0%

45.0%

Black or African-
American

Latino/a or
Hispanic

Asian White/
Caucasian/Euro

American

Other ethnicity Prefer not to say

%
 o

f 
A

d
u

lt
 E

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 A
tt

en
d

ee
s

2017 2018 2019

57.7%

37.2%

5.0%

54.7%

32.9%

12.4%

71.6%

25.0%

3.4%

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

80.0%

Female Male Other or Prefer not to say

%
 o

f 
A

d
u

lt
 E

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 A
tt

en
d

ee
s

2017 2018 2019

n(2017) = 239 
n(2018) = 298 
n(2019) = 388 

n(2017) = 251 
n(2018) = 305 
n(2019) = 419 

130



San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Prop K/Prop AA Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: FY2019/20

Project Name: Third Street Transit and Safety

Grant Recipient: San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency

EXPENDITURE PLAN INFORMATION

Prop AA EP categories: Prop AA Transit Projects

Current Prop AA Request: $383,776

Supervisorial District(s): District 06

REQUEST

Brief Project Description
The Third Street Transit and Safety Early Implementation project will reduce bus delays and improve pedestrian safety to
better accommodate existing travel demand patterns.  The project will be delivered in three phases, and this request is for
the second phase which includes adding a queue jump (transit-only turn lane) at Townsend at Third Street and signal
hardware modifications at the intersections of Third Street and Folsom, Harrison, Bryant, and Townsend streets.

Detailed Scope, Project Benefits and Community Outreach
See attached background and detailed scope description. 

Project Location
3rd Street between Howard and Brannan & Townsend Street at Third Street

Project Phase(s)
Construction (CON)

5YPP/STRATEGIC PLAN INFORMATION

Type of Project in the Prop K 5YPP/Prop
AA Strategic Plan?

Named Project

Is requested amount greater than the
amount programmed in the relevant
5YPP or Strategic Plan?

Less than or Equal to Programmed Amount

Prop AA Strategic Plan Amount: $383,776

131



3rd Street Transit and Safety 
Background and Scope 

BACKGROUND 
Third Street in the South of Market (SoMa) district is a major multimodal arterial providing access to the 
Financial District, Chinatown, and other destinations north of Market Street as well as Interstate 80 (I-80) and 
U.S. Highway 101 (US-101) on-ramps. A one-way, northbound street with three to four through lanes of traffic 
north of King Street, it also features a transit- only lane north of Townsend Street and is one of Muni's busiest 
corridors, used by nearly 40 buses per hour between Bryant and Market Streets in the peak period. Autos, 
trucks, and other private vehicles are allowed to access the transit lane to turn right, merge into right-turn lanes, 
or access curbside parking. However, motorists often drive in the transit-only lane illegally. Additionally, as the 
surrounding neighborhood has grown rapidly in recent years, pedestrian volumes have increased and the rate of 
injury collisions along Third Street are among the highest in the City, making it a high-injury corridor. 

A range of methods was used to engage with the surrounding community as well as Muni riders, motorists and 
others from outside the immediate area who might be affected by the changes. 

Outreach strategies included: 
• More than two dozen stakeholder meetings with and presentations to community and citywide advocacy

organizations, institutional stakeholders, residents of senior communities, citizens advisory committees, and
the Supervisors offices for Districts 3 and 6.

• A variety of surveys, including surveys for Muni passengers, pedestrians and motorists, as well as a door-to-
door survey of merchants regarding their loading needs. These were administered both in-person and
through digital channels and in multiple languages.

• An open house attended by approximately 100 participants, with interpreters provided for multiple
languages.

• Approximately 14,000 multi-lingual informational mailers sent to businesses and residents in the SoMa and
nearby Mission Bay neighborhoods.

• A project website and email updates to more than 4,000 recipients.

The project is consistent with the Central SoMa Plan. 

BENEFITS 
The Third Street Transit and Safety project will reduce transit delays by 1) relocating the transit-only lane, 
currently located next to the parking lane or curbside, one lane to the left between Brannan and Howard 
Streets, which creates additional capacity for vehicles making turns or maneuvering into parking spaces to the 
right of the lane, reducing conflicts between transit and private vehicles, and 2) relocating and consolidating 
stops to reduce the total number of stops by one, while simultaneously improving access overall by more evenly 
spacing stops. It would improve pedestrian safety in a variety of ways, primarily by adding "bulb" sidewalk 
extensions to reduce crossing distances and make pedestrians more visible, making crosswalks more visible, 
adding new crosswalks and using traffic signal phases to separate vehicle from pedestrian movements at busy 
crossings. 

PHASING 
This project includes three phases. Dividing the project into three phases will allow most project benefits to be 
delivered within 12-24 months of project approval, rather than in five years, when the final phase is scheduled 
for completion. Because the early implementation phases do not make expensive changes to the roadway (such 
as relocation of curblines or changes to drainage), they can be delivered both much faster and for far less 
money. Additionally, inclusion of fast-tracked early implementation phases will allow the SFMTA to make 
improvements to pedestrian safety in a Vision Zero high-injury corridor four-plus years earlier than would 
otherwise be possible. 

132



3rd Street Transit and Safety 
Background and Scope 

PHASE 1: In the first phase, now nearing completion, most project elements are being implemented including 
relocation of the transit lane and stops as well as most of the pedestrian safety improvements. This phase 
includes construction of boarding islands that will be expanded to transit bulbs as part of Phase 3. Phase 1 
improvements along 3rd Street between Brannan and Howard Streets: 

Relocation of the transit lane
Bus stop consolidation
Boarding islands (at Folsom and Bryant Streets)
Painted safety zones
Crosswalk improvements (not including those at at Folsom and Bryant Streets), including new
crosswalks on side streets

PHASE 2 (subject request): This application is for the second phase of the project. This phase includes: 

A transit-only queue-jump on Townsend for buses turning onto 3rd Street. Queue-jump turn lanes allow
transit vehicles to bypass automobile queues, reducing delay by anywhere from a few seconds to most
of a signal cycle.
Signal hardware modifications at four intersections to increase the visibility of leading transit interval
(LTI) signals. These signal improvements are regularly employed by SFMTA to reduce transit delay and
travel time variability. LTIs allow transit vehicles to proceed ahead of vehicle traffic, reducing conflicts
with private vehicles. In the case of the 3rd and Townsend queue, preliminary traffic modeling found an
average vehicular delay of 50 seconds for the turn movement. We expect this to decline substantially for
transit, at a location used by up to 20 buses per hour.

Phase 2 will be completed within 12 months (see detailed intersection improvement drawings, attached) 

PHASE 3 will include:  

Transit bulbs at Folsom and Bryant Streets
New crosswalks at Folsom and Bryant Streets. These must be coordinated with the transit bulbs
Upgraded curb ramps

SCOPE OF OVERALL PROJECT 
(see rendering of planned 3rd Street transit and safety improvements following scope description) 

Transit Lane Changes: The existing transit-only lane on Third Street was designed to mitigate traffic delays. In 
2014, the lane was upgraded with red colorization to improve motorist compliance with transit lane restrictions. 
However, staff has concluded that the transit-only lane is inherently prone to delay due to turning vehicles, and 
that allocating more space for right-turning traffic to queue would reduce conflicts and delay. 

Specifically: 

• Starting just north of Brannan Street and ending just north of the existing stop at Folsom Street, the transit
lane would be the third lane from the eastern curb. To its right would be full-time right-turn lanes and the
curbside lane, which would primarily be parking and loading but would include a second, smaller right-turn
lane at Bryant and Folsom. Tow-away restrictions would be used to extend the second right-turn lane along
the curb during peak periods at Bryant and Folsom Streets (a second turn lane would not be provided at
Harrison due to its two-way configuration and limited ability to receive turning vehicles; a full-time curbside
right-turn lane would also be provided at Brannan). Dual turn lanes would create additional capacity; they
would also create space for right- turning motorists to maneuver around vehicles illegally parked along the
curb during towaway hours.

133



3rd Street Transit and Safety 
Background and Scope 

• Between the Folsom Street stop and Howard Street, the transit lane would be the second lane from the
eastern curb, rather than curbside as today. This would provide a transition between the segments of lane
to the south and to the north, between Howard and Mission Streets where the transit lane is currently the
second lane from the curb.

• There would be no changes to the location of the transit lane south of Brannan Street or north of Howard
Street. Right-turn delay is not a major issue in this segment, as right turns are not allowed at Howard Street
or Market Street, and right turn volumes are lower at Mission Street than farther south.

These changes would allow buses to bypass right-turn queues at Bryant, Harrison and Folsom Streets while 
remaining in the transit lane. They would also provide additional capacity for right turns outside of the transit 
lane. 

To accommodate these changes, the remaining lanes of Third Street between Brannan and Howard Streets 
would be reconfigured. During peak periods, there would be three continuous through lanes of traffic to the left 
of the transit lane from Townsend Street to Market Street. During off-peak periods, the curbside lane would be 
used primarily for parking and loading and there would be two lanes of through traffic in the three-block 
segment between Brannan and Folsom Streets. Along with pedestrian safety improvements, these changes 
would also require changes to parking and loading, described in the attachment. 

There will also be signal hardware modifications at 3rd and Folsom, 3rd and Harrison & 3rd and Bryant to 
facilitate the new separated phasing on 3rd Street. This work would add new signal poles, vehicle signals, and 
signal conduit.  

Transit Stop Changes: To further reduce transit delays, some stops would be removed or relocated. The 
proposed right-turn lanes in the second lane from the curb at Bryant, Harrison, and Folsom Streets present 
opportunities to locate large transit bulb stops on the far side of the intersection, as no transit or private vehicle 
movements would need to be accommodated in this space. For this reason, and to provide more consistent 
spacing between stops and comply with SFMTA Stop Spacing Guidelines, stops are proposed to be located as 
shown in the attachment. 

The stops at Townsend/Brannan Streets (existing), Bryant Street (new) and Folsom Street (existing) would be 
located on bulbs long enough to simultaneously accommodate two 60-foot buses. The existing bulb at 
Townsend/Brannan Streets would be widened to approximately 10 feet, effectively widening the sidewalk to 20 
feet, while new bulbs at Bryant and Folsom Streets would be approximately 14 feet wide, effectively widening 
the sidewalk to 24 feet. All three stops would provide space for shelters and other amenities. New transit islands 
would be constructed as a near-term improvement at Folsom and Bryant. They would be replaced with bulbs 
when the long-term improvements are constructed. 

The existing stop at Mission Street would remain as is. The temporary existing stop at Harrison Street (formerly 
at Perry Street) would be removed, and replaced by the proposed stop at Bryant Street. The existing stop at 
Howard Street would be eliminated as it is not a transfer point and has lower ridership than adjacent stops. The 
result would be a reduction in the total number of stops on Third Street in SoMa from five to four, and a 
reduction in the maximum distance between stops from nearly 1,800 feet to less than 1,300 feet. The bus zone 
at Perry Street, currently not used by Muni, would be retained for use by AC Transit. Altogether, these 
improvements are projected to reduce PM peak period transit travel times between the Caltrain terminal and 
Market Streets by approximately two minutes per trip, or over 20 percent. 

Pedestrian Safety Improvements: As SoMa has become one of San Francisco's fastest-growing neighborhoods in 
recent years, pedestrian volumes on Third Street have increased. The 24-hour pedestrian count is now more 
than 3,000 at the intersection of Third and Mission Streets, and more than 2,000 at Third and Folsom Streets. 

134



3rd Street Transit and Safety 
Background and Scope 

Even at Bryant Street, south of I-80 and farther from the traditional downtown, the pedestrian volumes exceed 
1,000 per day. Volumes are much higher after Giants games and other events at AT&T Park. 

South of Mission Street, sidewalks are 10 feet wide, below the Planning Department's Better Streets guidelines 
for Mixed-use Streets such as Third Street. While there are traffic signals at every major intersection and 
crosswalks on most legs of these intersections, there are closed crosswalks at Bryant and Folsom, and other 
crosswalks are not designed to SFMTA's current high-visibility standards. There are also no pedestrian bulbs at 
crosswalks on Third Street, and the roadway is 62.5 feet wide, with up to six lanes of traffic. 

Speeds at the 85th  percentile are well over the posted speed limit of 25 miles per hour. Between Townsend 
and Brannan Streets, the 85th  percentile speed is 30 miles per hour. Additionally, as a major access route to 
downtown and area freeways, Third Street experiences high volumes of truck traffic. 

Third Street has been identified by San Francisco's Vision Zero program as a High-Injury Corridor. Analysis 
conducted for this project found that in the five-year period between 2012 and 2016, there were a total of 50 
pedestrian- or bicyclist-involved collisions on Third Street between Townsend and Mission Streets, or 10 per 
year. Of these, two were fatal, and another six resulted in severe injuries. The collisions were distributed 
throughout the corridor, with between six and seven pedestrian collisions at each of the intersections of Third 
Street with Bryant, Harrison and Howard Streets. 

This project seeks to improve pedestrian safety, and to more comfortably accommodate increasing volumes of 
pedestrians, by implementing a range of improvements. These include: 

• Sidewalk extensions (bulbs). Transit bulbs would be installed at Bryant and Folsom Streets, which would be
approximately 14 feet wide and would effectively widen the sidewalk at those locations to approximately 24
feet (over a length of more than 150 feet). Pedestrian bulbs approximately six feet wide are planned on one
or more corners at Townsend, Brannan, Bryant and Howard Streets. Crossing distances would be reduced to
approximately 48 to 49 feet, and pedestrians on bulbs waiting to cross the Street would also be made more
visible to motorists. (Note that sidewalk extensions are under the jurisdiction of San Francisco Public Works,
not the SFMTA.)

• New crosswalks. Crosswalks would be added on the northern side of the intersection at Bryant and Folsom
Streets, reducing the number of crossings required at these locations from three to one. Additionally,
crosswalks would be added along Third Street at intersections with minor Streets and alleys such as Stillman
and Minna Streets.

• Upgraded crosswalks. All crosswalks would be of a high-visibility "continental" design.
• New and upgraded curb ramps. Non-compliant curb ramps would be upgraded. A second ramp would also

be added in locations where a single ramp now serves crossings in two directions, and is not directly aligned
with one or both crosswalks, for example on the northeast corner of Third and Townsend Streets. (Note that
curb ramps are under the jurisdiction of San Francisco Public Works, not the SFMTA.)

• Advance limit lines. Advance limit lines or stop bars for motorists would be added in advance of the
crosswalk at all signalized intersections on Third Street.

• Leading pedestrian intervals. As part of planned upgrades to traffic signal hardware, all signalized
intersections without leading pedestrian intervals or pedestrian "head starts" would receive them.

• Right turn on red restrictions. Signal cycles at Bryant and Folsom Streets would also include a turn-only
phase, allowing protected right turns off of Third Street and left turns onto Third Street. During this phase,
pedestrian movements would be prohibited. At all other times, these turn movements would be restricted,
reducing conflicts between vehicles and pedestrians in the crosswalk. Signal hardware modifications will be
made to facilitate new separated phasing between motorist and pedestrians.

135



3
rd

 S
t 

T
ra

n
si

t 
&

 S
a

fe
ty

 P
ro

je
c
t

S
F
M

T
A

.c
o

m
/3

rd
S

tr
e

e
t

Mission

Howard

Folsom

Clementina

Minna

3
rd

 S
t,

 f
ro

m
 M

is
si

o
n

 t
o

 C
le

m
e

n
ti

n
a

R
e

lo
ca

te
d

 T
ra

n
si

t 

L
a

n
e

R
e

m
o

v
e

d
 S

to
p

P
a

rk
in

g
 &

 L
o

a
d

in
g

 A
d

d
e

d

N
e

w
 P

e
d

e
st

ri
a

n
 

B
u

lb
s

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 

C
ro

ss
w

a
lk

s

136



3
rd

 S
t 

T
ra

n
si

t 
&

 S
a

fe
ty

 P
ro

je
c
t

S
F
M

T
A

.c
o

m
/3

rd
S

tr
e

e
t

3
rd

 S
t

Perry

Folsom

Harrison

South Park

Bryant

Stillman Stillmanan

3
rd

 S
t,

 f
ro

m
 F

o
ls

o
m

 t
o

 B
ry

a
n

t

N
e

w
 F

u
ll

-T
im

e
 

R
ig

h
t 

T
u

rn
 L

a
n

e

N
e

w
 T

o
w

-A
w

a
y

 R
e

st
ri

c
ti

o
n

s

(P
M

 P
e

a
k

)

N
e

w
 T

o
w

-A
w

a
y

 R
e

st
ri

c
ti

o
n

s

(7
a

m
-7

p
m

 D
a

il
y

)

N
e

w
 F

u
ll

-T
im

e
 

R
ig

h
t 

T
u

rn
 L

a
n

e

N
e

w
 F

u
ll

-T
im

e
 

R
ig

h
t 

T
u

rn
 L

a
n

e

T
u

rn
-o

n
ly

 S
ig

n
a

l 

P
h

a
se

s

T
u

rn
-o

n
ly

 S
ig

n
a

l 

P
h

a
se

s

R
e

lo
ca

te
d

 

S
to

p

2
n

d
 R

u
sh

 H
o

u
r 

R
ig

h
t 

T
u

rn
 L

a
n

e

2
n

d
 R

u
sh

 H
o

u
r 

R
ig

h
t 

T
u

rn
 L

a
n

e

R
e

lo
ca

te
d

 

S
to

p

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 

C
ro

ss
w

a
lk

s
Im

p
ro

v
e

d
 

C
ro

ss
w

a
lk

s

N
e

w
 

P
e

d
e

st
ri

a
n

 

B
u

lb

R
e

lo
ca

te
d

 

T
ra

n
si

t 
L

a
n

e

N
e

w
 T

ra
n

si
t 

B
u

lb

N
e

w
 T

ra
n

si
t 

B
u

lb

N
e

w
 C

ro
ss

w
a

lk
 

(N
o

rt
h

 S
id

e
)

N
e

w
 C

ro
ss

w
a

lk
 

(N
o

rt
h

 S
id

e
)

E
x

is
ti

n
g

 T
o

w
-A

w
a

y
 H

o
u

rs
 E

x
te

n
d

e
d

S
o

m
e

 P
a

rk
in

g
 S

p
a

ce
s 

R
e

m
o

v
e

d

S
o

m
e

 L
o

a
d

in
g

 Z
o

n
e

s 
R

e
lo

ca
te

d

137



3
rd

 S
t 

T
ra

n
si

t 
&

 S
a

fe
ty

 P
ro

je
c
t

S
F
M

T
A

.c
o

m
/3

rd
S

tr
e

e
t

South Park

Brannan

Townsend

3
rd

 S
t,

 f
ro

m
 S

o
u

th
 P

a
rk

 t
o

 T
o

w
n

se
n

d

R
e

lo
ca

te
d

  
  
  
  
 

T
ra

n
si

t 
L

a
n

e

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 

C
ro

ss
w

a
lk

s

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 

C
ro

ss
w

a
lk

s

N
e

w
 P

e
d

e
st

ri
a

n
 

B
u

lb
s

E
x

p
a

n
d

e
d

  
  

T
ra

n
si

t 
B

u
lb

N
e

w
 P

e
d

e
st

ri
a

n
 

B
u

lb

N
e

w
 T

o
w

-A
w

a
y

 

R
e

st
ri

c
ti

o
n

s

E
x

is
ti

n
g

 T
o

w
-A

w
a

y
 H

o
u

rs
 E

x
te

n
d

e
d

S
o

m
e

 P
a

rk
in

g
 S

p
a

ce
s 

R
e

m
o

v
e

d

S
o

m
e

 L
o

a
d

in
g

 Z
o

n
e

s 
R

e
lo

ca
te

d

N
e

w
 F

u
ll

-T
im

e
 

T
u

rn
 L

a
n

e

138



San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Prop K/Prop AA Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: FY2019/20

Project Name: Third Street Transit and Safety

Grant Recipient: San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency

ENVIRONMENTAL CLEARANCE

Environmental Type: Categorically Exempt

PROJECT DELIVERY MILESTONES

Phase Start End

Quarter Calendar Year Quarter Calendar Year

Planning/Conceptual Engineering Jan-Feb-Mar 2019 Jan-Feb-Mar 2019

Environmental Studies (PA&ED)

Right of Way

Design Engineering (PS&E) Apr-May-Jun 2019 Jul-Aug-Sep 2019

Advertise Construction

Start Construction (e.g. Award Contract) Oct-Nov-Dec 2019

Operations

Open for Use Jul-Aug-Sep 2021

Project Completion (means last eligible expenditure) Oct-Nov-Dec 2021

SCHEDULE DETAILS

Construction 
Phase 1: October 2019 - June 2020 
Phase 2: July 2020 - July 2021 
Phase 3: July 2023 - June 2024

139



San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Prop K/Prop AA Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: FY2019/20

Project Name: Third Street Transit and Safety

Grant Recipient: San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency

FUNDING PLAN - FOR CURRENT REQUEST

Fund Source Planned Programmed Allocated Project Total

PROP AA: Prop AA Transit Projects $0 $383,776 $0 $383,776

Phases in Current Request Total: $0 $383,776 $0 $383,776

FUNDING PLAN - ENTIRE PROJECT (ALL PHASES)

Fund Source Planned Programmed Allocated Project Total

PROP AA $0 $383,776 $0 $383,776

SFMTA OPERATING FUND $0 $1,500,000 $0 $1,500,000

PROP B GENERAL FUND SET ASIDE $0 $1,000,000 $80,000 $1,080,000

Funding Plan for Entire Project Total: $0 $2,883,776 $80,000 $2,963,776

140



COST SUMMARY

Phase Total Cost Prop AA -
Current
Request

Source of Cost Estimate

Planning/Conceptual Engineering $50,000 $0 Actual Cost

Environmental Studies (PA&ED) $5,000 $0 Actual Cost

Right of Way $0 $0

Design Engineering (PS&E) $25,000 $0 Actual Cost

Construction (CON) $2,883,776 $383,776 Based on 100% design

Operations $0 $0

Total: $2,963,776 $383,776

% Complete of Design: 100.0%

As of Date: 09/30/2019

Expected Useful Life: 5 Years

141



San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Prop K/Prop AA Allocation Request Form

Budget Line Item SFMTA
Construction Tasks

Task 1: Signal Installation 183,140$              
Task 2: Paint Installation 95,000$  
Subtotal 278,140$              

Construction Management/Support 36,628$  
Project Management 11,904$  
Design Support (construction phase) 27,471$  
Contingency 29,632$  
TOTAL CONSTRUCTION PHASE 383,776$              

MAJOR LINE ITEM BUDGET

SUMMARY BY MAJOR LINE ITEM (BY AGENCY LABOR BY TASK)

Third Street Transit and Safety Phase 2

142



San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Prop K/Prop AA Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: FY2019/20

Project Name: Third Street Transit and Safety

Grant Recipient: San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency

SFCTA RECOMMENDATION

Resolution Number: Resolution Date:

Total Prop K Requested: $0 Total Prop AA Requested: $383,776

Total Prop K Recommended: $0 Total Prop AA Recommended: $383,776

SGA Project Number: Name: 3rd Street Transit and Safety Phase
2

Sponsor: San Francisco Municipal
Transportation Agency

Expiration Date: 09/30/2022

Phase: Construction Fundshare: 100.0

Cash Flow Distribution Schedule by Fiscal Year

Fund Source FY 2019/20 FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Total

PROP AA EP-703 $0 $383,776 $0 $0 $0 $383,776

Deliverables

1. Quarterly progress reports (QPRs) shall include % complete to date, photos of work being performed, list of
improvements completed at each location to date, upcoming project milestones (e.g. ground-breaking, ribbon-cutting),
and delivery updates including work performed in the prior quarter, work anticipated to be performed in the upcoming
quarter, and any issues that may impact delivery, in addition to all other requirements described in the Standard Grant
Agreement.

2. With the first QPR due July 1, 2020, SFMTA shall provide 2-3 photos of tyical before conditions.

3. Upon completion of project, SFMTA shall provide 2-3 photos of complete project.

Special Conditions

1. Reimbursement is conditioned upon receipt of evidence of completion of design (e.g. copy of certifications page).

2. The Transportation Authority will only reimburse SFMTA up to the approved overhead multiplier rate for the fiscal year
that SFMTA incurs charges.

Metric Prop K Prop AA

Actual Leveraging - Current Request No Prop K 0.0%

Actual Leveraging - This Project No Prop K 87.05%

143



San Francisco County Transportation Authority
Prop K/Prop AA Allocation Request Form

FY of Allocation Action: FY2019/20

Project Name: Third Street Transit and Safety

Grant Recipient: San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency

EXPENDITURE PLAN INFORMATION

Current Prop AA Request: $383,776

1) The requested sales tax and/or vehicle registration fee revenues will be used to supplement and under no circumstance
replace existing local revenues used for transportation purposes.

Initials of sponsor staff member verifying the above statement

JJ

CONTACT INFORMATION

Project Manager Grants Manager

Name: Kevin Shue Joel C Goldberg

Title: Assistant Engineer Grants Procurement Manager

Phone: (415) 646-2520

Email: kevin.shue@sfmta.com joel.goldberg@sfmta.com

144



19
-3

-1
00

W
IT

H
 3

0'
 S

IG
N

A
L

M
A

S
T

 A
R

M

83 84
M

A
C

M
A

C
3S

12
"

3S
12

"
B

P
B

P
82

S
V

-1
-T

3S
12

"
49

S
P

-1
1S

-I
N

145



16
-2

-1
00

W
IT

H
 2

0'
 S

IG
N

A
L

M
A

S
T

 A
R

M

86
M

A
C

3S
12

"

E
X

T
 C

O
N

D
U

IT
87

S
V

-1
-T

3S
12

"

B
A

C
K

P
LA

T
E

3S
12

"
21

S
V

-1
-T

T

146



147



148



149



 

 

Page 1 of 2 

Memorandum 

AGENDA ITEM 8 

DATE:  April 7, 2020 

TO:  Transportation Authority Board 

FROM:  Anna LaForte – Deputy Director for Policy and Programming 

SUBJECT:  4/14/2020 Board Meeting: Allocate $580,000 in Prop K Sales Tax Funds and 
$383,776 in Prop AA Vehicle Registration Fee Funds, with Conditions, for Three 
Requests 

DISCUSSION  

Attachment 1 summarizes the subject allocation requests, including information on proposed 
leveraging (i.e. stretching Prop K sales tax dollars further by matching them with other fund 
sources) compared with the leveraging assumptions in the Prop K Expenditure Plan. 
Attachment 2 includes brief project descriptions. Attachment 3 summarizes the staff 
recommendations for each request, highlighting special conditions and other items of 
interest. An Allocation Request Form for each project is attached, with more detailed 
information on scope, schedule, budget, funding, deliverables and special conditions. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT  

The recommended action would allocate $580,000 in Prop K funds and $383,776 in Prop AA 
funds. The allocations would be subject to the Fiscal Year Cash Flow Distribution Schedules 
contained in the attached Allocation Request Forms.  

RECOMMENDATION ☐ Information ☒ Action 

Allocate $580,000 in Prop K funds, with conditions, to the San 
Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA) for: 

1. Cesar Chavez/Bayshore/Potrero Intersection Improvements 
(The Hairball) Phase 2 ($480,000) 

2. Bicycle Safety Education and Outreach ($100,000) 
 

Allocate $383,776 in Prop AA funds, with conditions, to the 
SFMTA for: 

3. Third Street Transit and Safety Improvements 
 

SUMMARY 

Attachment 1 lists the requests, including phase(s) of work and 
supervisorial district(s) for the projects. Attachment 2 provides a 
brief description of the projects. Attachment 3 contains the staff 
recommendations.    

☒ Fund Allocation 

☒ Fund Programming 

☐ Policy/Legislation 

☐ Plan/Study 

☐ Capital Project 
Oversight/Delivery 

☐ Budget/Finance 

☐ Contract/Agreement 

☐ Other: 
___________________ 

150



Agenda Item 8 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment 4 shows the approved Fiscal Year 2019/20 allocations and appropriations to 
date, with associated annual cash flow commitments as well as the recommended allocation 
and cash flow amounts that are the subject of this memorandum. 

Sufficient funds are included in the Fiscal Year 2019/20 budget to accommodate the 
recommended action. Furthermore, sufficient funds will be included in the Fiscal Year 
2020/21 budget to cover the recommended cash flow distribution for that fiscal year. 

CAC POSITION  

None. The March 25 CAC meeting was cancelled in light of the local health emergency 
related to the COVID-19 pandemic.  

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIALS 

• Attachment 1 –Summary of Requests 
• Attachment 2 – Project Description 
• Attachment 3 – Staff Recommendation 
• Attachment 4 – Prop K/AA Allocation Summary – FY 2019/20 
• Attachment 5 – Allocation Request Forms (3) 

151



[ this page intentionally left blank ]

152



BD042820 RESOLUTION NO. 20-XX 
 

Page 1 of 4 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE REPROGRAMMING OF $197,500 IN 

TRANSPORTATION FUND FOR CLEAN AIR FUNDS FROM THE SAN FRANCISCO 

MUNICIPAL TRANSPORTATION AGENCY’S FISCAL YEAR  (FY) 2016/17 

ALTERNATIVE FUEL TAXICAB INCENTIVE PROGRAM TO SAN FRANCISCO 

DEPARTMENT OF THE ENVIRONMENT’S FY 2018/19 EMERGENCY RIDE HOME 

PROGRAM  

WHEREAS, At the April 14, 2020 Board meeting, Commissioner Haney 

requested that staff explore ways to help essential workers who are facing challenges 

getting home from their jobs, particularly at night, with the recent reductions in 

transit service due to COVID-19; and 

WHEREAS, Transportation Authority staff have worked with staff from the San 

Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA) and the San Francisco 

Department of the Environment (SFE) to develop a proposal, as shown in Attachment 

1, to expand the existing Emergency Ride Home Program to provide reimbursable 

taxi rides home for essential workers who commute to work via sustainable modes, 

such as transit, walking or biking; and  

WHEREAS, As currently envisioned, the proposed Emergency Ride Home 

expansion for essential workers would fund up to ten taxi rides per month for eligible 

trips during hours when, or to locations where, previously available transit options 

are temporarily unavailable due to emergency-related transit service reductions; and 

WHEREAS, The expanded Emergency Ride Home would provide emissions 

benefits by incentivizing sustainable commute trips to work and helping transit riders 

to stay on transit, rather than becoming drive-alone car commuters; and 

WHEREAS, To fund this expansion, Transportation Authority staff 

recommends reprogramming $197,500 in Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) 

funds from SFMTA’s FY 2016/17 Alternative Fuel Taxicab Incentive Program, which 

153



BD042820 RESOLUTION NO. 20-XX 
 

Page 2 of 4 

has seen lower than anticipated demand, to the Emergency Ride Home Program, as 

shown in Attachment 2; and  

WHEREAS, The SFMTA is very supportive of this proposal as it continues to 

support the taxi industry and its essential workers and because there is also $250,000 

available in a FY 2017/18 TFCA grant for SFMTA’s taxicab program to provide 

incentives to purchasers of clean air taxis; and 

WHEREAS, As the County Program Manager for TFCA, the Transportation 

Authority has the authority to reprogram funds between existing projects, as long as 

program rules and guidelines are maintained, including cost effectiveness of 

emissions reductions; and 

WHEREAS, Transportation Authority and SFE staff will continue to work with 

Air District staff to ensure that the subject project remains in compliances with TFCA 

policies and guidelines; and 

WHEREAS, In order to provide relief to essential workers as soon as possible 

during this time of emergency-related transit service reductions, the Transportation 

Authority Board is considering final approval on the first appearance of this request 

before the Board; now, therefore, be it 

RESOLVED, That the Transportation Authority hereby reprograms $197,500 in 

TFCA funds from the SFMTA’s FY 2016/17 Alternative Fuel Taxicab Incentive 

Program to SFE’s FY 2018/19 Emergency Ride Home Program; and be it further 

RESOLVED, That the Executive Director is authorized to amend the funding 

agreement with SFE to pass-through these additional funds for implementation of 

the Emergency Ride Home Program, establishing such terms and conditions 

governing cash drawdowns, financial and program audits, and reporting as 

necessary to comply with the requirements imposed by the Air District for the use of 

the funds and as required by the Transportation Authority in order to optimize the 

154



BD042820 RESOLUTION NO. 20-XX 
 

Page 3 of 4 

use of these of funds. 

 
 
Attachments (2): 
 

1. Draft Proposed Expanded Emergency Ride Home Program Guidelines 
2. Proposed TFCA Programming Amendment  

  

155



 
Emergency Ride Home Expanded Program Proposal  

Draft Essential Worker Ride Home Program 
April 24, 2020 

Department of the Environment 
 
 
Introduction 
This proposal serves as a draft for an expanded Emergency Ride Home program. The draft provides an 
overview of the program goals, background on the existing Emergency Ride Home program, and 
recommended program parameters for participation and administration. The information outlined in the 
draft is subject to change. 
 
Program Administration 
 
The Essential Worker Ride Home (EWRH) program will be an expansion of San Francisco’s current 
Emergency Ride Home (ERH) program, which is funded by an existing SFCTA Transportation Fund for 
Clean Air (TFCA) grant and administered by the San Francisco Department of the Environment (SFE). It 
will serve as a resource during the COVID-19 emergency for essential workers making trips home from 
work during this time of limited public transportation availability.  
 
Under this program, participants are expected to take a sustainable mode of transportation to work. The 
program provides a reliable ride home when transit options are limited, therefore encouraging transit use 
and discouraging solo drive commutes. The program will be available to essential workers until further 
notice, subject to conditions impacting the program’s availability, which may include updates to public 
transportation schedules and operations, limitations of program funding, and/or removal of the shelter-in-
place order. It is only distinguished from the existing Emergency Ride Home program to the extent 
necessary to not confuse the public about which ERH program benefits are temporary and which ERH 
program benefits are permanent. 
 
Funding & Budget 
  
Funding Source & Allocation 
The total funding available is $197,500 from TFCA funds administered by San Francisco County 
Transportation Authority (SFCTA). TFCA funds pass from the Bay Area Air Quality Management District 
(Air District), which establishes project eligibility criteria, to SFCTA, which selects projects and administers 
grants as the County Program Manager. See Transportation Fund for Clean Air for more information. 
 
Under this proposal, TFCA funds would be reprogrammed from an existing project–the SFMTA 
Alternative Fuel Taxicab Incentive Program, which has seen lower than anticipated demand–to the 
existing Emergency Ride Home project. The alternative fuel taxi subsidy grant is set to expire by October 
31, 2020 if not used. SFCTA and SFMTA staff are supportive of reprogramming these funds, which will 
be used to continue supporting the taxi industry. The Alternative Fuel Taxicab Incentive program has 
additional funding so the program will not be negatively impacted by the reprogramming of these TFCA 
funds. 
 
Approval 
The SFTCA Board will consider the proposal at its April 28, 2020 meeting. If approved, the funds would 
be reprogrammed to SFE’s existing FY18-19 ERH project funds for immediate use. 
 

Attachement 1156

https://www.baaqmd.gov/funding-and-incentives/public-agencies/county-program-manager-fund
https://www.baaqmd.gov/funding-and-incentives/public-agencies/county-program-manager-fund
http://www.sfcta.org/tfca


Budget 
The program budget of $197,500 would fund staff hours and direct costs associated with the program, 
including program administration, reimbursement processing, marketing and outreach, and TFCA grant 
administration and reporting.  

Trip Cap Recommendation 
We recommend setting a cap of ten (10) trips per month, per person, with a cap of $70 per trip. Based on 
these parameters, the program could subsidize return trips of an estimated 71 to 100 essential workers 
per week. The calculation is based on a 12-week program budget using the average cost of a one-way, 
off-peak taxi ride to the East Bay and uses reimbursement data from the existing Emergency Ride Home 
program and assumes that not every trip will reach the $70 limit.  

See detailed budget attached. 

Program Details 

Overview 
The program will cover the cost of up to ten (10) taxi rides home per month for employees fulfilling 
essential job functions, as classified here, and not to exceed $70 per ride. Participants must first register 
for the program by submitting an application to verify essential status, program need, and intended use. 
Once a participant’s application is accepted, they must use an official taxi for eligible trips and submit their 
reimbursement request with applicable taxi receipt(s) within 20 calendar days of the trip.  

Duration 
The program is proposed to launch on Friday, May 1, following SFCTA Board approval, and will be 
available to essential workers until further notice, subject to conditions impacting the program’s 
availability, which may include, updates to public transportation schedules and operations, limitations of 
program funding, and/or removal of the shelter-in-place order. SFE’s decision to extend or discontinue the 
program will be made in consultation with SFCTA. 

Eligible Participants 
All employees of essential businesses in San Francisco, performing essential job functions, as classified 
by the City and County of San Francisco. Review the list of essential businesses.  

Eligible Trips 
Trips must originate at the employee’s work location in San Francisco and end at home, a transit stop that 
will take them to their home, or the location of their parked car (e.g. park-and-ride lot, transit parking lot, 
etc.). Trips to work will not be covered by the program. 

Trips must be taken during hours when, or to locations where, previously available transit options are 
unavailable due to emergency-related transit service reductions. (e.g. after 9:00 p.m., for BART). Review 
the Coronavirus Transportation Impacts for the latest information. 

All Essential Worker Ride Home trips must be made via taxi and a receipt must be submitted with each 
reimbursement request. Rides with Transportation Network Companies (TNCs) such as Uber and Lyft are 
not reimbursable.  

Application Verification 

Attachement 1
157

https://sf.gov/check-if-business-essential
https://sf.gov/check-if-business-essential
https://511.org/alerts/emergencies/coronavirus#anchor1


As part of the application process, participants will be asked to provide their employer name, occupation, 
and supervisor contact information to prove eligibility as an essential worker. SFE staff will review 
application eligibility based on the list of essential businesses classified by the City and County of San 
Francisco. Applicants will also be asked to provide information regarding the public transportation 
provider and line that normally serves their commute home but is no longer in operation or may have 
limited availability due to the COVID-19 public health emergency. Once applicants have been approved 
for the program, they can then submit weekly reimbursement requests that must include copies of official 
taxi receipts for final verification of the trip date, location, time, and cost.  

Reimbursements   
Reimbursement requests should be submitted on a weekly basis via an online reimbursement submission 
form. Receipts must be included with the reimbursement submission, and requests must be received 
within 20 days from the date of the trip. SFE will process reimbursement requests weekly and checks will 
be mailed to participants within 3-4 weeks of reimbursement request submission. Once 75% of program 
funds are exceeded, the program will stop to allow for evaluation and assessment to ensure outstanding 
reimbursements are processed with adequate funds remaining. The website will state that program funds 
are subject to availability and reimbursements will be offered until funds are exhausted. 

Existing Emergency Ride Home Program 
The City of San Francisco’s Emergency Ride Home program will continue to be available to individuals 
who work in San Francisco who are fulfilling essential job functions, and all requests will continue to be 
evaluated based on the program's eligibility criteria, as defined here. 

Potential Marketing & Outreach Avenues 

● Web: The program would be housed on the Department of the Environment’s website, with links
to be added to the following websites: SF.gov, SFMTA, SFCTA, Office of Economic and
Workforce Development, and SF Department of Human Resources (for CCSF employees serving
essential roles). SFE would administer and manage the website.

● Social Media: SFE would create a social media toolkit for use by City Departments, businesses,
non-profits, and community partners to help promote the program. Key channels for promotion
include SFE, SFCTA, SFMTA, SFGOV, among others.

● CCSF Communications: We recommend working with the Department of Human Resources for
a citywide communication to CCSF staff and Disaster Service Workers to alert employees
fulfilling essential job functions of the program’s availability. We will also work with Public
Information Officers of each department to spread program awareness.

● Taxi Industry Communications: SFMTA will lead on communication efforts to the taxi industry,
alerting them of the program offering.

● Paid Media: Budget is allocated for paid digital advertising targeted at business owners and
essential workers.

● Translation: The website, application form, and associated communications will be in English.
SFE staff will provide language assistance for participants who prefer a language other than
English and will be reachable by email (commutesmart@sfgov.org) or phone (415-355-3702) for
language assistance.

Attachement 1158

https://sfenvironment.org/emergency-ride-home
https://sfenvironment.org/emergency-ride-home-additional-information
mailto:commutesmart@sfgov.org


Sa
n 

Fr
an

ci
sc

o 
C

ou
nt

y 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

Au
th

or
ity

Ta
sk

 1
 T

FC
A 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tio

n

Ag
en

cy

1.
1 

TF
C

A 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

an
d 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Ev
al

ua
tio

n

2.
1 

R
ei

m
bu

rs
em

en
t 

Pa
ym

en
t -

 D
ire

ct
 

C
os

t

2.
2 

R
ei

m
bu

rs
em

en
t 

Pr
oc

es
si

ng
 a

nd
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

2.
3 

Em
pl

oy
ee

 
&

 E
m

pl
oy

er
 

C
us

to
m

er
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

3.
1 

M
ar

ke
tin

g 
&

 O
ut

re
ac

h

3.
2 

Pa
id

 M
ed

ia
 

C
am

pa
ig

n 
- 

D
ire

ct
 C

os
t 

(C
on

tra
ct

or
, 

M
ed

ia
 B

uy
s)

To
ta

l

SF
E

2,
98

4
$

 
-

$
 

9,
54

7
$

 
2,

50
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

15
,8

99
$ 

   
   

   
  

3,
54

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
34

,4
78

$ 
   

  
D

ire
ct

 C
os

ts
15

3,
02

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
16

3,
02

2
$ 

   
To

ta
l

2,
98

4
$

 
15

3,
02

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
9,

54
7

$
 

2,
50

5
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
15

,8
99

$ 
   

   
   

  
13

,5
43

$ 
   

   
   

  
19

7,
50

0
$ 

   
*D

ire
ct

 C
os

ts
 in

cl
ud

e 
m

ai
lin

g,
 re

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
co

st
s.

SF
E

H
ou

rs
B

as
e 

H
ou

rly
 

R
at

e
O

ve
rh

ea
d 

M
ul

tip
lie

r

Fu
lly

 
B

ur
de

ne
d 

H
ou

rly
 C

os
t

FT
E

To
ta

l

Pr
oj

ec
t S

up
er

vi
si

on
 (5

64
4)

14
99

.0
0

$
 

2.
42

23
9.

58
$ 

   
   

   
  

0.
00

7
3,

35
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

Pr
oj

ec
t O

ve
rs

ig
ht

 (5
64

2)
55

87
.0

0
$

 
2.

42
21

0.
54

$ 
   

   
   

  
0.

02
6

11
,5

80
$ 

   
   

   
  

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
 (9

92
2)

11
7

40
.0

0
$

 
2.

42
96

.8
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

0.
05

6
11

,3
26

$ 
   

   
   

  
Pr

oj
ec

t S
ta

ff 
1 

(5
64

0)
16

76
.0

0
$

 
2.

42
18

3.
92

$ 
   

   
   

  
0.

00
8

2,
94

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
Pr

oj
ec

t S
ta

ff 
2 

(5
63

8)
20

64
.0

0
$

 
2.

42
15

4.
88

$ 
   

   
   

  
0.

01
0

3,
09

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
Pr

oj
ec

t S
ta

ff 
3 

(1
82

2)
12

75
.0

0
$

 
2.

42
18

1.
50

$ 
   

   
   

  
0.

00
6

2,
17

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
To

ta
l

23
4.

00
0.

11
34

,4
78

$ 
   

   
   

  

D
ET

AI
LE

D
 L

AB
O

R
 C

O
ST

 E
ST

IM
AT

E 
- B

Y 
AG

EN
C

Y

Ta
sk

 3
 M

ar
ke

tin
g 

an
d 

O
ut

re
ac

h
Ta

sk
 2

 P
ro

gr
am

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

B
U

D
G

ET
 S

U
M

M
AR

Y

M
AJ

O
R

 L
IN

E 
IT

EM
 B

U
D

G
ET

Attachement 1
159



T
FC

A
R

em
ai

ni
ng

Pr
oj

ec
t

Y
ea

r 
A

m
ou

nt
B

al
an

ce
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
N

o.
A

pp
ro

ve
d

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e 

(S
po

ns
or

1 )
A

w
ar

de
d

(4
/2

1/
20

)
C

ha
ng

e
B

al
an

ce
17

SF
02

FY
20

16
/1

7
A

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
Fu

el
 T

ax
ic

ab
 In

ce
nt

iv
e 

Pr
og

ra
m

 (S
FM

TA
)

$2
50

,0
00

$1
97

,5
00

($
19

7,
50

0)
$0

18
SF

02
FY

20
17

/1
8

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

Fu
el

 T
ax

ic
ab

 In
ce

nt
iv

e 
Pr

og
ra

m
 (S

FM
TA

)
$2

50
,0

00
$2

50
,0

00
N

o 
ch

an
ge

$2
50

,0
00

19
SF

03
FY

20
18

/1
9

E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

R
id

e 
H

om
e 

(S
FE

)
$5

0,
73

4
$2

8,
01

4
$1

97
,5

00
$2

25
,5

14

1 Sa
n 

Fr
an

ci
sc

o 
M

un
ic

ip
al

 T
ra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
A

ge
nc

y 
(S

FM
TA

), 
Sa

n 
Fr

an
ci

sc
o 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f t
he

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
t (

SF
E

)

A
tta

ch
m

en
t 2

Sa
n 

Fr
an

ci
sc

o 
C

ou
nt

y 
T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
A

ut
ho

rit
y

TF
C

A
 P

ro
gr

am
m

in
g 

A
m

en
dm

en
t

T
ab

le
 1

. P
ro

po
se

d 
T

FC
A

 P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g

M
:\

B
oa

rd
\B

oa
rd

 M
ee

ti
ng

s\
20

20
\M

em
os

\0
4 

Ap
r 2

8\
It

em
 9

 - 
TF

CA
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
Ri

de
 H

om
e 

Pr
og

ra
m

\A
TT

2 
- T

FC
A 

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
Ri

de
 H

om
e 

- 4
.2

1.
20

.x
ls

x 
Pa

ge
 1

 o
f 1160



 

 

Page 1 of 4 

Memorandum 

AGENDA ITEM 9 

DATE: April 22, 2020 

TO: Transportation Authority Board 

FROM: Anna LaForte – Deputy Director for Policy and Programming 

SUBJECT: 4/28/2020 Board Meeting: Reprogram $197,500 in Transportation Fund for Clean 
Air funds from the San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency's Fiscal Year 
2016/17 Alternative Fuel Taxicab Incentive Program to San Francisco Department 
of the Environment's Fiscal Year 2018/19 Emergency Ride Home Program - 
ACTION  

RECOMMENDATION ☐ Information ☒ Action 

Reprogram $197,500 in Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) 
funds from the San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency's 
(SFMTA’s) Fiscal Year (FY) 2016/17 Alternative Fuel Taxicab 
Incentive Program to San Francisco Department of the 
Environment's (SFE’s) FY 2018/19 Emergency Ride Home 
Program. 

 

SUMMARY 

At the April 14, 2020 Board meeting, Commissioner Haney 
requested that staff explore ways to help essential workers who 
are facing challenges getting home from their jobs, particularly at 
night, with the recent reductions in transit service due to COVID-
19. We have worked with SFMTA and the SFE to develop a 
proposal to expand the existing Emergency Ride Home program 
to provide reimbursable taxi rides home for essential workers who 
commute to work via sustainable modes, such as transit, walking 
or biking. This proposal would fund up to ten taxi rides per month 
for eligible trips during hours when or to locations where 
previously available transit options are temporarily unavailable 
due to emergency-related transit service reductions. The 
expanded Emergency Ride Home would provide emissions 
benefits, as required for all TFCA projects, by incentivizing 
sustainable commute trips to work and helping transit riders to 
stay on transit, rather than becoming drive-alone car commuters. 
To fund this expansion, we recommend reprogramming $197,500 
in TFCA funds from SFMTA’s FY 2016/17 Alternative Fuel Taxicab 
Incentive Program, which has seen lower than anticipated 
demand, to the Emergency Ride Home Program. The proposed 
reprogramming will continue to support the taxi industry and its 

☐ Fund Allocation 

☒ Fund Programming 

☐ Policy/Legislation 

☐ Plan/Study 

☐ Capital Project 
Oversight/Delivery 

☐ Budget/Finance 

☐ Contract/Agreement 

☐ Other: 
___________________ 

161



Agenda Item 9 Page 2 of 4 

essential workers. There is also $250,000 available from a FY 
2017/18 TFCA grant for SFMTA’s taxicab program to provide 
incentives to purchasers of clean air taxis. 

BACKGROUND 

The TFCA program was established to fund cost-effective transportation projects that achieve 
emission reductions from motor vehicles in accordance with policies approved by the Bay 
Area Air Quality Management District (Air District). Funds are generated from a $4 surcharge 
on vehicle registration fees collected by the Department of Motor Vehicles and 40% of the 
funds are distributed on a return-to-source basis to the respective County Program Manager 
for each of the nine Bay Area counties. The Transportation Authority is the designated County 
Program Manager for the City and County of San Francisco and as such, the Transportation 
Authority annually develops the program of projects for San Francisco’s share of TFCA funds. 
The remaining 60% of the revenues, referred to as the TFCA Regional Fund, are distributed 
via programs directly administered by the Air District. 

The Transportation Authority has awarded TFCA grants to SFE’s Emergency Ride Home 
Program since 2009. The purpose of the program is to support and encourage walking, 
biking, taking transit, carpooling or vanpooling commutes by reimbursing people employed 
in San Francisco for taking taxi trips home under emergency circumstances. The emissions 
benefits of Emergency Ride Home come from encouraging people to feel confident in using 
and relying on sustainable modes to get to and from work instead of driving.  

We have also awarded several TFCA grants to SFMTA’s Alternative Fuel Taxicab Incentive 
Program since 2013. This program provides a key financial incentive to companies to 
purchase new alternative, clean-air vehicles by defraying the cost of a new vehicle with a 
rebate of up to $3,900 for that purchase. This program is intended to help SFMTA move 
towards its goal of a 100% alternative fuel taxi fleet within the next few years. Demand for 
SFMTA’s taxicab incentives has been lower than anticipated in recent years, due to economic 
conditions for the taxi industry and rules changes that have permitted taxi vehicles to be used 
for longer lifespans.  

To respond as quickly as possible to the challenges that essential workers are facing during 
the COVID-19 pandemic with the reduction of public transit services in the region, particularly 
in the evening and late night hours, Transportation Authority staff evaluated the potential for 
amending existing TFCA grants to the two above mentioned TFCA programs. 

DISCUSSION 

Proposed Emergency Ride Home Program for Essential Workers. Since the April 14 Board 
meeting, we have worked with SFMTA and SFE to develop a proposal to expand the existing 
Emergency Ride Home Program to provide additional taxi rides home for essential workers. 
The expanded program as currently proposed is outlined in Attachment 1 and responds to 
the need for maintaining sustainable mode shares for essential worker commute trips, while 
transit service is significantly reduced.  

The expanded program would cover the cost of up to 10 taxi rides home per person per 
month for employees fulfilling essential job functions as classified by the City and County of 

162



Agenda Item 9 Page 3 of 4 

San Francisco, with a cap of $70 per ride. Based on the amount of funds we are 
recommending and data from the existing Emergency Ride Home program, the program 
could subsidize an estimated 180-250 rides per week over a 12-week program.  
 
In order ensure that these trips are filling gaps left by temporarily reduced transit service, trips 
would be required to be during hours when, or to locations where, previously available transit 
options are unavailable due to emergency-related transit service reductions. Trips must 
originate at the employee’s work location in San Francisco and end at home, a transit stop 
that will take them to their home, or the location of their parked car (e.g. transit station 
parking lot, etc.). Trips to work are not eligible for this program. To make it easy to apply for 
reimbursements, SFE would accept registration applications, including information necessary 
to verify eligibility and, once verified, applicants could then submit reimbursement requests 
on a weekly basis. 
 
Benefits provided under the existing Emergency Ride Home Program (up to four rides per 
year for individual emergency circumstances) would continue to be available during the 
period the expanded program is available and after full transit service has been reinstated, 
pending available funding. 

Proposed Reprogramming. To fund this expansion, we recommend reprogramming 
$197,500 from SFMTA’s FY 2016/17 Alternative Fuel Taxicab Incentive Program, which has 
seen lower than anticipated demand, to the Emergency Ride Home Program as shown in 
Attachment 2. As the County Program Manager for TFCA, the Transportation Authority has 
the authority to reprogram funds between existing projects, as long as program rules and 
guidelines are maintained. The SFMTA is very supportive of this proposal, as it continues to 
support the taxi industry and its essential workers.  

The Alternative Fuel Taxicab Incentive Program will continue to be funded by a FY 2017/18 
TFCA grant with a remaining balance of $250,000.  

Air District Staff Feedback. We have discussed the proposed expansion with Air District staff, 
who expressed several concerns about using TFCA funds for the expanded program. Air 
District staff have reservations that the project will meet the air quality benefits for the TFCA 
program, which require that projects provide surplus emissions reductions (beyond what is 
required by regulation) and must do so cost-effectively, according to thresholds set by the Air 
District. Staff suggested ensuring the emissions benefits of the program by requiring that 
applicants use sustainable modes (such as biking, walking, or transit) for their trip to work, 
asking applicants to confirm that they would have traveled home via transit if service was 
available, and limiting potential abuse of the program by reimbursing a maximum of one trip 
per 24 hour period. We have incorporated these suggestions into the design of the program. 

Air District staff expressed concerns that emergency ride home programs are intended to 
respond to individual, personal emergencies rather than a broad, societal emergency, such as 
COVID-19. We believe that our current situation is unprecedented and constitutes a 
legitimate emergency that is larger in scale and of longer duration than the program 
originally anticipated. Given the unprecedented circumstances, there is limited data upon 
which to base calculations of cost effectiveness (e.g. the total number of essential workers and 
the percentage of those workers who could be encouraged to remain on transit for the 

163



Agenda Item 9 Page 4 of 4 

commute to work based on the incentive provided by this program), however we believe that 
our assumptions for the air quality benefits are reasonable and that the expanded program is 
an effective way to preserve and maintain vehicle emissions reductions as riders are 
incentivized to stay on transit and not to drive to work. Transportation Authority and SFE staff 
will work with Air District staff to ensure that this project remains in compliance with TFCA 
policies and guidelines, including cost effectiveness requirements.  

FY 2020/21 TFCA Call for Projects. The Transportation Authority currently has an open call 
for projects with $811,962 in TFCA funds available. Applications are due May 4, 2020, 
however we may extend the deadline. If demand for the proposed Emergency Ride Home 
expansion exceeds available funding, we have the opportunity to evaluate whether additional 
funding could be used to support the program while still meeting the TFCA cost effectiveness 
requirements. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

There are no impacts to the Transportation Authority’s adopted FY 2019/20 budget 
associated with the recommended action.  

CAC POSITION 

None.  The April 22 CAC meeting was cancelled in light of the local health emergency related 
to the COVID-19 pandemic.  

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIALS 

● Attachment 1 – Draft Proposed Expanded Emergency Ride Home Program Guidelines 
● Attachment 2 – Proposed TFCA Programming Amendment 

 
 
 

 

164



S
F

M
T

A
 a

n
d

 S
F

 P
a
ra

tr
a
n

s
it

 
C

O
V

ID
-1

9
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

a
ti

o
n

 
U

p
d

a
te

Pr
es

en
te

d 
By

: 
An

ne
tte

 W
illi

am
s 

-M
an

ag
er

 o
f A

cc
es

si
bl

e 
Se

rv
ic

es
, S

FM
TA

165



•
M

un
i i

s 
on

ly
 fo

r e
ss

en
tia

l t
rip

s 
a

n
d

fo
r t

ho
se

 w
ho

 
ha

ve
 n

o 
ot

he
r t

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

op
tio

ns
.

•
Th

e 
sa

fe
ty

 o
f M

un
i c

us
to

m
er

s 
an

d 
op

er
at

or
s 

is
 o

f 
ut

m
os

t i
m

po
rta

nc
e.

•
M

un
i h

as
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
se

rv
ic

e 
re

du
ct

io
ns

 d
ue

 to
 a

 
nu

m
be

r o
f s

af
et

y 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
ns

.
•

M
un

i r
id

er
s 

ar
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 w

ea
r f

ac
e 

co
ve

rin
gs

 o
r 

m
as

ks
 a

nd
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

so
ci

al
 d

is
ta

nc
in

g.
 

M
u

n
i 

C
O

V
ID

-1
9
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

166



C
h

a
n

g
e
s
 W

h
e
n

 R
id

in
g

 M
u

n
i 

167



C
h

a
n

g
e
s
 W

h
e
n

 R
id

in
g

 M
u

n
i 

M
as

ks
/fa

ce
 c

ov
er

in
gs

 n
ow

 re
qu

ire
d 

w
he

n 
rid

in
g 168



M
u

n
i 

C
o

re
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
la

n
 

•
R

un
ni

ng
 1

7 
of

 7
9 

lin
es

 
•

Th
es

e 
lin

es
 c

ar
rie

d 
80

%
 o

f t
ot

al
 p

as
se

ng
er

s

N
 J

ud
ah

 B
us

L 
Ta

ra
va

l B
us

T 
Th

ird
 B

us
1 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
8 

Ba
ys

ho
re

9 
Sa

n 
Br

un
o

14
 M

is
si

on
 

14
R

 M
is

si
on

 R
ap

id
19

 P
ol

k

22
 F

illm
or

e
24

 D
iv

is
ad

er
o

25
 T

re
as

ur
e 

Is
la

nd
29

 S
un

se
t

38
 G

ea
ry

38
R

 G
ea

ry
 R

ap
id

44
 O

'S
ha

ug
hn

es
sy

49
 V

an
 N

es
s/

M
is

si
on

169



M
o

d
if

ie
d

 C
o

re
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
la

n

Ad
de

d 
lin

es
:

5 
Fu

lto
n

12
 F

ol
so

m
/P

ac
ifi

c
28

 1
9t

h 
Av

en
ue

54
 F

el
to

n
71

4 
BA

R
T 

-E
ar

ly
 B

ird
 

Sh
ut

tle

M
or

e 
Se

rv
ic

e:
N

 J
ud

ah
 B

us
L 

 T
ar

av
al

 B
us

9 
Sa

n 
Br

un
o

38
R

 G
ea

ry
 W

ee
ke

nd
s

•
R

es
to

re
d 

so
m

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
on

 A
pr

il 
25

•
In

cr
ea

se
s 

co
ve

ra
ge

 a
cr

os
s 

ci
ty

 a
nd

 
co

nn
ec

ts
 to

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 e

ss
en

tia
l s

er
vi

ce
s

170



M
u

n
i 

O
w

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

•
N

ow
 s

ta
rts

 a
t 1

0p
m

•
30

 m
in

. h
ea

dw
ay

s

O
w

l R
ou

te
s:

 
L 

O
w

l 
N

 O
w

l 
14

 M
is

si
on

 
22

 F
illm

or
e

24
 D

iv
is

ad
er

o 
25

 T
re

as
ur

e 
Is

la
nd

38
 G

ea
ry

 
4
4
 O

’S
h
a
u

g
h
n
e
s
s
y

90
 S

an
 B

ru
no

 O
w

l 
91

 O
w

l 
71

4 
BA

R
T 

Ea
rly

 B
ird

171



172



E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l 

T
ri

p
 C

a
rd

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 

(E
T

C
 P

ro
g

ra
m

)

Th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

 s
ub

si
di

ze
s 

ta
xi

 ri
de

s 
fo

r e
ss

en
tia

l 
tri

ps
 li

ke
 g

oi
ng

 to
 th

e 
gr

oc
er

y 
st

or
e,

 p
ha

rm
ac

y 
or

 a
 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
m

ed
ic

al
 v

is
it 

w
ith

in
 S

an
 F

ra
nc

is
co

.

173



E
T

C
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 E
li
g

ib
il

it
y

To
 q

ua
lif

y 
fo

r t
he

 p
ro

gr
am

, c
us

to
m

er
s 

m
us

t 
be

 a
 S

an
 F

ra
nc

is
co

 re
si

de
nt

 w
ho

 is
 6

5+
 o

r 
ha

ve
 a

 d
is

ab
ilit

y.

174



H
o

w
 d

o
e

s
 t

h
e

 
E

T
C

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 w

o
rk

?

Fo
r e

ve
ry

 $
6 

 
lo

ad
ed

 o
n 

ca
rd

, 
us

er
 re

ce
iv

es
 $

30
 

va
lu

e,
 u

p 
to

 a
 

m
on

th
ly

 m
ax

im
um

 
va

lu
e 

of
 $

60
 o

n 
ca

rd
.

175



H
o

w
 t

o
 A

p
p

ly
 f

o
r 

E
T

C
 P

ro
g

ra
m

To
 m

ak
e 

ap
pl

yi
ng

 e
as

y 
-A

pp
lic

an
ts

 c
al

l 
31

1 
an

d 
m

en
tio

n 
th

e 
ET

C
 p

ro
gr

am
.

•
Tr

an
sf

er
re

d 
to

 s
ta

ff 
at

 P
ar

at
ra

ns
it 

of
fic

e
•

O
pe

n 
M

on
da

y 
th

ro
ug

h 
Fr

id
ay

 9
:0

0a
m

-4
:4

5p
m

M
or

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n,
 S

FM
TA

.c
om

/E
TC

176

http://www.sfmta.com/ETC


13

S
F

 P
a
ra

tr
a
n

s
it

 P
ro

g
ra

m

•
D

o
o

r 
to

 d
o

o
r 

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti

o
n

 
fo

r 
th

o
se

 A
D

A
 e

lig
ib

le
 -

u
n

a
b

le
 

to
 u

se
 f

ix
e

d
-r

o
u

te
 t

ra
n

si
t 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
tl

y

•
T

h
re

e
 m

a
in

 m
o

d
e

s
•

SF
 A

cc
e

ss
 V

a
n

 

•
G

ro
u

p
 V

a
n

•
T

a
xi

/R
a

m
p

e
d

 T
a

xi

177



A
D

A
 P

a
ra

tr
a

n
s
it

 C
e

rt
if

ic
a

ti
o

n

Li
m

ite
d 

to
 p

er
so

ns
 w

ho
 a

re
 u

na
bl

e 
to

 in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

 u
se

 
re

gu
la

r p
ub

lic
 tr

an
si

t (
M

un
i) 

so
m

e 
or

 a
ll 

of
 th

e 
tim

e,
 d

ue
 

to
 a

 d
is

ab
ilit

y 
or

 h
ea

lth
 re

la
te

d 
co

nd
iti

on
.

Ap
pl

ic
at

io
n

Ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

R
ev

ie
w

In
te

rv
ie

w
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

r 
D

en
ia

l 

178



H
o

w
 i

s
 t

h
e
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

d
if

fe
re

n
t 

d
u

ri
n

g
 C

O
V

ID
-1

9
?

•
Su

bm
it 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

vi
a 

em
ai

l o
r b

y 
fa

x 
if 

po
ss

ib
le

.
•

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
an

al
ys

ts
 

ar
e 

pe
rfo

rm
in

g 
in

te
rv

ie
w

s 
by

 p
ho

ne
.

•
If 

el
ig

ib
le

, t
em

po
ra

ry
 ID

 
ca

rd
s 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
m

ai
le

d 
w

ith
ou

t p
ho

to
s.

179



S
F

 A
c

c
e

s
s

 a
n

d
 C

O
V

ID
-1

9

•
D

oo
r t

o 
do

or
, s

ha
re

d 
rid

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
•

Pr
e-

sc
he

du
le

 1
 to

 7
 d

ay
s 

in
 

ad
va

nc
e

•
¾

 m
ile

 fr
om

 a
ll 

M
un

i b
us

 ro
ut

es
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
in

 D
al

y 
C

ity
E

n
c

o
u

ra
g

in
g

 c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 t

o
 t

a
k

e
 

e
s
s
e

n
ti

a
l 

tr
ip

s
 o

n
ly

. 

Sa
fe

ty
 P

re
ca

ut
io

ns
:

•
M

in
im

iz
in

g 
va

n 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 to

 m
ax

im
um

 o
f 2

 ri
de

rs
•

SF
M

TA
 is

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 m

as
ks

 to
 a

ll 
dr

iv
er

s/
st

af
f

•
Ve

hi
cl

es
 c

le
an

ed
 fr

eq
ue

nt
ly

180



G
ro

u
p

 V
a

n
 a

n
d

 C
O

V
ID

-1
9

•
G

ro
up

 tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
to

/fr
om

 s
in

gl
e 

lo
ca

tio
n,

 
e.

g.
 A

du
lt 

D
ay

 H
ea

lth
 

C
en

te
r

•
Al

l t
rip

s 
ar

e 
pr

es
ch

ed
ul

ed
 

in
 c

oo
rd

in
at

io
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

ag
en

cy
•

Si
nc

e 
Sh

el
te

r I
n 

Pl
ac

e 
or

de
r h

as
 b

ee
n 

in
 e

ffe
ct

, 
al

l s
ite

s 
ha

ve
 c

lo
se

d 
an

d 
no

 tr
ip

s 
ar

e 
be

in
g 

pr
ov

id
ed

181



S
F

 T
a
x
is

 a
n

d
 C

O
V

ID
-1

9

Sa
fe

ty
 P

re
ca

ut
io

ns
: 

•
D

riv
er

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

is
su

ed
 P

PE
 k

its
, a

re
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 c
le

an
 

ve
hi

cl
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

tri
ps

, h
av

e 
be

en
 tr

ai
ne

d 
in

 p
ro

pe
r 

cl
ea

ni
ng

 p
ro

to
co

ls
, a

nd
 a

re
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 w
ea

r f
ac

e 
co

ve
rin

gs

•
Sa

m
e 

da
y,

 o
n-

de
m

an
d 

se
rv

ic
e

•
Al

l t
ax

is
 a

re
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 
pa

rti
ci

pa
te

 in
 S

F 
Pa

ra
tra

ns
it 

•
W

he
el

ch
ai

r a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

ta
xi

s 
ar

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e

E
n

c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 c

u
s

to
m

e
rs

 t
o

 t
a

k
e

 

e
s
s
e

n
ti

a
l 

tr
ip

s
 o

n
ly

. 

182



S
h

o
p

-a
-R

o
u

n
d

 P
ro

g
ra

m

•
Tr

av
el

 to
 g

ro
ce

ry
 s

to
re

s 
& 

fa
rm

er
s 

m
ar

ke
ts

•
D

riv
er

 w
ill 

as
si

st
 p

as
se

ng
er

 
an

d 
gr

oc
er

y 
ba

gs
 to

 fr
on

t d
oo

r

•
Fo

llo
w

in
g 

so
ci

al
 d

is
ta

nc
in

g 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 b

y 
lim

iti
ng

 
tri

ps
 to

 m
ax

. 2
 c

us
to

m
er

s

•
Sh

op
-a

-R
ou

nd
 T

ax
i a

va
ila

bl
e

183



V
a

n
 G

o
g

h
 S

h
u

tt
le

•
Pr

ov
id

es
 g

ro
up

 tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
to

 s
en

io
rs

 a
nd

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 d
is

ab
ilit

ie
s 

to
 c

ul
tu

ra
l a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l e
ve

nt
s 

to
 

re
du

ce
 s

oc
ia

l i
so

la
tio

n
•

Te
m

po
ra

ril
y 

su
sp

en
de

d 
du

rin
g 

C
O

VI
D

-1
9

184



P
a

ra
tr

a
n

s
it

 P
lu

s

•
Pr

ov
id

es
 a

 li
m

ite
d 

va
lu

e 
ta

xi
 d

eb
it 

ca
rd

 ($
60

 
pe

r m
on

th
) t

o 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
w

ho
 d

o 
no

t q
ua

lif
y 

fo
r A

D
A 

pa
ra

tra
ns

it 
bu

t b
en

ef
it 

fro
m

 
as

si
st

an
ce

 fo
r o

cc
as

io
na

l t
rip

s

185



C
.H

.O
.I

.C
.E

 T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti

o
n

 P
ro

g
ra

m

Pi
lo

t P
ro

gr
am

 a
t P

ot
re

ro
 H

ill 
an

d 
So

ut
he

as
t H

ea
lth

 C
en

te
rs

186



S
F

M
T

A
 M

o
b

il
it

y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
C

e
n

te
r

O
ne

-s
to

p 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
re

fe
rra

l 
ce

nt
er

 fo
r o

ld
er

 a
du

lts
 a

nd
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 d

is
ab

ilit
ie

s:

•
Pe

rs
on

al
iz

ed
 tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

re
fe

rra
l

•
Tr

av
el

 T
ra

in
in

g

•
SF

 P
ar

at
ra

ns
it 

pr
og

ra
m

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n

•
O

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 t
o

 C
B

O
’s

 

187



V
is

it
 t

h
e
 f

o
ll

o
w

in
g

 f
o

r 
m

o
re

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

:

SF
M

TA
 C

O
VI

D
-1

9 
U

pd
at

es
: S

FM
TA

.c
om

/C
O

VI
D

Es
se

nt
ia

l T
rip

 C
ar

d 
Pr

og
ra

m
-S

FM
TA

.c
om

/E
TC

SF
 P

ar
at

ra
ns

it-
SF

M
TA

.c
om

/P
ar

at
ra

ns
it

SF
 P

ar
at

ra
ns

it 
Ta

xi
-S

FM
TA

.c
om

/P
ar

at
ra

ns
itT

ax
i

Sh
op

-a
-R

ou
nd

 P
ro

gr
am

-S
FM

TA
.c

om
/S

ho
pa

R
ou

nd

188

https://www.sfmta.com/projects/covid-19-developments-response
http://www.sfmta.com/ETC
http://www.sfmta.com/paratransit
http://www.sfmta.com/ParatransitTaxi
http://www.sfmta.com/ShopaRound


ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.y
ou

tu
be

.c
om

/w
at

ch
?v

=B
Tj

hw
VQ

0j
xQ

189

http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BTjhwVQ0jxQ
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BTjhwVQ0jxQ

	DTX MOU Final with Attachments Clean 6Apr20.pdf
	DTX MOU - V15 FINAL 04.03.20
	Attachment 1 ESC and IPMT membership V 3Apr20
	DTX MOU Attachment 2 Summary Work Program FINAL -03.31.20
	Attacment 3a DTX Org Chart 2020-04-03 FINAL
	Attachment 3b TJPA Org Chart 2020-04-03 FINAL

	SFCTA_Board_DTXAllocation_2020-04-28.pdf
	DTX Allocation ATT 5a TJPA DTX 15% Design ARF 4.10.20.pdf
	0- TJPA DTX 15% Design ARF 4.02.20-SOW.pdf
	0- TJPA DTX 15% Design ARF 4.02.20-tcLZ for final.pdf

	R20-xx Prop K DTX Allocate_Appropriate.pdf
	Executive Director

	DTX Alloc_Approp ATT 1-4.pdf
	1-Summary
	2-Description
	3-Recommendations
	4-Capital Budget

	DTX Allocation ATT 5a TJPA DTX 15% Design ARF 4.23.20.pdf
	0- TJPA DTX 15% Design ARF 4.02.20-SOW.pdf
	0- TJPA DTX 15% Design ARF 4.02.20-tcLZ for final.pdf

	DTX Alloc_Approp ATT 1-4.pdf
	1-Summary
	2-Description
	3-Recommendations
	4-Capital Budget


	SFCTA_Board_PropKGroupedAllocations_2020-04-28.pdf
	Prop K Grouped ATT 1-4.pdf
	1-Summary
	2-Description
	3-Recommendations
	4-Capital Budget

	Prop K Grouped ATT 5.pdf
	3- 3rd Street Transit_Safety Phase 2 ARF.pdf
	2- 3rd St Transit and Safety - Street diagrams.pdf
	Townsend_and_3rd_Bus_Only_Lane_DIAGRAM.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	X-Townsend  Street_Design Proposed.1-4-3.1


	3rd_Townsend signal improvements.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	3rd and Townsend-Intersection
	PLOT1



	3rd_Harrison signal improvements.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	03rd St_Harrison_04-06-2016_SID-Layout1


	3rd_Folsom signal_Xwalk.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	03rd St_Folsom_kas-Layout1
	PLOT1



	3rd_Bryant signal improvements.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	03rd St_Bryant_kas-Layout1
	PLOT1







	04 April 14 Bd Mins.pdf
	DRAFT MINUTES
	San Francisco County Transportation Authority
	Tuesday, April 14, 2020
	Consent Agenda


	R20-49 Prop K DTX Allocate_Appropriate.pdf
	Executive Director

	04 Apr 28 BD.pdf
	San Francisco County Transportation Authority
	Meeting Notice

	Other Items

	SFCTA_Board_TFCAEmergencyRideHomeExpansion_2020-04-28.pdf
	Executive Director
	ATT1 - Program Proposal for Essential Workers Ride Home 042420.pdf
	ERH Expanded Program Budget for ATT 1.pdf
	Planning-CER


	ATT2 - TFCA Emergency Ride Home - 4.21.20.pdf
	Attachment 2





